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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STAT EMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K of The Chefs’ Warebe, Inc. contains forward-looking statementswiaotddooking statements provide ¢
current expectations or forecasts of future evantsare not statements of historical fact. Thesgdnd-looking statements include information
about possible or assumed future events, includingpng other things, discussion and analysis ofwdure financial condition, results of
operations, our strategic plans and objectived, masiagement, liquidity and ability to refinance owebtedness as it matures, anticipated
capital expenditures (and access to capital) reduiy complete projects, amounts of cash distidstio our stockholders in the future, if any,
and other matters. Words such as “anticipates péeis,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” $8mates” and variations of these words anc
similar expressions are intended to identify fomiveroking statements. These statements are noagigs of future performance and are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factose of which are beyond our control, are diffitalpredict and/or could cause actual results t
differ materially from those expressed or forecastethe forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements involve inherent unéetyaand may ultimately prove to be incorrect dséa Investors in our common stock are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forwaoting statements. Except as otherwise may benetjby law, we undertake no obligatior
update or revise forward-looking statements teemtfthanged assumptions, the occurrence of ungattid events or actual operating results.
Our actual results could differ materially from sieoanticipated in these forward-looking statemasta result of various factors, including, but
not limited to, the following:

« our success depends to a significant extent uponargeeconomic conditions, including disposabl@me levels and changes in
consumer discretionary spendir

» asignificant portion of our future growth is dedent upon our ability to expand our operationstinexisting markets and to
penetrate new markets through acquisitic

« Wwe may not achieve the benefits expected from oqguiaitions;

« we may have difficulty managing and facilitatingr duture growth;

« conditions beyond our control could materially affthe cost and/or availability of our specialtpdoproducts and/or interrupt our
distribution network

« ourincreased distribution of center-of-the-plateduicts, like meat, poultry and seafood, followmg acquisitions of Michael’s Finer
Meats, LLC “Michae’<s”) and Allen Brothers, Inc“Allen Brother) involve risks that we have not historically fac

« our business is a low-margin business and ourtpraigins may be sensitive to inflationary and athary pressures;

« group purchasing organizations may become moreeaitiour industry and increase their efforts td adr customers as members of
these organization

» because our foodservice distribution operationcaneentrated in certain culinary markets, we aseaptible to economic and other
developments, including adverse weather conditionhese area:

« damage to our reputation or lack of acceptancaippecialty food products, center-of-thkate products and/or the brands we car
existing and new markets could materially and asbigrimpact our business, financial condition @utes of operations

« our customers are generally not obligated to caetipurchasing products from us;

« we have experienced losses due to our inabiliotiect accounts receivable in the past and coxjietigence increases in such losses
in the future if our customers are unable to payrttiebts to us in a timely manner or at

« product liability claims could have a material acbeeeffect on our business, financial conditiomesults of operations;

« increased fuel costs may have a material advefset & our business, financial condition or resoftoperations;

« new information or attitudes regarding diet andlthear adverse opinions about the health effecthefproducts we distribute could
result in changes in consumer eating habits, wbiehid have a material adverse effect on our busjriggncial condition or results
operations

« we have significant competition from a variety ofisces, and we may not be able to compete sucdgssfu
our substantial indebtedness may limit our abtlitynvest in the ongoing needs of our busin

« we have broad discretion as to how to use the mntanet proceeds from our September 2013 comnuuk siffering and might not
apply those proceeds in ways that increase thealan investment in shares of our common st
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our ability to raise capital in the future may bmited;

we may be unable to obtain debt or other finanaimguding financing necessary to execute on oguasition strategy, on favorable
terms or at alll

information technology system failures or breaabfesur network security could interrupt our opesas and adversely affect our
business

our investments in information technology may naiduce the benefits that we anticipate;

we may not be able to adequately protect our ixtalll property, which, in turn, could harm theueabf our brands and adversely
affect our busines:

our business operations and future developmenddmeikignificantly disrupted if we lose key membairsur management team;

our insurance policies may not provide adequatel$eof coverage against all claims, and fluctuativsgirance requirements and costs
could negatively impact our profitability, and ievail to establish proper reserves and adequagtignate future expenses, the costs
associated with our self-insured group medical kes’ compensation liability and automobile liatyilplans may adversely affect our
business, financial condition or results of operadi

increases in our labor costs, including as a reduétbor shortages, the unionization of some afamsociates, the price or
unavailability of insurance and changes in govemimegulation, could slow our growth or harm ousibess

we are subject to significant governmental regatatind failure to comply could subject us to erdoment actions, recalls or other
penalties, which could have a material adversecedfie our business, financial condition or resafteperations

federal, state and local tax rules may adversepathour business, financial condition or resultsgerations;

the price of our common stock may be volatile andstockholders could lose all or a part of theirdstment;

concentration of ownership among our existing etieewfficers, directors and their affiliates magpent new investors from
influencing significant corporate decisiol

if securities analysts or industry analysts dowdgraur stock, publish negative research or reportf not publish reports about our
business, our stock price and trading volume cdaldine;

we do not intend to pay dividends for the foreséealiure and our stock may not appreciate in value

our issuance of preferred stock or debt securitietd adversely affect holders of our common st discourage a takeover; and
some provisions of our charter documents and Dekaleav may have anti-takeover effects that coustairage an acquisition of us
by others, even if an acquisition would be benafith our stockholders, and may prevent attemptsunystockholders to replace or
remove our current manageme

This list of risks and uncertainties, however,idyaa summary of some of the most important facémd is not intended to be exhaustive.
Investors in our common stock should carefully egwthe risks that are set forth under the captiRisk Factors” included in Part I, Item 1A of
this Form 10-K.

Unless this Form 10-K indicates otherwise or thetert otherwise requires, the terms “The Chefs’ &dause,” “we,” “our,” “our Company,”
“the Company” or “us” as used in this Form 10-Kerefo The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its subsekari

4




Item 1. Business

We are a premier distributor of specialty food prad in the United States and Canada. We are fdausserving the specific needs of chefs
who own and/or operate some of the leading menwedrindependent restaurants, fine dining estabkstisy country clubs, hotels, caterers,
culinary schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocoigteruise lines, casinos and specialty food stioréise United States and Canada. We believe
that we have a distinct competitive advantage ivisg these customers as a result of our extersgiertion of distinctive and hard-to-find
specialty and center-of-the-plate food products,paduct knowledge and our customer service.

We define specialty food products as gourmet fasingredients that are of the highest grade jtguai style as measured by their
uniqueness, exatic origin or particular processireghod. Our product portfolio includes over 30,88ck-keeping units (“SKUs”) from more
than 1,600 different suppliers and is comprisethprily of imported and domestic specialty food prei, such as artisan charcuterie, special
cheeses, unique oils and vinegars, truffles, cagtarcolate and pastry products. We also offendensive line of center-of-the-plate products,
including custom cut beef, seafood and hormonegeétry, as well as broadline food products, sasttooking oils, butter, eggs, milk and
flour. When marketing our products to our customeses focus our efforts on chefs, and we believé, thyaoffering a wide selection of both
distinctive and hard-to-find products, togetherhadenter-of-the-plate proteins and staple broadboe products, we are able to differentiate
ourselves from larger, traditional broadline foadsee distributors, while simultaneously enabling customers to utilize us as their primary
foodservice distributor. Additionally, as a resofitour acquisition of Allen Brothers in Decemberl2Qwe have also begun to market certain o
our center-of-the-plate products directly to conststhrough a mail and e-commerce platform.

Since the formation of our predecessor in 1985haxe expanded our distribution network, producta@n and customer base both
organically and through acquisitions. From Decen#er2009 to December 27, 2013, our net revenwsased approximately $402 million
approximately $674 million. During these periodsl @mprior years, our sales to both new and exgsturstomers have increased as a result of
an increase in the breadth and depth of our praurtfolio, our commitment to customer service, éfitorts of our experienced and
sophisticated sales professionals, the increasedfutechnology in the operations and managemeoaiobusiness and our ongoing
consolidation of the fragmented specialty foodsmndistribution industry. Since April 2012, we haampleted five acquisitions which have
increased our penetration in existing markets, edpd our footprint into new markets and/or enharmedoroduct capabilities. The up-front
purchase prices for these five acquisitions rariged $19.5 million to $53.5 million, resulting iggregate ugront cash consideration of mc
than $152.0 million, which we funded with borrowingnder our existing senior secured credit faesitia portion of which we repaid with
proceeds from the issuance of $100.0 million of@esecured notes in April 2013, and the proceddsipcommon stock offering completec
September 2013.

Excluding our direct-to-consumer business, we ailyeserve more than 20,000 customer locationsimf@urteen primary geographic markets
across the United States and Canada, including YW, Washington, D.C., Los Angeles, San Francises, Vegas, Miami, Portland, Seattle,
Columbus, Cincinnati, Chicago, Vancouver, Edmorénd Toronto. By leveraging an experienced and stiphted sales force of
approximately 300 sales professionals, we mairttailaborative relationships with thousands of chelfidle also acting as a critical marketing
arm and route-to-market for many of our suppli#ve. operate 20 distribution centers and provideisersix days a week in many of our
service areas, utilizing our fleet of delivery tkado fill our customers’ orders.

Competitive Strengths

We believe that, during our 29-year history, weénaehieved, developed and/or refined the follovamgngths which provide us with a distinct
competitive position in the foodservice distributimdustry and also the opportunity to achieve sopenargins relative to most large broadl
foodservice distributors:

Leading Distributor of Specialty Food Products imiW of the Key Culinary MarkeiBased on our management’s industry knowledge and
experience, we believe we are the largest distribeit specialty food products, as measured by alessin the New York, Washington, D.C.,
San Francisco and Los Angeles metropolitan markeéesbelieve these markets, along with a numbetlwranarkets we serve, including Las
Vegas, Miami, Philadelphia, Boston, Napa ValleyrtRad, Seattle, Chicago, Vancouver and Toronteater and set the culinary trends for the
rest of the United States and Canada and provigéths/aluable insight into the latest culinary anénu practices. Furthermore, we believe
our established relationships with many of thedbefs, culinary schools and dining establishmanthése key culinary markets have bene
us when we entered into new markets where we leetleat chefs at our potential customers were gépdrrsowledgeable of our brand and
commitment to quality and excellence from theiremxgnce working in other markets which we servéhoough their personal relationships
throughout the culinary industry.




Expansive Product OfferinWe offer an extensive portfolio of high-quality sgty food products, ranging from basic ingredgeand staples,
such as milk and flour, to custom cut steaks aafbsel and pastries, as well as delicacies andalpegigredients sourced from North
America, Europe, Asia and South America, which wkelve helps our customers distinguish their mémms. We carry more than 30,000
SKUs and we constantly evaluate our portfolio aricbduce new products to address regional trendpeeferences and ensure that we are ol
the leading edge of broader culinary trends. Thinomgr importing division, we provide our customesigh access to a portfolio of exclusive
items, including regional olive oils, truffles anbarcuterie from Italy, Spain, France and other iv@edhnean countries. In addition, and as
evidence of our commitment to aid our customers@ating unique and innovative menu items, we @atultilize our sourcing relationships
and industry insights to procure additional produbtat we do not regularly carry but that our costos specifically request. We believe that
breadth and depth of our product portfolio facié&gour customers’ ability to distinguish and ertgatheir menu offerings and differentiates us
from larger traditional broadline foodservice distitors. For example, we provide a selection ofertban 160 different varieties of olive oil,
while large broadline foodservice distributors oofyry, on average, 5-10 types of olive oil.

Critical Route-to-Market for Specialty Food SuppgiéNe currently distribute products from more than0D,@ifferent suppliers, with no single
supplier currently representing more than 5% oftotal purchases. Our suppliers are located througNorth America, Europe and Asia and

include numerous small, family-owned entities aridsanal food producers. We are the largest custéonenany of our suppliers. As a result,

our experienced and sophisticated sales profedsjanestomer relationships and distribution platfare important to these suppliers’ route-to
market, which enables us to offer a wide rangerofipcts on an exclusive basis.

Expanding Base of Premier Customer RelationslOur breadth and depth of product offerings couplél our highly regarded customer
service has allowed us to develop and retain d lystomer base that is comprised of chefs who ormwork at more than 20,000 of the
nation’s leading menu-driven independent restaardime dining establishments, country clubs, Imtehterers, culinary schools, bakeries,
patisseries, chocolatiers, cruise lines, casindssarcialty food stores. Our focus on product sielecproduct knowledge and customer servict
has rewarded us with a number of long-term custaelationships, which often begin when chefs ateduced to us while attending the
nation’s leading culinary schools, including Thdi@ary Institute of America and The French Culinémgtitute, both of which have been
customers of ours for more than seven years. Bas@dir management’s industry experience and oatioeships and dealings with our
customers, we believe we are the primary distribat@pecialty food products to the majority of @uistomers that are not part of our direct-to
consumer center-of-the-plate business.

Collaborative Professional and Educational Relatbips with our Customerg/e employ a sophisticated and experienced sales fur
approximately 300 sales professionals, a significamber of whom have formal culinary training, ces in the culinary arts or prior
experience working in the culinary industry. Equedpvith advanced culinary and industry knowledge,sales professionals seek to establist
a rapport with our customers’ chefs so that theyroare fully understand and anticipate the needsdfoffer cost-effective food product
solutions to the chefs who own or operate thesmbsses. We believe that the specialized knowlbdge of our sales professionals enables
to take a more collaborative and educational amproa selling our gourmet foods and ingredients tarfdrther differentiate ourselves from
our traditional broadline competitors.

Expertise in Logistics and DistributioWe have built a first-class, scalable inventory aggment and logistics platform that enables us to
efficiently fill our customers’ orders and to priafdly meet our customers’ needs for varying drapsi high service levels and timely delivery.
Our average distribution service level, or the patage of in-stock items ordered by customersatenot part of our direct-to-consumer
center-of-the-plate business that were deliverethbyequested date, was in excess of 97% in 201i8h we believe is among the highest
rates in the foodservice distribution industry. M2 distribution centers located throughout thé&dhStates and Canada, we are able to
leverage our geographic footprint and reduce dowumd freight costs. This scale enables us to miait portfolio of more than 30,000 SKUs,
and through the operation of our sophisticatedrinfion technology, inventory management and lagstystems, we believe we provide our
customers with the highest level of customer seraied responsiveness in our industry.
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Experienced and Proven Management TeOur senior management team has demonstrated titg sdhgrow the business through various
economic environments. With collective experientmore than 75 years at The Chefs’ Warehouserédgressor and other foodservice
distribution companies, our founders and senioragament are experienced operators and are passabait our future. Our senior
management team is comprised of our founders dsagelxperienced professionals with expertise éfdlodservice distribution industry and
in a wide range of functional areas, including fioa and accounting, sales and marketing, operaiigiosmation technology, legal and human
resources.

Our Growth Strategies

We believe substantial organic growth opportunigigist in our current markets through increasecefration of our existing customers and the
addition of new customers, and we have identified markets that we believe also present opporamitir future expansion. Key elements of
our growth strategy include the following:

Increase Penetration with Existing CustomiVe intend to sell more products to our existing@oeers by increasing the breadth and depth o
our product selection and increasing the efficieoicgur sales professionals, while at the same tiomtinuing to provide excellent customer
service. We are a data-driven and goal-orientedrorgtion, and our management and sales professiarehighly focused on our weekly
sales and gross profit contribution from each afrmn-direct-to-consumer customers and increasiagitimber of unique products we
distribute to such customers. We believe our reaeqtisition activity reflects this focus as we é@ought to complement our existing produc
offerings and enhance our product capabilitiesubhoour May 2013 acquisition of Qzina Specialty #obdlorth America Inc. (“Qzina”), a
leading supplier of gourmet chocolate, dessertpastry products, our August 2012 acquisition of Miel’s, a specialty protein distributor
which specializes in custom cut beef, seafood d@hera@enter-of-the-plate products, and our Decerib&8 acquisition of Allen Brothers, a
leading processor and distributor of premium guatieats.

Expand our Customer Base Within our Existing MaskAs of December 27, 2013, we served more than 2@;08@mer locations, excluding
our direct-to-consumer business, in the UnitedeStahd Canada. We plan to expand our market gh#ne fragmented specialty food
distribution industry by cultivating new custometationships within our existing markets througé tontinued penetration of independent
restaurants, fine dining establishments, countipg| hotels, caterers, culinary schools, bakep@ssseries, chocolatiers, cruise lines, casinos
and specialty food stores. We believe we have pip@dunity to continue to gain market share in existing markets by offering an extensive
selection of specialty food products as well agereaf-the-plate proteins and traditional broadktaple food products through our unique,
collaborative and educational sales efforts anidiefft, scalable distribution solution.

Improve our Operating Margin/As we continue to grow, we believe that the investta we are making in our inventory management and
logistics platform along with improved efficiencigsat we are working to achieve in our general ashthinistrative functions should yield both
improved customer service and profitability. Utiiig our fleet of delivery trucks, we usually filistomer orders within 12-24 hours of order
placement. We intend to continue to offer our comts this high level of customer service while rteiming our focus on realizing efficiencies
and economies of scale in purchasing, warehoudistribution and general and administrative furtsiovhich, when combined with
incremental fixed-cost leverage, we believe willddo continued improvements in our operating nmaogier time.

Pursue Selective AcquisitiorThroughout our 29-year history, we have successidéintified, consummated and integrated multiplategic
acquisitions which were designed to increase onefpation in existing markets, expand our footpiid new markets and/or enhance our
product capabilities. We believe that, over time,will be able to improve the operations and ovenalfitability of each acquired company by
leveraging our sourcing relationships to provideeapanded product portfolio, implementing our tdstales force training techniques and
metrics and installing improved warehouse managearehinformation systems. We believe we have tigodunity to capitalize on our
existing infrastructure and expertise by continuimgelectively pursue opportunistic acquisitiamgider to expand the breadth of our
distribution network, increase our operating efficdy and add additional products and capabili@sce our initial public offering (“IPO”), we
have completed six acquisitions which have incréase penetration in existing markets, expanded@aiprint into new markets and
enhanced our product capabilities. We are currentiiie process of implementing an “integratiomié#hat is dedicated to onboarding new
acquisitions as quickly and efficiently as possiblée expect the integration team to help streanthieeacquisition process and are hopeful tha
it will enable us to achieve expected benefits syntbrgies more quickly. Having a team dedicatadtegration will help us make sure the
people, processes and products we acquire thraxgghsitions are consistent with the rest of ourifiess and will allow our management team
to focus its attention on our day-to-day operations




Our Markets and the Customers that We Serve

Excluding our direct-tazonsumer business, we distribute our specialty floducts to over 20,000 distinct customer locatifsam distributiol
centers located in our primary markets, which idelilNew York, Washington, D.C., San Francisco, Lagdles, Las Vegas, Miami, Portland,
Seattle, Columbus, Cincinnati, Chicago, Vancoukemonton and Toronto. We also serve customersiimaber of other markets, including
Philadelphia, Boston and Napa Valley. We beliexa thany of these markets set the culinary trendthforest of the United States and Cat
and provide us with valuable insight into the latadinary and menu trends. We have establishddlmmiative professional and educational
relationships with some of the United States’ aati&ia’s most demanding chefs, which allows us ticipate the needs of, and offer cost-
effective food product solutions to, our customehile allowing our customers to locate ingredightst will enable them to create unique and
differentiated menu items. Our target customerkde menu-driven independent restaurants, finendiestablishments, country clubs, hotels,
caterers, culinary schools, bakeries, patissestes;olatiers, cruise lines, casinos and speciatid Stores. We enjoy no meaningful customer
concentration as our top ten customers accountddds than 10% of total net revenue for our 204&af year.

Additionally, as a result of our acquisition of &l Brothers in December 2013, we have also begorat&et certain of our center-of-the-plate
proteins directly to consumers through a mail amdmmerce platform.

Set forth below is a breakdown of the primary gepgic markets we serve and the year we enteredneandtet:

MARKET NAME GEOGRAPHIES SERVED YEAR ENTERED
New York Boston to Atlantic City 1985
Washington, D.C Philadelphia to Richmon 1999
Los Angeles Santa Barbara to San Die 2005
San Francisc Napa Valley to Monterey Ba 2005
Las Vegas Las Vega:s 2005
Miami Miami 2010
Portland Bend, OR to Seattle, W 2011
Columbus Midwest 2012
Cincinnati Dayton, OH to Lexington, K\ 2013
Chicagao Chicago 2013
Vancouvel Vancouver and Western Cang 2013
Edmonton Edmonton and Calgai 2013
Toronto Toronto 2013
Seattle Seattle 2013

We extend credit to virtually all of our non-dirgctconsumer customers on varying terms with ave@ayment maturities of approximately
21 days. We complete a formal credit assessmeait néw non-direct-to-consumer customers, and gadiCand Collections Department
regularly evaluates credit terms for each suchocost based upon several factors, including or@éguency, average order size, the types of
products purchased and the length of the relatipngtie believe that we are skilled at managinga@ustr credit.

Our Specialty Food Products

We strive to be the primary food source solutiondor customers, and, to this end, we offer outarasrs a comprehensive product portfolio
that ranges from basic ingredients and staple$, asienilk and flour, to custom-cut steaks and sehénd pastries, as well as delicacies and
specialty ingredients sourced from North Americardpe, Asia and South America. We carry more tta0a@ SKUs and we are fully
committed to utilizing our sourcing relationshipsandustry insights to procure products that wendoregularly carry but that our customers
specifically request as they seek to create ungaueinnovative menu items.
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The sales mix for the principal product categoftesach of the 2013, 2012 and 2011 fiscal yeass i®llows (dollars in thousands):

December 27, 201 December 28, 201 December 30, 201

Dry Goods $ 144,59: 22% $ 119,75! 25% $ 106,85¢ 27%
Center of Plati 214,00: 32% 123,04° 26% 77,17" 19%
Cheese! 76,40( 11% 69,22: 14% 61,23¢ 15%
Pastries and other Bakery

Products 118,87t 18% 64,62( 14% 53,85 13%
Qils and Vinegar: 55,73t 8% 49,86 1C% 47,48¢ 12%
Dairy Products 47,54! 7% 42,98: 9% 44,21 11%
Kitchen Supplies 16,39: 2% 10,80( 2% 9,80¢ 3%
Total $ 673,54! 10% $ 480,29: 10(% $ 400,63: 100(%

We continuously evaluate potential additions to praduct portfolio based on both existing and apéted trends in the culinary industry. Our
buyers have numerous contacts with suppliers througNorth America, Europe and Asia and are alwagking for new and interesting
products that will aid our customers as they sedéeep up with the latest developments in the emjirndustry. Our ability to successfully
distribute a significant portion of the total pration of smaller, regional and artisanal specifdtyd producers allows us the opportunity to be
these producers’ primary route-to-market in ourkats without, in most cases, requiring us to makgractual commitments regarding
guaranteed volume. We are also able to utilizesa& and successful track record of distributingdpcts sourced from outside the United
States and Canada to resist efforts from many ofavaign suppliers to push importing costs offamos.

We seek to differentiate ourselves from our competiby offering a more extensive depth and breatifipecialty products. We carry a wide
range of highguality specialty food products, including artisdrarcuterie, specialty cheeses, unique oils anebeairs, truffles, caviar, chocol
and pastry products across each of our marketsydatso offer a number of items in each of oupeetive markets that are tailored to meet
the unique preferences of the individual chefdat tmarket. We regularly rotate our inventory tentify and bring to market new products tha
will continue to support our value proposition.

Within our product offerings, we carry numerous igoet brands, and at the same time, we seek to nijpnoduct contribution through the
sale of our proprietary brands, which we offer imumnber of staple products, including bulk olive tialian grating cheeses and butter. We

believe that our ability to offer simultaneouslghiquality specialty foods and ingredients, cewnfethe-plate products and more traditional

broadline staple food products provides our custeméth foodservice distribution solutions that afficient and cost effective.

Our Sophisticated and Experienced Sales Professidsa

We employ a sophisticated and experienced sales fifrapproximately 300 sales professionals focesesheeting our customers’ goals and
objectives while concurrently educating them regayaur latest products and broader culinary tremdsensure a high level of customer
service, we seek to maintain a ratio of approxityaiae sales professional for every 65 of our ausls, excluding our direct-to-consumer
customers. Our sales force is composed of theviolig three distinct groups which are all focusedpooviding outstanding service to our
customers:

« Outside Sales AssociatesResponsible for identifying sales opportunitedycating customers and acting as our public reptatves.

« Inside Sales Associate Responsible for processing customer orders aath@ing for delivery and payment.

« Product Specialists Responsible for maintaining specialized produnividedge and educating our outside sales assoaatesustomers
regarding new products and general developmergsvaral specific categories, including proteinfead, pastry and chees

A significant number of our sales professionalsehformal culinary training, degrees in the culinar{s and/or prior experience working in the
culinary industry. We strive to harness this culjnenowledge and passion for food and to conculygambmote an entrepreneurial working
environment. Utilizing advanced pricing optimizatisoftware available to them on a real-time basis sales professionals are afforded
flexibility to determine the pricing of individuéiems for our customers within a range of priciqgions. The majority of our sales
professionals are compensated on a commission basitheir performance is measured primarily ufheir gross profit dollars obtained. We
have historically experienced low turnover amongsmaasoned sales professionals.
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Because we are highly focused on collaborating withcustomers and educating them regarding oestlgroducts and broader culinary
trends, we view the ongoing education and traimhgur sales force as crucial to our continued ssscTo ensure that our sales professionals
remain on the forefront of new culinary products &rends, we regularly hold “vendor shows” at oistribution centers where our sales force
is able to interact with vendors and learn moreualite vendors’ latest product offerings and thégueance of these products relative to
competitive offerings.

Our Suppliers

We are committed to providing our customers withuanvaled portfolio of specialty food productsvasll as a comprehensive broadline
product offering and center-of-the-plate produ€ts fulfill this commitment, we maintain strong seoing relationships with numerous
producers of higlguality artisan and regional specialty food produas well as a wide range of broadline product lsenspand protein vendol
Our importing arm also provides us with accesstdusive items such as regional olive oils, trugfnd charcuterie sourced from lItaly, Spain,
France and other Mediterranean countries.

We constantly seek out and evaluate new produaisdier to satisfy our customers’ desire to be afftinefront of the latest culinary and menu
trends, and, as evidence of our commitment to aiccastomers in creating unique and innovative niemms, we regularly utilize our sourci
relationships and industry insights to procure pgireducts that we do not regularly carry but that customers specifically request.

We currently distribute products from more than0D,@lifferent suppliers and no single supplier repnted more than 5% of our total purch
for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2013. Wi/ caultiple products and utilize multiple suppliénsall of our product categories, thereby
eliminating our dependence upon any single supphiéditionally, we seek to limit commodity risk lilizing sophisticated forecasting and
inventory management systems to minimize the irorgrtarrying time of commodity-oriented productsldry leveraging the specialized
product knowledge of our product specialists to aggnpurchasing and inventory levels when apprapriat

Our Operations and Distribution Centers

Operating out of 20 distribution centers of varysige and providing service six days a week in mamegs, we utilize our fleet of delivery
trucks to fill customer orders, usually within 12-Bours of order placement. Our average distribugiervice level, or the percentage oftoek
items ordered by customers that were deliveredhbyequested date, was in excess of 97% as of fisaaended December 27, 2013, which
our management believes is among the highest ifotddservice distribution industry. To achieve #hbigh service levels, we have invested
significantly in sophisticated warehousing, invegtoontrol and distribution systems as describeghdme detail below.

We have begun to implement pick-to-voice technolinggach of our distribution facilities which wiéhable our warehouse employees to fill
orders with greater speed and accuracy.

Products are delivered to our distribution cenpensarily by contract carriers, the suppliers thetmes and our fleet of trucks. We lease our
trucks from national leasing companies and regifimak that offer competitive services. Customeaterss are assembled in our distribution
centers and then sorted, placed on pallets an@dbanto trucks and trailers in delivery sequende ihajority of our trucks and delivery
trailers have multiple, temperature-controlled caniments that ensure all product is delivered ¢octistomer at its optimal temperature.

We employ advanced routing and logistics plannofgsare which maximizes the number of daily deligerthat each of our trucks can make
while also enabling us to make deliveries withinfeaustomer’s preferred 2-3 hour time window. Far direct-to-consumer business, we ship
through nationally recognized couriers. We also@B& and vehicle monitoring technology to regulestgluate the condition of our delivery
trucks and monitor the performance of our driveréracking their progress relative to their deliwechedule and providing information
regarding hard braking, idling and fast starts. @se of this technology allows us to conduct priwadleet maintenance, provide timely
customer service and improve our risk management.
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Our Technology Systems

We maintain an advanced information technologyfptat that enables us to manage our operations @otasvarious markets as we seek to
drive our growth and profitability and ensure ttie needs of our customers are met in an accumndtefficient manner. We have made
significant investments in distribution, salespimhation and warehouse management systems oviastigx years, and are in the process of
implementing a fully-integrated ERP system. Weadse in the process of implementing a fully intégdawarehouse management system at
some of our recently acquired distribution fag#iti Our systems improvements include the implertientar enhancement of a web-based
purchasing and advanced planning system that prevadvanced forecasting and planning tools, vehicieitoring and route optimization
software and pick-to-voice and directed put-awasteaps. Over the last four years, we have also imgtgeed an internally developed, web-
based reporting tool which provides real-time sgieising and profitability analysis for our managent and sales professionals. These
improvements have been made in an effort to impoaresfficiency as we continue to grow our businassl we believe that our current
systems are scalable and can be leveraged to suppduture growth.

Intellectual Property

Except for the Spoleto, Bel Aria, Grand Reservey#ista, Argonaut, Praml, Black Falls, MichaglChocoa, Crescendo, Matisse, Qzina , #
Brothers, The Great Steakhouse Steaks and The'GHafehouse trademarks, we do not own or haveitjint to use any patent, trademark,
tradename, license, franchise or concession, #sedbwhich would have a material adverse effeatwrbusiness, financial condition or res|
of operations.

Competition

The foodservice distribution industry is highly coetitive. We compete with numerous smaller distobsion a local level, as well as with a
limited number of national broadline foodservicstdbutors. Certain of these distributors have tgnefinancial and other resources than we dc
Bidding for contracts or arrangements with custanparticularly larger hotels and caterers, is figlompetitive and distributors may market
their services to a particular customer over a lpagod of time before they are invited to bid. Wédieve that most purchasing decisions in the
foodservice distribution industry are based up@anghality and price of the product distributed émel distributor’s ability to completely and
accurately fill orders and deliver them in a timedgnner.

Employees

As of December 27, 2013, we had approximately 1f@6time employees, none of which currently operateeural collective bargainit
agreement. Approximately 168, or 10%, of our empésy/voted to be represented by unions, a portiamhath relate to a recently acqui
business. We offer attractive compensation andfligreckages, and we believe our relationship with employees is satisfactory.

Regulation

As a distributor of specialty food products and treead seafood in the United States and Canadarevguéject to regulation by numerous
international, federal, state, provincial and laegulatory agencies. For example, at the U.Sré&tdievel, we are subject to the Federal Food,
Drug and Cosmetic Act, the Bioterrorism Act andulagjons promulgated by the U.S. Food and Drug Adsiriation (“FDA”"). The FDA
regulates manufacturing and holding requirement$ofads, specifies the standards of identity fotaia foods and prescribes the format and
content of certain information required to appeafaod product labels, among other responsibilities certain product lines, we are also
subject to the Federal Meat Inspection Act, theltRo®roducts Inspection Act, the Perishable Agtioal Commodities Act, the Country of
Origin Labeling Act and regulations promulgatedréumder by the U.S. Department of Agriculture (“USR The USDA imposes standards
for product quality and sanitation, including tinspection and labeling of meat and poultry prodaaots the grading and commercial accept
of produce shipments from vendors. In January 2Btdsident Obama signed into law the FDA Food $afetdernization Act, which greatly
expands the FDA'’s authority over food safety, idahg giving the FDA power to order the recall oafe foods, increase inspections at food
processing facilities, issue regulations regardiregsanitary transportation of food, enhance tragkind tracing requirements and order the
detention of food that it has “reason to belieweadulterated or misbranded, among other provisibms products we distribute in Canada are
also subject to regulation and inspection by He@lihada and the Canadian Food Inspection Agenays@apliers are also subject to similar
regulatory requirements and oversight. The faitareomply with applicable regulatory requiremertasild result in civil or criminal fines or
penalties, product recalls, closure of facilitieoperations, the loss or revocation of existingiises, permits or approvals or the failure to
obtain additional licenses, permits or approvalseaw jurisdictions where we intend to do business.
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We are also subject to state and local regulatiosugh such measures as the licensing of ourtiasilienforcement by state and local health
agencies of state and local standards for our ptsdand facilities and regulation of our trade ficags in connection with the sale of products.
Our facilities are generally inspected at leastuatiy by federal and/or state authorities. Thesdifees are also subject to inspections and
regulations issued pursuant to the Occupationat$aihd Health Act by the U.S. Department of Lakdrich require us to comply with certe
manufacturing, health and safety standards to groie employees from accidents and to establighidacommunication programs to transmi
information about the hazards of certain chemipedsent in certain products that we distribute. Camadian warehouse, distribution faciliti
repackaging activities and other operations alecsabject to regulation and inspection by the Ciamelfood Inspection Agency and provincial
health authorities.

Our trucking operations are regulated by the Serferansportation Board, the Federal Highway Adntiation, Transport Canada and
Canadian provincial transportation authoritiesadidition, interstate motor carrier operations agect to safety requirements prescribed b
U.S. Department of Transportation and other relefederal and state agencies. Such matters as tnaighdimension of equipment are also
subject to federal and state regulations. We belibat we are in compliance with applicable reguiatequirements relating to our motor
carrier operations. Our failure to comply with @ygplicable motor carrier regulations could resulsiibstantial fines or revocation of our
operating permits.

Our operations are subject to a broad range ofdéédsate, provincial and local environmental teahd safety laws and regulations, including
those governing discharges to air, soil and waterhandling and disposal of hazardous substameketha investigation and remediation of
contamination resulting from releases of petrolguoducts and other hazardous substances.

We believe that we are in material compliance withinternational, federal, state, provincial anddl regulations applicable to our operations,
and management is unaware of any related issuesthyahave a material adverse effect upon our legsirfinancial condition or results of
operations.

Litigation and Insurance

We may be subject to lawsuits, claims and assedsrirethe normal course of business. Our manageduad not believe that there are any
suits, claims or unasserted claims or assessmentsqy which would have a material adverse effeabar operations or financial condition.

We maintain comprehensive insurance packages esibect to our facilities, equipment, product lidildirectors and officers, workers’
compensation and employee matters in amounts whéfagement believes to be prudent and customalnyrvtite foodservice distribution
industry.

Seasonality

Excluding our direct-to-consumer business, we galyedo not experience any material seasonalitywél@r, our sales and operating results
may vary from quarter to quarter due to factordsag changes in our operating expenses, managenadility to execute our operating and
growth strategies, personnel changes, demand fgeroducts, supply shortages, weather patterngiandral economic conditions.

Our direct-to-consumer business is subject to seddlictuations, with direct-to-consumer centestiod-plate protein sales typically higher
during the holiday season in our fourth quartecpadingly, a disproportionate amount of operatiagtcflows from this portion of our business
is generated in the fourth quarter. Despite a Bagarit portion of these sales occurring in the fowuarter, there are operating expenses,
principally advertising and promotional expensbksytighout the year.

Inflation
Our profitability is dependent, among other things, our ability to anticipate and react to chanigethe costs of key operating resour
including food and other raw materials, labor, ggeand other supplies and services. Substantisgé@ses in costs and expenses could in

our operating results to the extent that such as®e cannot be passed along to our customersnipaet of inflation on food, labor, energy
occupancy costs can significantly affect the padiility of our operations.
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Available Information

Our principal executive office is located at 10GEaidge Road, Ridgefield, Connecticut 06877, amctelephone number is (203) 894-1345.
Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd=orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and mleadments to those reports will be
made available free of charge through the Invad®ations section of our website (http://www.chedsghouse.com) as soon as practicable
after such material is electronically filed with, farnished to, the Securities and Exchange Conianig8§SEC”). Material contained on our
website is not incorporated by reference into tport.

We have also adopted a Code of Business Condudtthns (“Code of Ethics”) that applies to all afremployees, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, pgipal accounting officer and controller. Our Cadé=thics is publicly available on the Investor
Relations section of our website (http://www.cheds@house.com) and is available free of charge lityngito The ChefsWarehouse, Inc., 1(
East Ridge Road, Ridgefield, Connecticut 0687 7n:Ativestor Relations. If we make any substantivermdments to the Code Ethics or grant
any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from agvision of the Code of Ethics to our principal eusve officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller, or pens performing similar functions, we intend to malkey legally required disclosures regarding
such amendments or waivers on the Investor Regention of our website (http://www.chefswarehccem).

Please note that our website address is providad asctive textual reference only.
The public may also read and copy any materials We file with the SEC at the SE€C'Public Reference Room at 100 F Street,
Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain infation on the operation of the Public ReferencerRby calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-

0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet webs#é ¢bntains reports, proxy and information statesemd other information regard
issuers, including us, that file electronically wwthe SEC located at http://www.sec.gov.
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Executive Officers

NAME & POSITION AGE
Christopher Pappas 54
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors
John Pappas 50
Vice Chairman and Director
John Austin 52
Chief Financial Officer & Assistant
Corporate Secretary
Frank O’ Dowd 56

Chief Information Officer

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Christopher Pappats our founder and has served as our chief exexofficer since 198
and has been a director on our board and our lmbaidman since our IPO, and he also
served as a director and the chairman of the bafandr predecessor company, Chefs’
Warehouse Holdings, LLC. He has been our presisiane April 11, 2009 and before that
was our president from our formation to JanuargQD7. Prior to founding our company,
Mr. C. Pappas played basketball professionallyurope for several years following his
graduation from Adelphi University in 1981 with a&helor of Arts degree in Business
Administration. Mr. C. Pappas currently overseésfabur business activities, with a foc
on product procurement, sales, marketing, stratlegglopment, business development
and operations

John Pappais a founder of our company and currently servesuavice chairman, a
position he has held since March 1, 2011. Fromf@aunding in 1985 to March 1, 2011, he
served as our chief operating officer. Mr. J. Papuas been a director on our board since
our IPO, and he also served as a director on thedbaf our predecessor company, Chefs’
Warehouse Holdings, LLC. He has over 25 years péggnce in logistics, facility
management and global procurement and overseewtwork of distribution centers
nationwide. Mr. J. Pappas is also active in theettgyment of our corporate strate

John Austiris our chief financial officer and assistant cogiersecretary, positions he has
held since July 1, 2012. Prior to joining our compae was a founder and chief financial
officer of The Hilb Group, LLC, a regional mittarket insurance brokerage firm forme
2009 which focuses primarily on property and casuakurance and employee benefits
services. Prior to joining The Hilb Group in 2008;. Austin was employed by
Performance Food Group Company (“PFG”), a Richmafidyinia-based publicly-traded
foodservice distributor, from 1995 to 2009. Mr. Ainserved his last six years at PFG as
that company’s chief financial officer. Prior tajong PFG, Mr. Austin spent four years as
the assistant controller for General Medical Coagion, a Richmond, Virginia-based
distributor of medical supplies. He also spentfitg six years of his career in public
accounting, primarily with the Richmond, Virginifioe of Deloitte & Touche

Frank C'Dowd is our chief information officer, a position he Hasld since February 15,
2007. Mr. O'Dowd has extensive experience managifigmation technology in rapidly
growing organizations. Prior to joining our compahg was the chief information officer
at GAF Materials Corporation, a North American ingfmanufacturer, from June 1997 to
April 2006, where he guided the company’s IT fuoitas the organization grew from a
regional supplier to a large multinational corpamat Mr. O’'Dowd’s prior professional
experience also includes experiences at Reed Els®&ewsweek Magazine and Wyeth
Pharmaceuticals. Mr. O’'Dowd holds a Bachelor ofsAtégree from The University of
Dayton and a Master of Arts degree from Stony Brookversity.
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Patricia Lecouras 58  Patricia Lecourasis our chief human resources officer, a positioa Isas held since Mar

Chief Human Resources Officer 5, 2007. Ms. Lecouras joined our company from GRitahCommercial Finance where
she was vice president, human resources from 202QG7. Prior to her time with GE
Capital Commercial Finance, Ms. Lecouras was witieNVest Shoes (f/k/a Fischer
Camuto Corporation) and Xerox. Ms. Lecouras’s [gsii@nal experience is
multidisciplinary and includes prior experience &iag in finance and tax-related
functions. She also has earned a six sigma mdsiek belt certification. Ms. Lecouras
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Psychology amdie® Work from Skidmore Colleg:

Alexandros Aldous 33  Alexandros Aldouis our general counsel, a position he has helaegoining us in March

General Counsel & Corporate Secretary 2011, and our corporate secretary, a position beénbll since July 27, 2011. Prior to
joining our company, he served as a legal consultahondon to Barclays Capital, tl
investment banking division of Barclays Bank PL@nfi November 2009 to December
2010. Mr. Aldous also served as an attorney withstha Farley & Williams from August
2008 to September 2009, where he specialized igengand acquisitions and capital
markets, and as an attorney with Shearman & StetlifP from October 2005 to August
2008, where he specialized in mergers and acanisitiMr. Aldous received a Bachelor
Arts degree in Classics and Government from Colblje@e, a Juris Doctor and M.A.
from American University and an LL.M. from the Laymd School of Economics and
Political Science. Mr. Aldous is licensed to praetlaw in the State of New York,
Washington, D.C. and England and Wales and is aatltbas house counsel in the State
of Connecticut
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition and results afrafions are subject to various risks and unceigaginncluding those described below and
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. ®astion discusses factors that, individually othia aggregate, we think could cause our
actual results to differ materially from our expegtiand historical results. Our business, finarmaldition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected by any of these ri¥Ke note these factors for investors as permiitethe Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995.

Our success depends to a significant extent uponeagal economic conditions, including disposable ome levels and changes in consumer
discretionary spending.

Because our target customers include menu-drivéep@ndent restaurants, fine dining establishmeats)try clubs, hotels, caterers, culinary
schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocolatiers, etirigs, casinos and specialty food stores, ounbss is exposed to reductions in disposable
income levels and discretionary consumer spendihg.continued uncertain economic environment inlhited States and Canada, coupled
with high unemployment rates, reduced home valaesgases in home foreclosures, high gas pricesstment losses, personal bankruptcies,
reduced access to credit and reduced consumedeoct, has adversely impacted consumers’ abildywélingness to spend discretionary
dollars. Economic conditions may remain volatilel @may continue to repress consumer confidence medetionary spending for the near
term. If the weak economy continues for a prolongedod of time or worsens, consumers may choospéad discretionary dollars less
frequently which could result in a decline in com&rs’ food-away-from-home purchases, particularlyniore expensive restaurants, and,
consequently, adversely impact the businessesrafumiomers by, among other things, reducing theuency with which our customers’
customers choose to dine out or the amount thaydspe meals while dining out. If our customersesallecrease, our profitability could
decline as we spread fixed costs across a lowem®lof sales. Moreover, if a prolonged downturmrmeertain outlook in the economy pers
for an extended period of time or becomes moregsive, consumers might ultimately make long-lastihgnges to their discretionary
spending behavior, including dining out less fraglyeon a permanent basis. Accordingly, adversaghsa to consumer preferences or
consumer discretionary spending, each of whichctbelaffected by many different factors which aweaf our control, could harm our
business, financial condition or results of op@rai Our continued success will depend in part uporability to anticipate, identify and
respond to changing economic and other conditiodstlae impact that those conditions may have ocrelinary consumer spending.

A significant portion of our future growth is depetent upon our ability to expand our operations imioexisting markets and to penetra
new markets through acquisitions.

We intend to expand our presence in our existingkatia by adding to our existing customer base thindhe expansion of our product portfc
and the increase in the volume and/or number aftfase orders from our existing customers. We caasgire investors in our common stock
however, that we will be able to continue to susfidl expand or acquire critical market presenteur existing markets, as we may not
successfully market our specialty food and centghe-plate products and brands or may encountgetaand/or more well-established
competitors with substantially greater financialoerces. Moreover, competitive circumstances andwmer characteristics in new segments
of existing markets may differ substantially fronose in the segments in which we have substaxjprgence. If we are unable to expand in
existing markets, our ability to increase our raxenand profitability may be affected in a mateaiadl adverse manner.

We also regularly evaluate opportunities to acqatheer companies. To the extent our future growttiuides acquisitions, we cannot assure
investors in our common stock that we will succalbgidentify suitable acquisition candidates, abtinancing for such acquisitions, if
necessary, consummate such potential acquisitdfestively and efficiently integrate any acquirentities or successfully expand into new
markets as a result of our acquisitions.

We may not achieve benefits expected from our asijiains.
We believe that there are risks related to acqgicmmpanies, including overpaying for acquisitidnsing key employees of acquired

companies, failing to identify potential liabilisgeassociated with the acquisition of the busineiss  our acquisition and failing to achieve
potential synergies. Additionally, our businesslddae adversely affected if we are unable to irdtythe companies we acquire.
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A significant portion of our past growth has beehiaved through acquisitions of or mergers witheofttistributors of specialty food products,
such as our completed acquisitions of Provvistaciaftg Foods, Inc. (“Provvista”), Praml InternatainLtd. (“Praml”), Michael's, Queensgate
Foodservice (“Queensgate”), Qzina and Allen Brah@ur future acquisitions, if any, may have a maltadverse effect on our results of
operations, particularly in periods immediatelyidaling the consummation of those transactions wthiéeoperations of the acquired business
are being integrated with our operations. Achievitmgbenefits of acquisitions depends on timelficieht and successful execution of a
number of post-acquisition events, including susftésntegration of the acquired entity. Integrati@quires, among other things:

« maintaining the existing customer and supplier lzagkpersonnel;
« optimizing delivery routes;

« coordinating administrative, distribution and ficarfunctions; and
« integrating management information systems andpes.

The integration process may temporarily rediresbueces previously focused on reducing product cestilting in lower gross profits in
relation to sales. In addition, the process of cminlgy companies could cause the interruption oy toss of momentum in, the activities of the
respective businesses, which could have an adeéfesg on their combined operations. In an efforstreamline the acquisition and integratior
process and achieve expected benefits and synengiesquickly, we are in the process of implemantn “integration team” that will be
dedicated to onboarding new acquisitions as quiakly efficiently as possible. Having a team deéidab integration will help make sure the
people, processes and products we acquire thrargghsitions are consistent with the rest of ourifess and will allow our management team
to focus its attention on our day-to-day operatidhwe are unable to implement the “integratioar® in a timely manner or at all, the
acquisition integration process could continueit@d the attention of management, and any diffieslor problems encountered in the
integration process could have a material advdfseten our business, financial condition or résalf operations.

In connection with our acquisition of businessethimfuture, if any, we may decide to consolidadperations of any acquired business with
our existing operations, as we have done with grexations of Harry Wils & Co. (“Harry Wils”), whictve acquired in 2011, and Praml, or
make other changes with respect to the acquireiddss which could result in special charges oelo#xpenses. Our results of operations alst
may be adversely affected by expenses we incumrking acquisitions, by amortization of acquisiti@tated intangible assets with definite
lives and by additional depreciation attributaldetquired assets. Any of the businesses we aaaiyealso have liabilities or adverse
operating issues, including some that we fail szaver before the acquisition, and our indemnitysfech liabilities typically has been limited
and may, with respect to future acquisitions, alsdimited. Additionally, our ability to make anytfire acquisitions may depend upon
obtaining additional financing or the consents of lenders. We may not be able to obtain this aadit financing or these consents on
acceptable terms or at all. Moreover, we may nedhance our acquisition activity with the issuaraf equity or debt securities, which may
have rights and preferences superior to those mé@mmon stock and, in the case of common equiyréées, may be issued at such prices
and in such amounts as may cause significant oliiuit our then-existing common stockholders. Toetkient we seek to acquire other
businesses in exchange for our common stock, ftictos in our stock price could have a materiakasky effect on our ability to complete
acquisitions.

In addition, although we enter into acquisitionesgments with each company or business we acquitedtain customary representations,
warranties, covenants and indemnities, there iguamantee that we will recover all of our lossexd thay result from a breach of such
agreement. For example, most acquisition agreencentsin baskets or deductibles and caps and tiotitaon damages and on periods in
which we may bring a claim. In addition, there &@nno guarantee that we will be successful on thtsof any claim that we bring arising
out of a breach of an acquisition agreement. Maggadhe costs that we incur to investigate a pakentatter may not be fully recoverable.

Also, as a result of an acquisition, we may entar & new business or market or offer productsdfigdr from our core business. Any such t
business or market or the sale and distributiomesf products may present new challenges for usywanahay not be able to overcome such
challenges. Moreover, we may seek to distributéfardnt set of products than the business thahaegiire, which may cause a loss of
customers of those businesses if we can no loragey the products they desire or charge more fosdhproducts than was charged before we
acquired the business.

Our failure to realize the benefits expected fram acquisitions could result in a reduction in giniee of our common stock as well as in

increased costs, decreases in the amount of expestenues and diversion of management’s time aachy and could materially and
adversely impact our business, financial conditonesults of operations.
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We may have difficulty managing and facilitating oduture growth.

At times since our inception, we have rapidly exgethour operations through organic growth, acqarsstor otherwise. This growth has
placed and will continue to place significant deainpon our administrative, operational and finaheisources. This growth, however, may
not continue. To the extent that our customer baskour distribution networks continue to growsthiture growth may be limited by our
inability to acquire new distribution facilities expand our existing distribution facilities, makeguisitions, successfully integrate acquired
entities, implement information systems initiatiesadequately manage our personnel.

Moreover, our future growth may be limited in playtthe size and location of our distribution cestéts we near maximum utilization of a
given facility, our operations may be constrainad aefficiencies may be created, which could aselgraffect our results of operations unles:
the facility is expanded, volume is shifted to dmeotfacility or additional processing capacity églad. Conversely, as we add additional
facilities or expand existing operations or fai@ht{ excess capacity may be created. Any excessitgmay also create inefficiencies and
adversely affect our results of operations. We oaiagsure investors in our common stock that webeilable to successfully expand our
existing distribution facilities or open new distution facilities in new or existing markets as dee to facilitate growth.

Even if we are able to expand our distribution reety our ability to compete effectively and to mgaduture growth, if any, will depend on
our ability to continue to implement and improvesggtional, financial and management informationiesys on a timely basis and to expand,
train, motivate and manage our employees. We caswire investors in our common stock that outiagigpersonnel, systems, procedures
and controls will be adequate to support the fugmosvth of our operations. Accordingly, our inatyilto manage our growth effectively could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial condition or results of operations.

Conditions beyond our control could materially affethe cost and/or availability of our specialtydd products or center-of-the-plate
products and/or interrupt our distribution networl

Our profitability and operating margins are dependgon, among other things, our ability to anttgand react to any interruptions in our
distribution network and changes to food costsaradlability. We obtain a significant portion of rospecialty food products and center-of-the-
plate products from local, regional, national ameinational third-party suppliers. We generallyndd enter into long-term contracts with our
suppliers whereby they would be committed to prepdoducts to us for any appreciable durationmétiAlthough our purchasing volume ¢
provide leverage when dealing with suppliers, pattirly smaller suppliers for whom we may be thaigest customer, suppliers may not
provide or may be unable to provide the speciabdfproducts or center-of-the-plate products walme¢he quantities and at the times and
prices we request. Failure to identify an alterrsaterce of supply for these items or comparabldyxts that meet our customers’ expectations
may result in significant cost increases. Additibnaveather, governmental regulation, water stgeta availability and seasonality may affect
our food costs or cause a disruption in the quanfibur supply. For example, weather patterngeent years have resulted in lower than
normal levels of rainfall and snowfall in key agiitiral states such as California, impacting tHegoof water and the corresponding prices of
food products grown in states facing drought coodg. Additionally, the route-to-market for sometio¢ products we sell, such as baking
chocolate, depends upon the stability of politetahates in developing nations, such as the IvargsE. In such countries, political and social
unrest may cause the prices for these productseada levels beyond those that our customers dliagvo pay, if the product is available at
all. If we are unable to obtain these products,austomers may seek a different supplier for tleesgher products which could negatively
impact our business, financial condition or resafteperations.

We do not currently use financial instruments tddeeour risk exposure to market fluctuations inghiee of food products. Similarly, our
suppliers may also be affected by higher costetioce or produce and transport food products, disawdy other related expenses that they
pass through to their customers, which could reésuitgher costs for the specialty food productsemter-of-the-plate products they supply to
us. Our inability to anticipate and react to chaggiood costs through our sourcing and purchasiagtiges in the future could therefore
negatively impact our business, financial condittomesults of operations.

We are also subject to material supply chain iofgions based upon conditions outside of our chrifittese interruptions could include work
slowdowns, work interruptions, strikes or other @ge employment actions taken by employees of mrppkhort-term weather conditions or
more prolonged climate change, crop conditionsgpecbrecalls, water shortages, transportation fimpgions within our distribution channels,
unavailability of fuel or increases in fuel costempetitive demands and natural disasters or a#ttestrophic events, such as food-borne
illnesses or bioterrorism. The efficiency and effegness of our distribution network is dependeraruour suppliers’ ability to consistently
deliver the specialty food products and meat, ppualhd seafood we need in the quantities and dtrties and prices we request. Accordingly,
if we are unable to obtain the specialty food paidwr meat, poultry or seafood that comprise aifiggnt percentage of our product portfolio
in a timely manner and in the quantities we regaest result of any of the foregoing factors oeotlise, we may be unable to fulfill our
obligations to customers who may, as a result gfsaich failure, resort to other distributors foeittfood product needs.
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Our increased distribution of center-of-the-platequucts, like meat, poultry and seafood, followingr acquisitions of Michael's and Allen
Brothers involves risks that we have not historiafaced.

With our acquisitions of Michael's and Allen BrotBea larger percentage of our revenues is expeécteame from center-of-thglate product
than has historically been the case. With our imsee distribution of center-of-the-plate produikts meat, poultry and seafood, we are more
susceptible to increases in the prices of thosdymts, and we cannot assure investors in our constomk that all or part of any increased
costs experienced by us from time to time can Issqxhalong to consumers of our products, in ayimelnner or at all. Conversely, rapid
downward pricing for these products, including assult of restrictions on the exporting of U.Sebproducts or lower demand internationally
for U.S. beef products, may result in our lowering prices to our customers even though our invgrdo hand is at a higher cost. The supply
and market price of our centefthe plate products are dependent upon a vasidictors over which we have no control, includthg relative
cost of feed and energy, weather, livestock disgaga/ernment regulation and the availability oéfhehicken and seafood.

The prices of our meat and poultry products amgeligrdependent on the production of feed ingrediemhich is affected primarily by the
global level of supply inventories and demand &&d ingredients, the agricultural policies of th&.land foreign governments and weather
patterns throughout the world. In particular, weatbatterns often change agricultural conditionarirunpredictable manner. A significant
change in weather patterns could affect supplidseaf ingredients, as well as the industry’s abtlit obtain feed ingredients or deliver
products. More recently, feed prices have been atapiaby increased demand both domestically fomethand globally for protein production.

Additionally, our center-of-the-plate businessubject to risks relating to animal health and diesa An outbreak of diseases affecting
livestock (such as foot-and-mouth disease or bosppongiform encephalopathy, commonly referred tmad cow disease) could result in
restrictions on sales of products, restrictionporchases of livestock from suppliers or widespmastruction of livestock. Outbreaks of
diseases, or the perception by the public thatutioreak has occurred, or other concerns regardgaases, can lead to inadequate supply,
cancellation of orders by customers and adverségitybany of which can have a significant negatimpact on consumer demand and, as a
result, on our business, financial condition ouhssof operations.

In addition, meat, seafood and poultry products weadistribute could be subject to recall becahsg are, or are alleged to be, contaminated
spoiled or inappropriately labeled. Our meat andltpp products may be subject to contamination isgase-producing organisms, or
pathogens, such assteria monocytogenesSalmonellaand generid&.coli. These pathogens are generally found in the emviemt, and, as a
result, there is a risk that they, as a resulbofifprocessing, could be present in our meat antirpgroducts. These pathogens can also be
introduced as a result of improper handling atatresumer level. These risks may be controlledpatgh not eliminated, by adherence to good
manufacturing practices and finished product tgstille have little, if any, control over proper hing before we receive the product or once
the product has been shipped to our customerssBland death may result if the pathogens ardinmihated before these products are sold to
customers.

We are also susceptible to increases in the potear seafood products. The prices of our seafooducts are largely dependent on the
continuous supply of fresh seafood, which in tusold be affected by a large number of factors,udirlg, but not limited to, environmental
factors, the availability of seafood stock, weatb@nditions, water contamination, the policies agglilations of the governments of the
relevant territories where such fishing is carived, the ability of the fishing companies and fishen that supply us to continue their
operations and pressure from environmental or driiglats groups. The major raw material for ourfeed products is fresh seafood, and any
shortage in supply or upsurge in demand of freafosel may lead to an increase in prices, which athsersely affect our profitability due to
increased production costs and lower profit margins

Our operations are subject to extensive regulaimhoversight by the USDA, the FDA and other feljastate, local and foreign authorities
regarding the processing, packaging, storage,ysafistribution, advertising and labeling of itoducts. Recently, food safety practices and
procedures in the meat processing industry have segject to more intense scrutiny and oversightheyUSDA. Failure to comply with
existing or new laws and regulations could resulidministrative penalties and injunctive religfilcemedies, fines, interruption of
operations, recalls of products or seizures of @rigs, potential criminal sanctions and persomaky or other damage claims. These reme
changes in the applicable laws and regulationssmoglery of currently unknown conditions could iease costs, limit business operations anc
reduce profitability.
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Our business is a low-margin business and our ptafiargins may be sensitive to inflationary and dafbnary pressures.

We operate within a segment of the foodserviceiligion industry, which is an industry charactedzy a high volume of sales with
relatively low profit margins. Although our profitargins are typically higher than more traditiobdadline foodservice distributors, they are
still relatively low compared to other industrigebfit margins. Most of our sales of specialty prots are at prices that are based upon produ
cost plus a percentage markup. As a result, veligibd costs have a direct impact upon our prafitpbProlonged periods of product cost
inflation may have a negative impact on our pnofirgins and results of operations to the exterdingaunable to pass on all or a portion of
such product cost increases to our customers.ditiaad, product cost inflation may negatively impaonsumer discretionary spending
decisions within our customers’ establishmentscvitiould adversely impact our sales. Converselyalige most of our sales of specialty
products are at prices that are based upon pradstplus a percentage markup, our profit levelg beanegatively impacted during periods of
product cost deflation even though our gross pesia percentage of sales may remain relativelgtant If our product mix changes, we may
face increased risks of compression of our margiasye may be unable to achieve the same levebéif pargins as we are able to capture ot
our traditional specialty products. For instance,hvave experienced increased margin compressiour iprotein category beginning in the tt
quarter of 2013. If this compression continues,aperating profit margin and results of operatioosld be materially and adversely impacted
To compensate for lower gross margins, we, in tommst reduce the expenses that we incur to seowviceustomers or our net income or
operating margin may be negatively impacted. Oability to effectively price our specialty food phacts or center-of-the-plate products, to
quickly respond to inflationary and deflationarystpressures and to reduce our expenses couldahaaterial adverse impact on our busines:
financial condition or results of operations.

Group purchasing organizations may become more @etin our industry and increase their efforts to d@ur customers as members of
these organizations.

Some of our customers, including a majority of batel customers, purchase their products from tesigh group purchasing organizations.
These organizations have increased their efforégtwegate the purchasing power of smaller, inddgatrrestaurants in an effort to lower the
prices paid by these customers on their foodsenviders, and we have experienced some pricing ymefom these purchasers. If these grou
purchasing organizations are able to add a sigmfioumber of our customers as members, we magrbed to lower the prices we charge
these customers in order to retain the businesshwiould negatively affect our business, financiahdition or results of operations.
Additionally, if we were unable or unwilling to lav the prices we charge for our products to a lthetlwas satisfactory to the group
purchasing organization, we may lose the businkg®ee of our customers that are members of thegnizations, which could have a
material adverse impact on our business, finaraatition or results of operations.

Because our foodservice distribution operations a@ncentrated in certain culinary markets, we anesseptible to economic and oth
developments, including adverse weather conditianghese areas.

Our financial condition and results of operations lsighly dependent upon the local economies otthi@ary markets in which we distribute
our products. In recent years, certain of these&ketahave been more negatively impacted by theatheronomic crisis, including
experiencing higher unemployment rates and weatesihg market conditions, than other areas of thiged States and Canada. Moreover,
sales of our specialty products in our New York kesrwhich we define as our operations on the Easist of the United States spanning fromn
Boston to Atlantic City, accounted for approximgtéP% of our net sales in our 2013 fiscal year. Akketherefore particularly exposed to
downturns in this regional economy. Any furtheredigration in the economic conditions of these retslgenerally, or in the local economy of
the New York metropolitan area, specifically, coaftect our business, financial condition or resolt operations in a materially adverse
manner.
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In addition, given our geographic concentrationkepregional occurrences such as adverse weaihditions, terrorist attacks and other
catastrophic events could have a material advéfset ®n our business, financial condition or résof operations. Adverse weather condition:
can significantly impact the business of our custsrand our ability to profitably and efficientlpreduct our operations and, in severe cases,
could result in our trucks being unable to makeveeles or cause the temporary closure or the detstn of one or more of our distribution
centers. Our operations and/or distribution centdrieh are located in (i) New York City, Ohio, Wasfjton D.C., Chicago and Canada are
particularly susceptible to significant amountsonbwfall and ice, (i) Miami are particularly sugptible to hurricanes and (iii) Los Angeles and
San Francisco are particularly susceptible to gagkes and mudslides. In addition, our restaunastbeners, many of which are independently
owned with operations limited to one or two marketay be less able to withstand the impact on thesiness from adverse weather condi
than national chain restaurants because they atdaito spread the risks of such events acrossnousécations. In some cases these
customers may not be able to re-open their restésjrand consequently make payment to us for ptsgueviously provided, if the weather
event or other catastrophic event is severe —qudatily if they lacked sufficient insurance or thisisurance claims are not processed quickly.

Due to their prominence as, among other charatitsislensely-populated major metropolitan citied as international hubs for intermodal
transportation, a majority of our markets are kn@sriargets for terrorist activity and other catagtic events. If our or our customers’
operations are significantly disrupted or if anya@r more of our distribution centers is tempoyacibsed or destroyed for any of the foregoing
reasons, our business, financial condition or tesafloperations may be materially adversely affiécin anticipation of any such adverse
weather conditions, terrorist attacks, man-madastiss or other unforeseen regional occurrencebawe implemented a disaster recovery
plan. Should any of these events occur, and if i@auaable to execute our disaster recovery plammes experience challenges in acquiring
and distributing our products, failures or delayshe recovery of critical data, delayed reportimgl compliance with governmental entities,
inability to perform necessary corporate functiansl other breakdowns in normal operating procedhascould have a material adverse
effect on our business and create exposure to &tnaitive and other legal claims against us.

Damage to our reputation or lack of acceptance afrspecialty food products, cent-of-the-plate products and/or the brands we carry i
existing and new markets could materially and adsely impact our business, financial condition orgwelts of operations.

We believe that we have built a strong reputat@rttie breadth and depth of our product portfolid the brands we carry and that we must
protect and grow their value to be successful inftiture. Any incident that erodes consumer comfigein or affinity for our specialty food or
center-of-theplate products or brands, whether or not justif@mlld significantly reduce their respective valaes damage our business. If
customers perceive or experience a reduction injtiadity or selection of our products and brandswrcustomer service, or in any way
believe that we failed to deliver a consistentlgifioe experience, our business, financial conditio results of operations may be affected in e
materially adverse manner.

A specialty foods distribution business such as @an be adversely affected by negative publiaityeavs reports, whether or not accurate,
regarding food quality issues, public health consgillness, safety, injury or government or indu$indings concerning our products or others
across the food distribution industry. Although naese taken steps to mitigate food quality, pubgelth and other foodservice-related risks,
these types of health concerns or negative puplicihnot be completely eliminated or mitigated exa/ harm our results of operations and
damage the reputation of, or result in a lack akatance of, our products or the brands we carry.

In addition, our ability to successfully penetratav markets may be adversely affected by a lacgkvaireness or acceptance of our product
portfolio or our brands in these new markets. Todhtent we are unable to foster name recognitioinaéfinity for our products and brands in
new markets, we may not be able to penetrate thaskets as anticipated, and, consequently, ourthrovay be significantly delayed or
impaired.

Our customers are generally not obligated to contehpurchasing products from us.

Most of our customers buy from us pursuant to irtlial purchase orders, as we generally do not émtefong-term agreements with our
customers for the purchase of our products. Becawseustomers are generally not obligated to cometipurchasing products from us, we
cannot assure investors in our common stock tleavdlume and/or number of our customers’ purchaders will remain constant or increase
or that we will be able to maintain or add to oxiisgng customer base. Significant decreases ivofigme and/or number of our customers’
purchase orders or our inability to retain or gimwy current customer base may have a material sehegfect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.
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We have experienced losses due to our inabilitgdtiect accounts receivable in the past and coukgherience increases in such losses in the
future if our customers are unable to pay their dskio us in a timely manner or at al

Certain of our customers have experienced bankyuptsolvency and/or an inability to pay their detd us as they come due. If our customer
suffer significant financial difficulties or bankptcies, they may be unable to pay their debts o astimely manner or at all. It is possible that
our customers may contest their obligations toymynder bankruptcy laws or otherwise. Even ifaugtomers do not contest their obligations
to pay us, if our customers are unable to pay theits to us in a timely manner, it could advergmlyact our ability to collect accounts
receivable and may require that we take largeripiavs for bad debt expense. Moreover, we may hawnegotiate significant discounts anc
extended financing terms with these customerséh susituation in an attempt to secure paymenpdtstanding debts. Accordingly, if we are
unable to collect upon our accounts receivablé@g tome due in an efficient and timely manner,lusginess, financial condition or results of
operations may be materially and adversely affeddenling periods of economic weakness, like thosehave recently experienced, small to
medium-sized businesses, like many of our indepeiméstaurant and fine dining establishment custspmeay be impacted more severely ant
more quickly than larger businesses. Consequehtyability of such businesses to repay their alians to us may deteriorate, and in some
cases this deterioration may occur quickly, whiobilld adversely impact our business, financial cimalior results of operations.

Product liability claims could have a material ad effect on our business, financial condition cgsults of operations

Like any other distributor of food products, wedam inherent risk of exposure to product liabitiigims if the products we sell cause injury ol
illness. We may be subject to liability, which coide substantial, because of actual or allegedantingtion in products sold by us, including
products sold by companies before we acquired théenhave, and the companies we have acquired taadidiability insurance with respect
product liability claims. This insurance may nohtinue to be available at a reasonable cost dt, a&ral it may not be adequate to cover
product liability claims against us or against afighe companies we have acquired. We generally seeatractual indemnification from
manufacturers or suppliers of the product, butsugh indemnification is limited, as a practical tegtto the creditworthiness of the
indemnifying party. If we or any of our acquiredgpanies do not have adequate insurance or cordgfactiemnification available, product
liability claims and costs associated with prodectalls, including a loss of business, could haweaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Increased fuel costs may have a material adverdeafon our business, financial condition or resslbf operations

Increased fuel costs may have a negative impaotiobusiness, financial condition or results ofragiens. The high cost of diesel fuel can
increase the price we pay for products as welhasbsts we incur to distribute products to outa@mers. These factors, in turn, may negati
impact our net sales, margins, operating expengsperating results. Although we have been abpa#s along a portion of increased fuel
costs to our customers in the past, there is ncagtee we can do so again. If fuel costs contiouernain at elevated levels, like those we are
currently experiencing, or increase in the futuve,may experience difficulties in passing all qraation of these costs along to our customers
which could have a material adverse effect on asirtess, financial condition or results of operadio

New information or attitudes regarding diet and higaor adverse opinions about the health effectstbé products we distribute could resi
in changes in consumer eating habits which couldueaa material adverse effect on our business, fineh condition or results of
operations.

Consumer eating habits may impact our businesgesuit of changes in attitudes regarding diettaealth or new information regarding the
health effects of consuming the products we digteblf consumer eating habits change significantly may be required to modify or
discontinue sales of certain items in our prodwctfplio, and we may experience higher costs assediwith the implementation of those
changes. Additionally, changes in consumer eataigjts may result in the enactment of laws and egguis that impact the ingredients and
nutritional content of our products or require aslisclose the nutritional content of products. @bamce with these laws and regulations, as
well as others regarding the ingredients and nerd content of our products, may be costly antetconsuming. We cannot make any
assurances regarding our ability to effectivelypoesl to changes in consumer health perceptionssoiftmg new laws or regulations or to ac
our menu offerings to trends in eating habits.
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We have significant competition from a variety afierces, and we may not be able to compete succhgsfu

The foodservice distribution industry is highlydgraented and competitive, and our future succesdwilargely dependent upon our ability to
profitably meet our customers’ needs for certainrgtet foods and ingredients, varying drop sizegh Isiervice levels and timely delivery. We
compete with numerous smaller distributors on alltevel as well as with a limited number of largeaditional broadline foodservice
distributors. We cannot assure investors in ourraomstock that our current or potential competiteitsnot provide specialty food products
and ingredients, protein items or services thatamparable or superior to those provided by usdapt more quickly than we do to evolving
culinary trends or changing market requirements. diso possible that alliances among competitag develop and rapidly acquire signific
market share. Accordingly, we cannot assure investoour common stock that we will be able to cetepeffectively against current and
future competitors, and increased competition nesylt in price reductions, reduced gross marginsl@ss of market share, any of which cc
have a material adverse effect our business, finboandition or results of operations.

Our substantial indebtedness may limit our abiliy invest in the ongoing needs of our business.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness. Bgoémber 27, 2013, we had approximately $147.lfomibf total indebtedness. In
particular, we had approximately $33.0 million datsling under our senior secured term loan fadlityl we had $100.0 million outstandingc
senior secured notes. In addition, at Decembe2@¥3 we owed $11.0 million under a constructiomlaabuild out our Bronx, NY distributic
facility, and we also had $3.7 million outstandingder capital leases and other financing agreenfientomputer equipment, vehicles and
software.

Our indebtedness could have important consequeéadegestors in our common stock. For example,iodebtedness:

« requires us to utilize a substantial portion of cash flows from operations to make payments onralebtedness, reducing the
availability of our cash flows to fund working céadi capital expenditures, development activity atiter general corporate purpos

« increases our vulnerability to adverse general @eon or industry conditions;

« limits our flexibility in planning for, or reactintp, changes in our business or the industrieshichwve operate;

« makes us more vulnerable to increases in inteagss ras borrowings under our senior secured mamfhcility and senior secured
revolving credit facility are at variable rate

« limits our ability to obtain additional financing the future for working capital or other purposasjuding to finance acquisitions; a

« places us at a competitive disadvantage comparedrtoompetitors that have less indebtedness.

If our earnings are insufficient to fund our opéras, including our acquisition growth strategy, wi# need to raise additional capital or issue
additional debt, including longer-term, fixed-rakebt, to pay our indebtedness as it comes due aurasvailability under our senior secured
revolving credit facility is exhausted. If we aneable to obtain funds necessary to make requirgoheats or if we fail to comply with the
various requirements of our senior secured craditifies or the agreement governing our seniousstnotes, we would be in default, which
would permit the holders of our indebtedness tekecate the maturity of the indebtedness and coalde defaults under any indebtedness wi
may incur in the future. Any default under our ihtieginess requiring the repayment of outstandingpladngs would have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations. If we are unable to refinanceepay our indebtedness as it becomes due,
we may become insolvent and be unable to contipeeations.

Although the agreements governing our senior seccredit facilities and our senior secured notegaia restrictions on the incurrence of
additional indebtedness, these restrictions argesutn a number of qualifications and excepti@rg] the indebtedness incurred in compliance
with these restrictions could be substantial. Ateese restrictions do not prevent us from incigrobligations that do not constitute
indebtedness.
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The agreements governing our senior secured deailities and our senior secured notes requireusaintain fixed charge coverage ratios
and leverage ratios which become more restrictig ime. Our ability to comply with these ratiosthe future may be affected by events
beyond our control, and our inability to comply lwthe required financial ratios could result inedadilt under our senior secured credit
facilities or our senior secured notes. In the ée¢revents of default, the lenders under our sesgcured credit facilities or the holders of our
senior secured notes could elect to terminate tendommitments and declare all borrowings outstagidiogether with accrued and unpaid
interest and other fees, to be immediately duepaydble. See “Management’s Discussion and Anabfdisnancial Condition and Results of
Operations— Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

We have broad discretion as to how to use the rerimaj net proceeds from our September 2013 commarlsioffering and might not apply
those proceeds in ways that increase the valuerofrevestment in shares of our common stock.

We utilized approximatel§ 12.5 million of the net proceeds from our Septen#3 common stock offering to repay all of thenthe
outstanding borrowings under the revolving creadilfty portion of our senior secured credit faads, and we subsequently used approxim
$23.9 million to finance our acquisition of Allerr@®hers. Our management team has broad discretiosing the remaining net proceeds from
that offering. We currently expect to use the ramimagj portion of the net proceeds from our commawlsbffering for general corporate
purposes, which may include the acquisition of &oldal businesses that complement our businesdl. tbese proceeds are used, we plan to
invest them in investment-grade, interest-beanmngstments, and these investments may not yigdg@dble rate of return. If we do not invest
or apply the remaining net proceeds from our comstook offering in ways that enhance stockholdéuesave may fail to achieve expected
financial results, which could cause our stocket decline.

Our ability to raise capital in the future may bénited.

Our business and operations may consume resotmckgling availability under our senior securedaling credit facility, faster than we
currently anticipate. In the future, we may needdise additional funds through the issuance of equity securities, debt, including longer-
term, fixed-rate debt, or a combination of bothd#ibnal financing may not be available on favoetdrms or at all. If adequate funds are not
available on acceptable terms, we may be unalilentbour capital requirements or grow our busirteesugh acquisitions, or otherwise. If we
issue new debt securities, the debt holders woang hights senior to those of our common stockhsltemake claims on our assets, and the
terms of any debt could restrict our operationsluiding our ability to pay dividends on our comnaiack. If we issue additional equity
securities, existing stockholders will experiendatobn, and the new equity securities could hagéts senior to those of our common stock.
Because our decision to issue securities in anydutffering will depend upon market conditions atiger factors beyond our control, we
cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing dureaof our future offerings. Thus, our stockho&lbear the risk of our future securities
offerings reducing the market price of our commimtls and diluting their interest.

We may be unable to obtain debt or other financinggluding financing necessary to execute on ourcagsition strategy, on favorable tern
or at all.

There are inherent risks in our ability to borrogbticapital. Our lenders, including the lendersipi@ating in our senior secured credit
facilities, and the holders of our senior securetdés may have suffered losses related to theiidgrashd other financial relationships,
especially because of the general weakening antthoea uncertainty of the national economy overghst five years, increased financial
instability of many borrowers and the decliningueabf their assets. As a result, lenders may bedosodvent or tighten their lending
standards, which could make it more difficult farto borrow under our senior secured revolvingitfedility, refinance our existing
indebtedness or obtain other financing on favorsdries or at all. Our access to funds under ouossecured credit facilities is dependent
upon the ability of our lenders to meet their furgdcommitments. Our financial condition and resafteperations would be adversely affectec
in a material manner if we were unable to draw fundder our senior secured revolving credit fachiécause of a lender default or if we had
to obtain other cost-effective financing.

Longer term disruptions in the capital and credirkets as a result of uncertainty, changing orgased regulation, reduced alternatives or
failures of significant financial institutions cabibdversely affect our access to liquidity neeadtir business. Any disruption could requirt
to take measures to conserve cash until the mastaigize or until alternative credit arrangemestt®ther funding for our business can be
arranged. Such measures could include deferringat@xpenditures (including our entry into new kets, including through acquisitions) and
reducing or eliminating other discretionary usesash.
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Information technology system failures or breachesour network security could interrupt our operatns and adversely affect our busine

We rely upon our computer systems and network $trfis@ture across our operations. Our businessvegdhe storage and transmission of
many types of sensitive or confidential informatiorcluding customers’ and suppliers’ personal infation, private information about
employees, and financial and strategic informatibaut us and our operations. Our operations deppod our ability to protect our computer
equipment and systems against damage from phykiefdl fire, power loss, telecommunications failoreother catastrophic events, as well as
from internal and external security breaches, @susvorms and other disruptive problems. Any danmadailure of our computer systems or
network infrastructure that causes an interrupitioour operations could have a material adverscefin our business, financial condition or
results of operations. Although we employ bothrimé resources and external consultants to coraiditing and testing for weaknesses in ou
systems, controls, firewalls and encryption andndtto maintain and upgrade our security technotogloperational procedures to prevent
such damage, breaches or other disruptive problimas can be no assurance that these securityunesaaill be successful.

Our investments in information technology may notqauce the benefits that we anticipate.

In an attempt to reduce our operating expenseszase our operational efficiencies and boost oaraimg margins, we have aggressively
invested in the development and implementationesi mformation technology. We may not be able tplament these technological changes
in the time frame we have planned, and any delaysplementation could negatively impact our busgdinancial condition or results of
operations. In addition, the costs to make thesmgbs may exceed our estimates and will likely ed@ny benefits that we realize during the
early stages of implementation. Even if we are &blenplement the changes as planned, and withircost estimates, we may not be able
achieve the expected efficiencies and cost safings these investments which could have an adweffeet on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

We may not be able to adequately protect our irgeflial property, which, in turn, could harm the ua of our brands and adversely affect
our business.

Our ability to implement our business plan sucadlstlepends in part upon our ability to furtheilddrand recognition, including for our
proprietary products, using our trademarks, semriagks and other proprietary intellectual propergluding our names and logos. We have
registered or applied to register a number of mddamarks. We cannot assure investors in our constoak that our trademark applications
will be approved. Third parties may also opposetrademark applications, or otherwise challengeuser of the trademarks. In the event that
our trademarks are successfully challenged, weddoeifforced to rebrand our goods and services,hwdoald result in loss of brand
recognition and could require us to devote res@utceadvertising and marketing new brands. If dforts to register, maintain and protect our
intellectual property are inadequate, or if anydhgarty misappropriates, dilutes or infringes upan intellectual property, the value of our
brands may be harmed, which could have a matahadrae effect on our business, financial conditioresults of operations and might pre\
our brands from achieving or maintaining marketegtance.

We may also face the risk of claims that we haféniged third parties’ intellectual property rightéthird parties claim that we have infringed
or are infringing upon their intellectual properights, our operating profits could be affectedimaterially adverse manner. Any claims of
intellectual property infringement, even those withmerit, could be expensive and time consumindefend, require us to rebrand our
services, if feasible, divert management’s attenéind resources or require us to enter into royalticensing agreements in order to obtain th
right to use a third party’s intellectual properyny royalty or licensing agreements, if requiredqy not be available to us on acceptable term
or at all. A successful claim of infringement agins could result in our being required to payiigant damages, enter into costly license or
royalty agreements, or stop the sale of certaidyts or services, any of which could have a negapact on our business, financial
condition or results of operations and could hatmfature prospects.
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Our business operations and future development ecbhbé significantly disrupted if we lose key membefour management team.

The success of our business significantly depepds the continued contributions of our founders ke employees, both individually and as
a group. Our future performance will substantiaipend upon our ability to motivate and retain §bpher Pappas, our chairman, president
and chief executive officer, John Pappas, our ei@rman, and John Austin, our chief financial @dfiand assistant corporate secretary, as
as certain other senior key employees. The lofiseo$ervices of any of our founders or key empleya®luding key employees of the
businesses we have acquired, could have a mateiiatse effect on our business, financial conditioresults of operations. We have no
reason to believe that we will lose the serviceanyf of these individuals in the foreseeable futbhoavever, we currently have no effective
replacement for any of these individuals due tdr tivgperience, reputation in the foodservice disttion industry and special role in our
operations.

Our insurance policies may not provide adequatedksvof coverage against all claims, and fluctuatimggurance requirements and costs
could negatively impact our profitability. In adddn, if we fail to establish proper reserves andeaglately estimate future expenses, the ¢
associated with our self-insured group medical, ers’ compensation liability and auto liability plss may adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations

We believe that our insurance coverage is custofiaayusinesses of our size and type. Howevergethes types of losses we may incur that
cannot be insured against or that we believe arearamercially reasonable to insure. These losdesyld they occur, could have a material
and adverse effect on our business, financial ¢cmmdor results of operations. In addition, thetawfsvorkers’ compensation insurance, genera
liability insurance and directors’ and officerslliility insurance fluctuates based upon our hisabrends, market conditions and availability.
Because our operations principally are centerédrge, metropolitan areas, our insurance costhigteer than if our operations and facilities
were based in more rural markets. Additionally,Itiemsurance costs in general have risen sigmflgaover the past few years. These
increases, as well as federal legislation requieimgployers to provide specified levels of heal$umance to all employees, could have a
negative impact upon our business, financial camdior results of operations, and there can bessarance that we will be able to success!
offset the effect of such increases with plan modtfons and cost control measures, additionalatpey efficiencies or the pass-through of
such increased costs to our customers.

Effective October 1, 2011, we began maintainingl&iasured group medical program. We record ailitgifor medical claims during the
period in which they occur as well as an estimé&iaaurred but not reported claims. Managementrdeitees the adequacy of these accruals
based on a monthly evaluation of our historicainetaexperience and medical cost trends. Projectibfisture loss expenses are inherently
uncertain because of the random nature of insurelag@s occurrences and could be significantlyciéd if future occurrences and claims
differ from these assumptions and historical tretidse suffer a substantial loss that is not cedeby our self- insurance reserves, the loss ar
attendant expenses could harm our business andtimgeresults. We have purchased stop loss covéragethird parties which limits our
exposure above the amounts we have self-insured.

Effective August 1, 2012, we are self-insured farkers’ compensation and automobile liability taldetibles or self-insured retentions of
$350,000 for workers compensation and $250,00@ditomobile liability per occurrence. The amountsxaess of our deductibles are fully
insured by third party insurers. Liabilities assdet with this program are estimated in part byst®ring historical claims experience and cos
trends. Projections of future loss expenses areréntily uncertain because of the random naturesofrance claims occurrences and could be
significantly affected if future occurrences andieis differ from these assumptions and historieaids.

Increases in our labor costs, including as a resoftlabor shortages, the unionization of some ofrassociates, the price or unavailability
insurance and changes in government regulation cddlow our growth or harm our business.

We are subject to a wide range of labor costs. Bseaur labor costs are, as a percentage of reselnigher than other industries, we may be
significantly harmed by labor cost increases.

Our operations are highly dependent upon our egpeeid and sophisticated sales professionals. @@ahlifdividuals have historically been in
short supply and an inability to attract and rethem may limit our ability to expand our operagan existing markets as well as our ability to
penetrate new markets. We can make no assurarateselwill be able to attract and retain qualifiedividuals in the future. Additionally, the
cost of attracting and retaining qualified indivédsi may be higher than we currently anticipate,ad result, our profitability could decline.
We are subject to the risk of employment-relatiégddtion at both the state and federal levelsudiclg claims styled as class action lawsuits,
which are more costly to defend. Also, some empleytelated claims in the area of wage and hoyruties are not insurable risks.
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Despite our efforts to control costs while stilbpiding competitive healthcare benefits to ourfstaémbers, significant increases in healthcare
costs continue to occur, and we can provide norassa that our cost containment efforts in thimavél be effective. Moreover, we are
continuing to assess the impact of federal heaithlesyislation on our healthcare benefit costs,sigdificant increases in such costs could
adversely impact our operating results. There iaggurance that we will be able to pass througlkdbes of such legislation in a manner that
will not adversely impact our operating results.

In addition, many of our delivery and warehousespenel are hourly workers subject to various minimuaage requirements. Mandated
increases in minimum wage levels have recently l@eihcontinue to be proposed and implemented htfederal and state government levels
Minimum wage increases may increase our labor costs

We are also subject to the regulations of the Qifizenship and Immigration Services and U.S. Qustand Immigration Enforcement. Our
failure to comply with federal and state labor laav&l regulations, or our employees’ failure to nfederal citizenship or residency
requirements, could result in a disruption in owrkvforce, sanctions or fines against us and advauslicity.

As we increase our employee base and broaden stubdtion operations to new geographic marketduiling as a result of acquisitions, our
increased visibility could result in increased gp&nded union-organizing efforts or we may acghirsinesses with unionized workforces, as
was the case with our acquisition of Allen Brothénao labor unions were recently certified to reganet bargaining units at our Chicago and
New York facilities. Negotiations with these unica® in the early stages, and currently the baigginnit workers are working without
collective bargaining agreement. Although we haveaxperienced a work stoppage to date, if we aable to successfully negotiate union
contracts, if additional employees were to uniomiz& we acquire additional businesses with urdediemployees, we could be subject to \
stoppages and increases in labor costs, eithehiohveould have a material adverse effect on osirass, financial condition or results of
operations.

We are subject to significant governmental regutatiiand failure to comply could subject us to enferaent actions, recalls or other
penalties, which could have a material adverse effen our business, financial condition or resultf operations.

Our business is highly regulated at the federatesind local levels, and our specialty food prtgjuneat, poultry and seafood products and
distribution operations require various licensesngts and approvals. For example:

» the products we distribute in the United Statessaigect to regulation and inspection by the FDA d#re USDA, and the products we
distribute in Canada are subject to regulation balth Canada and the Canadian Food Inspection Ag

« our warehouse, distribution facilities, repackagingjvities and other operations also are subfeatgulation and inspection, as
applicable, by the FDA, the USDA, Health Canade,@anadian Food Inspection Agency and state andnaial health authorities;
and

« our U.S. and Canadian trucking operations are stiljeregulation by, as applicable, the U.S. Departt of Transportation, the U.S.
Federal Highway Administration, Transport Canadéd provincial transportation authoritie

Our suppliers are also subject to similar reguiateguirements and oversight. The failure to comwily applicable regulatory requirements
could result in civil or criminal fines or penakieproduct recalls, closure of facilities or openas, the loss or revocation of any existing
licenses, permits or approvals or the failure ttawbadditional licenses, permits or approvalsawjurisdictions where we intend to do
business, any of which could have a material adveffect on our business, financial condition @utes of operations.
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In addition, as a distributor and repackager oty food products and meat, poultry and seafomdiucts, we are subject to increasing
governmental scrutiny of and public awareness diggrfood safety and the manufacture, sale, paokagtorage and marketing of natural,
organic and other food products. Compliance witséhlaws may impose a significant burden upon pearations. If we were to distribute
foods that are or are perceived to be contaminatestherwise not in compliance with applicable $aany resulting product recalls could have
a material adverse effect on our business, finhooiadition or results of operations. In Januarg20President Obama signed into law the |
Food Safety Modernization Act, which greatly expatite FDAS authority over food safety, including giving thBA power to order the rec.

of unsafe foods, increase inspections at food |3ng facilities, issue regulations regarding teitary transportation of food, enhance
tracking and tracing requirements and order therdiin of food that it has “reason to believe” dsikerated or misbranded, among other
provisions. The FDA has taken a number of stepspbement the law, including, among others, theasge of proposed rules on preventive
controls and to strengthen the oversight of impbfteds. We cannot assure investors in our comrawk $hat these actions will not adversely
impact us or others in our industry, including digis of the products we sell, many of whom arelsstwale producers who may be unable or
unwilling to bear the expected increases in cost®mpliance and as a result cease operationsértegpass along these costs to us.

Additionally, concern over climate change, incluglthe impact of global warming, has led to sigmifitU.S. and international legislative and
regulatory efforts to limit greenhouse gas (“GH®Missions. Increased regulation regarding GHG eomissespecially diesel engine
emissions, could impose substantial costs upomhese costs include an increase in the cost dii#leand other energy we purchase and
capital costs associated with updating or replaoimgvehicles prematurely.

Until the timing, scope and extent of such regalathecomes known, we cannot predict its effectumbaisiness, financial condition or results
of operations. It is reasonably possible, howetrert, such regulation could impose material costaowhich we may be unable to pass on to
our customers.

Federal, state, provincial and local tax rules ihg United States and Canada may adversely impacthusiness, financial condition or
results of operations.

We are subject to federal, state and local taxélsarnited States, as well as federal, provirenal local taxes in Canada. Although we believ
that our tax estimates are reasonable, if thenatdRevenue Service (“IRS”) or any other taxinghauity disagrees with the positions we have
taken on our tax returns, we could face additismaliability, including interest and penaltiesnifaterial, payment of such additional amounts
upon final adjudication of any disputes could haveaterial impact on our business, financial coonior results of operations. In addition,
complying with new tax rules, laws or regulatiosild impact our business, financial condition @ulées of operations, and increases to
federal, provincial or state statutory tax rated ather changes in tax laws, rules or regulatioag mcrease our effective tax rate. Any increas
in our effective tax rate could have a materialactpon our business, financial condition or resoitsperations.

The price of our common stock may be volatile anat stockholders could lose all or part of their iegtment.

Volatility in the market price of our common stogtay prevent our stockholders from being able tbtkelr shares at or above the price the
stockholders paid for their shares. The marketpoicour common stock could fluctuate significarity various reasons, which include the
following:

« our quarterly or annual earnings or those of otlo@npanies in our industry;

« changes in laws or regulations, or new interpretetior applications of laws and regulations, thataplicable to our business;

« the public’s reaction to our press releases, dugrgbublic announcements and our filings with tB€S

« changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretations or principles;

« additions or departures of our senior managemesbpael;

« sales of common stock by our directors and exeeutfficers;

« adverse market reaction to any indebtedness wemoay or securities we may issue in the future;

« actions by stockholders;

« the level and quality of research analyst covefageur common stock, changes in financial estimateinvestment recommendatic
by securities analysts following our business dufa to meet such estimate
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« the financial disclosure we may provide to the mytainy changes in such disclosure or our failanméet projections included in our
public disclosure

« various market factors or perceived market factoduding rumors, whether or not correct, involyias, our customers, our
distributors or suppliers or our competitc

- introductions of new products or new pricing p@iby us or by our competitors;

» acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or ounpetitors;

- short sales, hedging and other derivative trarsastin our common stock;

- the operating and stock price performance of atberpanies that investors may deem comparable t@ndss;

» other events or factors, including changes in gdreanditions in the United States and global ecairs or financial markets
(including those resulting from acts of God, wacidents of terrorism or responses to such eve

Concentration of ownership among our existing exéise officers, directors and their affiliates maygvent new investors from influencing
significant corporate decisions

As of March 5, 2014, our executive officers, diestand their affiliates beneficially owned, in giggregate, approximately 23.3% of our
outstanding shares of common stock. In partic@arjstopher Pappas, our president and chief exexafficer, and John Pappas, our vice
chairman, beneficially owned approximately 21.4%of outstanding shares of common stock as of May@914. As a result of their
significant individual ownership levels, these &toalders will be able to exercise a significantdlesf control over all matters requiring
stockholder approval, including the election okdiors, amendment of our certificate of incorparatind approval of significant corporate
transactions. This control could have the effeaedfying or preventing a change of control of campany or changes in management anc
make the approval of certain transactions diffionlimpossible without the support of these stoddiéics.

If securities analysts or industry analysts downg&our stock, publish negative research or repatsdo not publish reports about ot
business, our stock price and trading volume codlecline.

The trading market for our common stock will bduehced by the research and reports that industsgaurities analysts publish about us, ou
business and our industry. If one or more anadt®ersely change their recommendation regardingtogk or our competitors’ stock, our
stock price may likely decline. If one or more 3¢ cease coverage of us or fail to regularly ishleports on us, we could lose visibility in
the financial markets, which in turn could causesiock price or trading volume to decline.

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foresdedhture and our stock may not appreciate in value

We currently intend to retain our future earnirigany, to finance the operation and growth of business and do not expect to pay any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. As a reshiét,quccess of an investment in shares of our constock will depend upon any future
appreciation in its value. There is no guaranteé shares of our common stock will appreciate lnear that the price at which our
stockholders have purchased their shares will betatbe maintained.

Our issuance of preferred stock or debt securitezrild adversely affect holders of our common st@aid discourage a takeover.

Our board of directors is authorized to issue up,0®0,000 shares of preferred stock without atipaon the part of our stockholders. Our
board of directors also has the power, withoutldtotder approval, to set the terms of any serigweferred stock that may be issued, inclu
voting rights, dividend rights, preferences over common stock with respect to dividends or inglient of a dissolution, liquidation or
winding up and other terms. In the event that waespreferred stock in the future that has preter@ver our common stock with respect to
payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dlason or winding up, or if we issue preferred dtatith voting rights that dilute the voting
power of our common stock, the rights of the had&rour common stock or the market price of ounemwn stock could be adversely affec

In addition, the ability of our board of directdesissue shares of preferred stock without anyaaiin the part of our stockholders may impede
a takeover of us and prevent a transaction faverabbur stockholders.
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Additionally, in the future, we may need to raisilidional funds through the issuance of new detafuiding longer-term, fixed-rate debt. If we
issue new debt securities, the debt holders woang hights senior to those of our common stockhsltemake claims on our assets, and the
terms of any debt could restrict our operationsluding our ability to pay dividends on our comnsiack.

Some provisions of our charter documents and Delagviaw may have an-takeover effects that could discourage an acquésitof us by
others, even if an acquisition would be benefictalour stockholders, and may prevent attempts by steckholders to replace or remove c
current management.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation dmdaws as well as provisions of the Delaware Gdr@saporation Law could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquire us or incssathe cost of acquiring us, even if doing so wdaddefit our stockholders, including
transactions in which stockholders might otherwesseive a premium for their shares. These provisinalude:

« authorizing the issuance of “blank check” preferstatk, the terms of which may be established &agdes of which may be issued
without stockholder approve

« prohibiting stockholder action by written consehgreby requiring all stockholder actions to beetalat a meeting of our stockholde
« eliminating the ability of stockholders to call gesial meeting of stockholders; and

« establishing advance notice requirements for notioing for election to the board of directors or flooposing matters that can be
acted upon at stockholder meetin
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Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The following table sets forth the location, pupasd approximate size of our distribution and omafe facilities as of March 5, 2014:

Approximate Size

Name/Location Owned/Leased Purpose (Sq. Feet)
Ridgefield, Connectict Leasec Corporate Headquarte 20,00(
Bronx, New York #1 Leasec Distribution Cente 120,00(
Bronx, New York #Z Leasec Distribution Cente 138,50(
Columbus, Ohio Processing Facility/Distributic

Leasec Center 60,00(
Pine Brook, N. Leasec Distribution Cente 26,70(
Cincinnati, Ohic Owned Distribution Cente 66,50(
Chicago, lllinois Leasec Distribution Cente 9,50(
Chicago, lllinois Owned Processing Facilit 18,10(
Chicago, lllinois Owned Distribution Cente 13,00(
Hanover, Marylanc Leasec Distribution Cente 55,20(
Miami, Florida Leasec Distribution Cente 27,00(
Pompano Beach, Floric Leasec Distribution Cente 24,20(
Los Angeles, Californii Leasec Distribution Cente 80,00(
Downey, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 40,30(
Hayward, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 40,00(
Burlingame, Californie Leasec Distribution Cente 9,60(
Las Vegas, Nevac Leasec Distribution Cente 29,80(
Seattle, Washingto Leasec Distribution Cente 10,50(
Richmond, BC, Canac Leasec Distribution Cente 15,60(
Toronto, ON, Canad Leasec Distribution Cente 25,50(
Edmonton, AB, Canac Leasec Distribution Cente 11,50(
Portland, Oregol Leasec Distribution Cente 46,50(
Total Square Fet 888,00(

We consider our properties to be in good conditjenerally and believe our facilities are adequatefir operations and provide sufficient
capacity to meet our anticipated requirements.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various lggateedings that arise from the normal course sinass activities. If an unfavorable ruling
were to occur, there exists the possibility of derial adverse impact on our results of operatipnsspects, cash flows, financial position and
brand. We are not currently aware of any pendiniipi@atened legal proceeding against us that dualé a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results or financial condition.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Common Stock

Our common stock is publicly traded under the syiiB&IEF”. From July 28, 2011 through December 30, 2011, ooraon stock was trad:
on the NASDAQ Global Market. Since January 3, 2@L&,common stock has been trading on the NASDAGb&ISelect Market. The
following table sets forth the high and low sal&Ees for our common stock for the fiscal period$iéated as reported by the Nasdaq Stock
Market during the indicated quarters.

Common Stock Price

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 201

First Quartel $ 19.8¢ $ 14.7:2
Second Quarte $ 21.0¢ $ 16.2¢
Third Quartel $ 24.1( $ 17.0C
Fourth Quarte $ 29.3: $ 22.1:
Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 201

First Quartel $ 23.7¢ $ 16.5¢
Second Quarte $ 27.2¢ $ 16.0:2
Third Quartel $ 18.8¢ $ 12.5¢
Fourth Quarte $ 17.15 $ 13.8¢

On March 5, 2014, the closing price of our commimtls on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was $22%088 share. As of March 5, 2014,
there were 35 holders of record of our common stébks does not include the number of persons whtisek is in nominee or “street” name
accounts through brokers.

We have never paid a cash dividend on our comnamk stnd do not anticipate paying any cash dividemdsur common stock in the
foreseeable future. Furthermore, we are prohilfitet paying cash dividends under the terms of enia secured credit facilities and the
agreement governing our senior secured notes withewconsent of the lenders or noteholders, reisjedg thereunder.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock during thegakefrom July 28, 2011 (the first day
our stock began trading on the NASDAQ Stock Marketpugh December 27, 2013 with the cumulativel tetturn on the NASDAQ
Composite and the S&P Smallcap Food Distributoeind’he comparison assumes that $100 was investddly 28, 2011 in our common
stock and in each of the foregoing indices andrassueinvestment of dividends, if any.

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933 or i
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amenaedpeto the extent that we specifically incorpersitich information by reference into such
filing.
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COMPARISON OF 2 YEAR 5 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETUR N
AMONG THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.
NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX AND THE S&P SMALLCAP FOOD DI STRIBUTOR INDEX

|

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JULY 28, 2011

December 30 December 28 December 27
July 28, 2011 2011 2012 2013
The Chef¢ Warehouse, Inc. $ 100.0¢( $ 102.0¢ $ 88.0( $ 166.5:
NASDAQ Composite Index $ 100.0( $ 102.1: $ 103.7: $ 166.3¢
S&P Smaller Fund Distributed Index $ 100.0¢ $ 96.4: $ 110.3( $ 199.9(

We made no repurchases of our equity securitiehéoguarter ended December 27, 2013.
Equity Compensation Plan Information

See Part lll, Item 12 for information regarding weéties authorized for issuance under our equitypgensation plans.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data presdratmv as of the end of each of the fiscal yeatbénfive-year period ended December 27,

2013 have been derived from our or our predecessuopany’s audited consolidated financial stateméfite data set forth below is qualified
by reference to, and should be read in conjunaiiidm our consolidated financial statements andrtheies and “ManagementDiscussion an
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems” included elsewhere in this Annual Reporfanm 10K. Our consolidated statems

of operations for the year ended December 30, 20hiained a 5% week while all other years presented contained &ks.

On July 27, 2011, we converted our company fromek®are limited liability company (Chefs’ Warehouseldings, LLC) to a Delaware
corporation (The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.). For addél information regarding the conversion, seeeNbto the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this Annual Report on FoBrK1The selected consolidated financial data preegkbelow relate to Chefs’ Warehouse
Holdings, LLC and its consolidated subsidiariesgderiods prior to the conversion and to The Chéfarehouse, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries for periods following the conversion.

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
(Amounts presented in thousands, except for peesdraounts)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED

Statement of Operations Data December 27 December 2€ December 3C December 24 December 2&
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Net sales $ 673,54! $ 480,29:. $ 400,63: $ 330,11¢ $ 271,07.
Cost of sale: 501,18: 355,28t 294,69¢ 244, 34( 199,76
Gross profit 172,36: 125,00: 105,93: 85,77¢ 71,30¢
Operating expenst 135,78. 96,23% 78,13¢ 64,20¢ 57,97
Operating profit 36,58 28,767 27,79t 21,57: 13,33:
Interest expens 7,77¢ 3,67¢ 14,57( 4,041 2,81¢
Loss on fluctuation of interest rate sw — — (81) (910) (65¢)
Loss on sale of asse 8 18 6 — —
Income from operations before ta> 28,79¢ 25,07t 13,30: 18,44: 11,17
Provision for income taxe 11,80¢ 10,56+ 5,60: 2,567 2,218
Net income $ 16,99( $ 14,51 $ 7,69¢ $ 15,87« $ 8,961
Deemed dividend accretion on Class A

member’ units — — — (4,129 (6,207)
Deemed dividend paid to Class A

member’ units — — — (22,429 _

Net income (loss) attributable to comnmr
stockholder: $ 16,99( $ 14,51: $ 7,695 $ (10,675) $ 2,75‘
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Basic net income (loss) per shi

Diluted net income (loss) per sh:

Weighted average common shares
outstanding

Basic

Diluted

Balance Sheet Data (at end of perioc
Cash and cash equivalel

Working capital

Total asset

Long-term debt, net of current portic
Total liabilities

Redeemable Class A memlt’ units
Total stockholders equity (defici

December 27

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED

December 2€

December 3C

December 24

December 25

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$ 0.7¢  $ 0.7C  $ 04/ 8 (050 $ 0.1z
$ 077 $ 06 3 04:  $ 050 $ 0.11

21,76 20,61 17,59: 21,33: 22,90

21,998 20,92¢ 18,03: 21,33: 24,08
$ 20,01  $ 116 $ 2,03. $ 1,97¢  $ 87t
$ 11750 $ 57,80: $ 29,76¢  $ 12,206 $ 22 47¢
$ 35475t $ 21013« $ 10787t $ 82,67: $ 65,93
$ 140,84 $ 11935 $ 3959 $ 82,58 $ 29,92¢
$ 222690 $ 170,85, $ 84,30¢ $ 13148 $ 60,60:
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ 41,69¢
$ 132,060 $ 39,28: $ 2357C $  (4881) $ (36,369
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith information included in Item 8 of this regh. Unless otherwise indicated, the terms
“Company”, “Chefs’ Warehouse”, “we”, “us”, and “durefer to The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its sdibsies for the periods from and after
July 27, 2011 and our predecessor company, Chedselduse Holdings, LLC. and its subsidiaries, poahat date. All dollar amounts are in
thousands.

Overview and Recent Developments
Overview

We are a premier distributor of specialty foodegiight of the leading culinary markets in the Unigtdtes. We offer more than 30,000 SKUs,
ranging from high-quality specialty foods and irgjests to basic ingredients and staples and ceifittre-plate proteins. We serve more than
20,000 customer locations, primarily located in bdirgeographic markets across the United State€andda, and the majority of our
customers are independent restaurants and finegd@stablishments. As a result of our acquisitibAllen Brothers, we also sell certain of our
center-of-the-plate products directly to consumers.

We believe several key differentiating factors of business model have enabled us to execute @begy consistently and profitably across
our expanding customer base. These factors cafsasportfolio of distinctive and hard-to-find sjpety food products, an extensive selection
of center-of-the-plate proteins, a highly trained anotivated sales force, strong sourcing capads|ie fully integrated warehouse managemet
system, a highly sophisticated distribution anddtigs platform and a focused, seasoned managesemt

In recent years, our sales to existing and newoawsts have increased through the continued growdeimand for specialty food products in
general; increased market share driven by our lpegeentage of sophisticated and experienced padésssionals, our high-quality customer
service and our extensive breadth and depth ofustanfferings, including, as a result of our acdigas of Michael's in August 2012 and

Allen Brothers in December 2013, meat, seafoodadhdr center-of-th@late products, and, as a result of our acquisiifoQzina in May 201:
gourmet chocolate, pastries and dessert; the atiguisf other specialty food distributors; the exgion of our existing distribution centers;
construction of a new distribution center; andithport and sale of our proprietary brands. Throtigse efforts, we believe that we have beel
able to expand our customer base, enhance andifyveur product selections, broaden our geograpéitetration and increase our market
share. We believe that as a result of these eff@gshave increased sales from approximately $221i© 2009 to approximately $673,545 in
2013.

Reorganization Transactiol

On July 27, 2011, we completed a transaction irctviare converted Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC ifite Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Specifically, our predecessor, Chefs’ Warehousalidgk, LLC, a Delaware limited liability companyroverted into The Chefs’ Warehouse,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and the members ef€Charehouse Holdings, LLC received shares ofammmmon stock in exchange for their
membership interests in Chefs’ Warehouse Holdibp§..

We issued 16,000,000 shares of common stock imemuganization transaction and each of the holdeosir Class B units and Class C units
received approximately 0.2942 shares of our comstock for each unit of membership interest in Chéfarehouse Holdings, LLC owned by
them at the time of the conversion. Of the totahber of shares we issued in the reorganizatiors#ietion, 445,056 shares were restricted
shares of our common stock issued upon conversgioardClass C units that had not vested as ofithe bf the conversion.

On August 2, 2011, we completed our initial puldiitering (“IPO”) of shares of our common stock. We issued 4,666s5667es in the offerin
and certain existing stockholders sold an additiér&83,333 shares, including 1,350,000 sharestsadlie underwriters to cover over-
allotments. We received net proceeds from the ioffeof approximately $63,300 (after the paymentiedlerwriter discounts and commissions
and offering expenses) that have been used, tageitieborrowings under our new senior secureditfadilities, to repay all of our loans
outstanding under our former senior secured cfadilities and senior subordinated notes, including accrued and unpaid interest, call
premiums and unamortized original issue discoudt").

36




On September 25, 2013, the Company completed écpffdring of 3,800,000 share of its common stat21.00 per share and certain
existing stockholders sold an additional 1,375,8B8@res, including 675,000 shares sold to the uniters/to cover over-allotments. The
Company recognized proceeds of approximately $75a0@r deducting underwriting fees and commissao estimated offering expenses.
The Company utilized approximately $12,500 of teeproceeds from the offering to repay outstantogowings under the revolving credit
facility portion of the Company’s senior secureddit facilities, and subsequently used approxirye#23,939 to finance our acquisition of
Allen Brothers. The remaining net proceeds aredb#ld by the Company for general corporate purpose

Refinancing Transactions

In connection with our IPO, we entered into a seaexured credit facility with JPMorgan Chase Bawl4. This senior secured credit facility
provided for (i) a four year, $30,000 term loanilfacmaturing in 2015, and (ii) a four year, $50®revolving credit facility maturing in 2015.
We used the net proceeds of the IPO, togetheramitbrtion of borrowings under this senior secunedlit facility, to repay all of our loans
outstanding under our former senior secured cfadilities in place prior to our IPO and to redealnof our outstanding senior subordinated
notes due 2014.

On April 25, 2012 we entered into a new senior segtgredit facility (the “Credit Agreement”) witiPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Our new
senior secured credit facility provides for a (fpar year, $40,000 term loan facility maturing2@17, and (ii) a five year, $100,000 revolving
credit facility maturing in 2017. The agreementyded us with the option of increasing the amourthe revolving credit facility by up to
$40,000. We exercised this option on SeptembeR@B? and as a result, capacity under the revoleiadit facility increased to $140,000.

On April 17, 2013, the Company entered into an Admant and Restatement Agreement to amend andaéseaCredit Agreement (the
“Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”). The Aredrahd Restated Credit Agreement provides for imissacured term loan facility in
the aggregate amount of up to $36,000 and a seedured revolving loan facility of up to an aggtegamount of $140,000.

On April 17, 2013, the Company issued $100,000qgiped amount of 5.90% Guaranteed Senior Securedd\thie 2023 (the “Notes”). The
Notes must be repaid in two equal installmentsfitse$50,000 of which is due April 17, 2018 ate tsecond $50,000 of which is due
maturity on April 17, 2023.

Recent Acquisition:

On December 11, 2013, the Company acquired submtartl the assets of Allen Brothers, Inc. (atglsubsidiaries) based in Chicago,
llliniois. Founded in 1893, Allen Brothers is adiigg processor and distributor of premium qualityats to nearly 400 of the nation’s finest
restaurants, hotels, casinos and country clubasddiition, Allen Brothers supplies many of those sdnigh quality products to over 100,000
consumers through a direct mail and e-commercéophat The total purchase price for the business is erpect be approximately $33,400
(subject to customary working capital adjustmerg§)yhich approximately $23,939 was paid at closiith cash proceeds from the
Company'’s recently completed common stock offeriffte remaining $9,500 represents liabilities asglimethe Company and earnout
consideration to be paid upon the achievement ivéiceperformance milestones over the next fourgea

On May 1, 2013, the Company acquired 100% of thetginterests of Qzina Specialty Foods North Aroarinc. (“Qzina”), a British

Columbia, Canada corporation based in Pompano Bé&tatida. Founded in 1982, Qzina is a leading §appf gourmet chocolate, dessert
and pastry products dedicated to the pastry priofieals Qzina currently supplies more than 3,00@pnts to some of the finest restaurants,
bakeries, patisseries, chocolatiers, hotels andectimes throughout the U.S. and Canada. The potaihase price for Qzina was approximately
$31,796 at closing, net of $578 cash (subject sdarnary post-closing working capital adjustments) was funded with borrowings under the
revolving credit facility portion of our Amended dRRestated Credit Agreement.

On December 31, 2012, the Company acquired submtaut| of the assets of Queensgate FoodserviQagensgate”), a foodservice
distributor based in Cincinnati, Ohio. Queensgéiengthens the Company’s foothold in the Ohio \aded provides a platform on which to
leverage the Michael's acquisition completed in Bsig2012. The purchase price for Queensgate wasxpately $21,934 and was funded
with borrowings under the revolving credit facilipprtion of the Credit Agreement that we entered in April 2012. The purchase price may
be increased by up to $1,200 based upon the achenteof certain performance milestones in fiscdl220
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On August 10, 2012, the Company acquired 100%eE&tjuity securities of Michael’'s, a specialty pio@istributor based in Columbus, Ohio.
Michael's distributes an extensive portfolio of tam cut beef, seafood and other center-ofglage products to many of the leading restaur
country clubs, hotels and casinos in Ohio, Indidifiapis, Tennessee, Michigan, Kentucky, West Vfiig and western Pennsylvania. The total
purchase price for the business was approximat&3y599 and was funded with borrowings under thelkeéwg credit facility portion of the
Credit Agreement that we entered into in April 20ltRAugust, 2013, we paid the sellers $336 tdesatdispute over the final working capital
settlement. We have filed a claim against escravafpreviously disclosed $400 overstatement ofnbwey at the acquisition date.

On April 27, 2012, we acquired 100% of the outstagddommon stock of Praml International, Ltd. (“P&), a Nevada corporation. The
purchase price paid to acquire Praml was approein&t19,500. We financed the purchase price paithi® outstanding common stock of
Praml with borrowings under the revolving creditifidy portion of the Credit Agreement we enteratbiin April 2012. Praml| was a leading
specialty foods importer and wholesale distriblboated in Las Vegas, Nevada, which serviced treMlegas and Reno markets.

Our Growth Strategies and Outlook

We continue to invest in our people, facilities aachnology to achieve the following objectives amaintain our premier position within the
specialty foodservice distribution market:

sales and service territory expansi

operational excellence and high customer servigelde

expanded purchasing programs and improved buyingp!

product innovation and new product category intuaiigdun;

operational efficiencies through system enhancesnanio

operating expense reduction through the centraizaif general and administrative functio

Our continued profitable growth has allowed ustpriove upon our organization’s infrastructure, opew distribution facilities and pursue
selective acquisitions. This improved infrastruethas allowed us to maintain our operating mangira increasingly competitive
environment. Over the last several years, we hasteased our distribution capacity to approxima@aig,000 square feet in twenty distribut
facilities.

Key Factors Affecting Our Performanc

Due to our focus on menu-driven independent reatdsy fine dining establishments, country clubselso caterers, culinary schools, bakeries,
patisseries, chocolatiers, cruise lines, casindssgecialty food stores, our results of operatemesmaterially impacted by the success of the
“food-away-from-home” industry in the United Statedich is materially impacted by general econooginditions, discretionary spending
levels and consumer confidence. When economic tiondideteriorate, our customers’ businesses ayatively impacted as fewer people eat
away-from-home and those that do spend less mdrsegconomic conditions begin to improve, our cusshbusinesses historically have
likewise improved, which contributes to improvengeimt our business.

Food price costs also significantly impact our tessof operations. Food price inflation, like theliich we have experienced throughout 2011,
portions of 2012, and 2013, may increase the dellare of our sales because many of our produetsald at our cost plus a percentage
markup. When the rate of inflation declines or wperience deflation, as we experienced during postiof 2012, the dollar value of our sales
may fall despite our unit sales remaining constargrowing. For those of our products that we paoea fixed fee-per-case basis, our gross
profit margins may be negatively affected in afatibnary environment, even though our gross regemmay be positively impacted. While
cannot predict whether inflation will continue airent levels, prolonged periods of inflation leaglto cost increases above levels that we are
able to pass along to our customers, either overati certain product categories, may have a megahpact on us and our customers, as
elevated food costs can reduce consumer spendihg fimod-away-from-home market and may negatiiralyact our sales, gross margins and
earnings.
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Given our wide selection of product categoriesyal as the continuous introduction of new produets can experience shifts in product sale
mix that have an impact on net sales and gros pnafgins. This mix shift is most significantly pacted by the introduction of new catego

of products in markets that we have more recemttgred, the shift in product mix resulting from aisitions, as well as the continued growth
in item penetration on higher velocity items sushdairy products.

The foodservice distribution industry is fragmenged consolidating. Over the past five years, wetspplemented our internal growth
through selective strategic acquisitions. We belithat the consolidation trends in the foodserdistribution industry will continue to present
acquisition opportunities for us, which may allow/to grow our business at a faster pace than wédvadhierwise be able to grow the business
organically.

Performance Indicators

In addition to evaluating our income from operasioour management team analyzes our performaned loassales growth, gross profit and
gross profit margin.

e Net sales growtlOur net sales growth is driven principally by chesign volume and, to a lesser degree, changescim q@lated to th
impact of inflation in commodity prices and produdilx. In particular, product cost inflation and ldgifon impacts our results of
operations and, depending on the amount of inflatiodeflation, such impact may be material. F@meple, inflation may increase 1
dollar value of our sales, and when the rate dé&iithh declines, the dollar value of our sales f@lydespite our unit sales remaining
constant or growing

e Gross profit and gross profit margi@ur gross profit and gross profit as a percentdgeeibsales, or gross profit margin, are driven
principally by changes in volume and fluctuationgdod and commodity prices and our ability to passny price increases to our
customers in an inflationary environment and méinta increase gross profit margin when our costdide. Our gross profit margin
is also a function of the product mix of our ndesan any period. Given our wide selection of proiccategories, as well as the
continuous introduction of new products, we canegigmce shifts in product sales mix that have gpaichon net sales and gross pr
margins. This mix shift is most significantly impged by the introduction of new categories of prdduic markets that we have more
recently entered, impact of product mix from aciigiss, as well as the continued growth in itemegteation on higher velocity items
such as dairy product

Key Financial Definitions

e Net salesNet sales consist primarily of sales of speciattydpicts, center-of-the-plate proteins and othed fo@ducts to
independently-owned restaurants and other highf@dkservice customers, which we report net of @@geoup discounts and
customer sales incentives. Net sales also inclalds &y our Allen Brothers subsidiary that areatite consumers

e Cost of salesCost of sales include the net purchase price maigrbducts sold, plus the cost of transportatiecessary to bring the
product to our distribution facilities. Our costs#les may not be comparable to other similar coiegavithin our industry that
include all costs related to their distributionwetk in their costs of sales rather than as opsgagkpense:

e Operating expense®ur operating expenses include warehousing, promeasd distribution expenses (which include sakénd
wages, employee benefits, facility and distribufil@et rental costs and other expenses relatedgtelvousing, processing and delivi
and selling, general and administrative expenségtwinclude selling, insurance, administrativegeand benefit expenses and
shar-based compensation expen:

e Interest expensinterest expense consists primarily of interesbonoutstanding indebtedness and, as applicaldeytite off of
deferred financing fee

e (Gain) loss on fluctuation of interest rate swafidain) loss on fluctuation of interest rate swapssists solely of the change in
valuation on an interest rate swap not eligiblehfedge accounting

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegits requires us to make estimates and judgnteattaffect the reported amounts of assets
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and relatadodisre of contingent assets and liabilities. TR€ $ias defined critical accounting policies as
those that are both most important to the portrafalur financial condition and results and requive most difficult, complex or subjective
judgments or estimates. Based on this definitiompelieve our critical accounting policies inclutie following: (i) determining our allowant
for doubtful accounts, (ii) inventory valuation,tiviregard to determining our reserve for excessodistlete inventory, (iii) valuing goodwill
and intangible assets, (iv) vendor rebates and giteenotional incentives, (v) self-insurance ressnand (vi) accounting for income taxes. Fo
all financial statement periods presented, thewe lb@en no material modifications to the applicatbthese critical accounting policies.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We analyze customer creditworthiness, accountsvadale balances, payment history, payment termshéstdrical bad debt levels when
evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for daulat€counts. In instances where a reserve hasreeerded for a particular customer, future
sales to the customer are either conducted ussigaa-delivery terms or the account is closely rwed so that agreed-upon payments are
received prior to orders being released. A faitorpay results in held or cancelled orders. We aftonate receivables that will ultimately be
uncollectible based upon historical write-off expace. Our estimate could require change basethamging circumstances, including change
in the economy or in the particular circumstandasdividual customers. Accordingly, we may be rizgd to increase or decrease our
allowance. Our accounts receivable balance wagt$3&nd $56,694, net of the allowance for doulatdounts of $3,642 and $3,440, as of
December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, resplyctive

Inventory Valuation

We maintain reserves for slow-moving and obsoletemtories. These reserves are primarily based invemtory age plus specifically
identified inventory items and overall economic ditions. A sudden and unexpected change in conspraé&rences or change in overall
economic conditions could result in a significahéwege in the reserve balance and could requireraspmonding charge to earnings. We
actively manage our inventory levels as we seakitomize the risk of loss and have consistentlyiendd a relatively high level of inventory
turnover.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We are required to test goodwill for impairmentesst annually and between annual tests if evertisrar circumstances change that would
more likely than not reduce the fair value of aoripg unit below its carrying amount. We have &ddo perform our annual tests for
indications of goodwill impairment during the folurquarter of each fiscal year. We test for goodimifbairment at the consolidated level, as
have only a single reporting unit, based on theketarapitalization approach. The goodwill impairmenalysis is a two-step test. The first
step, used to identify potential impairment, inas\comparing our estimated fair value to our cagyialue, including goodwill. If our
estimated fair value exceeds our carrying valuedgdll is considered not to be impaired. If thergarg value exceeds estimated fair value,
there is an indication of potential impairment dnel second step is performed to measure the ambimpairment. If required, the second ¢
involves calculating an implied fair value of owragiwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is detained in a manner similar to the amount of
goodwill calculated in a business combination, Basuring the excess of the estimated fair valudetessmined in the first step, over the
aggregate estimated fair values of the individsakss, liabilities and identifiable intangiblesfase were being acquired in a business
combination. If the implied fair value of our gooitivexceeds the carrying value of our goodwill, taés no impairment. If the carrying value
our goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of g@odwill, an impairment charge is recorded foreeess.

In accordance with the aggregation criteria of AZB0D-10-5011, we evaluate our goodwill on a consolidateddasing a market capitalizati
approach. When analyzing whether to aggregateetgmphical components into one reporting unitQGbenpany considers whether each
geographical component has similar economic chariatts. The Company has evaluated the econonai@acteristics of its different
geographic markets, including its recently acquivedinesses, along with the similarity of the ofieres and margins, nature of the products,
type of customer and methods of distribution ofguets and the regulatory environment in which tleenfany operates and concluded that th
geographical components continue to be one reputiit. Under this approach fair value is calcudat@sed on the market price of common
stock multiplied by the number of outstanding skafmy material adverse change in our businesperations could have a negative effect or
our valuation and thus cause an impairment of oodgill. As of December 27, 2013, our annual assess indicated that we are not at risl
failing step one of the goodwill impairment testlaro impairment of goodwill existed, as our faitueaexceeded our carrying value. Total
goodwill as of December 27, 2013 and December @82 2vas $78,026 and $45,359, respectively.
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Intangible assets with finite lives are testedifopairment whenever events or changes in circurast&imdicate that the carrying value may
be recoverable. Cash flows expected to be genebatéte related assets are estimated over thesaaseful lives based on updated
projections. If the evaluation indicates that therging amount of the asset may not be recover#idepotential impairment is measured basec
on a projected discounted cash flow model. Theve th@en no events or changes in circumstancesgd20ib3 or 2012 indicating that the
carrying value of our finite-lived intangible assare not recoverable. Total finite-lived intangiblssets as of December 27, 2013 and
December 28, 2012 were $57,450 and $35,708, regplgct

The assessment of the recoverability of intangaisigets will be impacted if estimated future castvdlare not achieved.
Vendor Rebates and Other Promotional Incentives

We participate in various rebate and promotionegitiives with our suppliers, including volume amdvgth rebates, annual incentives and
promotional programs. In accounting for vendor tebawe follow the guidance in ASC 605-50 (Emerdsspes Task Force, or EITF, No. 02-
16, Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)Gertain Consideration Received from a Vendod EITF No. 03-10Application of
Issue No. 0-16 by Resellers to Sales Incentives Offered tcs@mers by Manufacturers)

We generally record consideration received undesahncentives as a reduction of cost of goods koldever, in certain circumstances, we
record marketing-related consideration as a rednatf marketing costs incurred. We may receive id@mation in the form of cash and/or
invoice deductions.

We record consideration that we receive for volameé growth rebates and annual incentives as atiedwf cost of goods sold. We
systematically and rationally allocate the consatien for those incentives to each of the undegyilansactions that results in progress by us
toward earning the incentives. If the incentives rot probable and reasonably estimable, we raberthcentives as the underlying objectives
or milestones are achieved. We record annual ingentvhen we earn them, generally over the agreepeiod. We record consideration
received to promote and sell the suppliers’ proglasta reduction of our costs, as the considerggitypically a reimbursement of costs
incurred by us. If we received consideration frdva suppliers in excess of our costs, we recordeangss as a reduction of cost of goods sold

Self-Insurance Reserves

Effective October 1, 2011, we began maintainingl&iasured group medical program. The program aimstindividual stop loss thresholds of
$125 per incident and aggregate stop loss threstalsled upon the average number of employeesezhinlthe program throughout the year.
The amount in excess of the self-insured leveldudhginsured by third party insurers. Liabiliti@ssociated with this program are estimated ir
part by considering historical claims experience aredical cost trends. Projections of future loggeeases are inherently uncertain because o
the random nature of insurance claims occurrencgsauld be significantly affected if future ocaemces and claims differ from these
assumptions and historical trends.

Effective August 1, 2012, we are self-insured farkers’ compensation and automobile liability taldetibles or self-insured retentions of
$350 for workers compensation and $250 for autoladiaibility per occurrence. The amounts in exagfssur deductibles are fully insured by
third party insurers. Liabilities associated witiistprogram are estimated in part by consideristphical claims experience and cost trends.
Projections of future loss expenses are inhereméertain because of the random nature of insurelag®s occurrences and could be
significantly affected if future occurrences andicis differ from these assumptions and historieaids.

Income Taxes

The determination of our provision for income tareguires significant judgment, the use of estimated the interpretation and application of
complex tax laws. Our provision for income taxeisnarily reflects a combination of income earned tamad in the various U.S. federal and
state jurisdictions. Jurisdictional tax law chandesreases or decreases in permanent differertegbn book and tax items, accruals or
adjustments of accruals for unrecognized tax bemefnd our change in the mix of earnings fromettaging jurisdictions all affect the overall
effective tax rate.

41




Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting policies with dugard of directors, and the board of
directors has reviewed the above disclosure. Onsal@ated financial statements contain other itdmsrequire estimation, but are not as
critical as those discussed above. These othesitectude our calculations for bonus accruals, €eption and amortization. Changes in
estimates and assumptions used in these and tghes ¢could have an effect on our consolidated &irdustatements.

Results of Operations
The following table presents, for the periods i, certain income and expense items expressegersentage of sales:

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

December 27, December 28, December 30,
2013 2012 2011

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 74..% 74.(% 73.€%
Gross profit 25.6% 26.(% 26.2%
Operating expenst 20.2% 20.(% 19.5%
Operating incom: 5.4% 6.C% 6.9%
Other expense (income

Interest expens 1.1% 0.8% 3.6%
Total other expens 1.1% 0.8% 3.€%
Income before income tax 4.2% 5.2% 3.2%
Provision for income taxe 1.8% 2.2% 1.4%
Net income 2.5% 3.C% 1.%

Fiscal Year Ended December 27, 2013 compared to E#d Year Ended December 28, 2012

Net Sales

Net sales for the 52 weeks ended December 27, iB@iSased approximately 40.2% to $673,545 from &Z&BDfor the 52 weeks end
December 28, 2012. The increase in net sales wa®#ult of organic sales growth and the acquisstiof Allen Brothers, Qzina and
Queensgate in fiscal 2013 and the full year impédlichael’'s and Praml, which were acquired in dils2012. These acquisitions accounted fo
approximately $157,091 of our sales growth in fi®13. Severe weather in the Northeast and Middeshg the month of December 2013
negatively impacted net sales by approximately @,0he severe weather has continued to affedtltierest and Northeast into the first
quarter of fiscal 2014 and has negatively impactedbusiness in those markets. Our prior year alessvere negatively impacted by
approximately $3,000 from Hurricane Sandy in therfio quarter of fiscal 2012. Inflation for fiscad23 was approximately 3.4%, or $16,474.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased approximately 37.9% to $362 for the 52 weeks ended December 27, 2013 fri26,$04 for the 52 weeks ended
December 28, 2012. Gross profit margin decreasptbapmately 44 basis points to 25.6% in fiscal 2@t3n 26.0% in the year earlier period.
The decrease in gross profit margin was due irelgagt to the impact on our sales mix, as welhasdecline in gross margins, in each case
related to the Michael’s subsidiary. Gross proférgin in fiscal 2013 was also negatively impactgdhe approximately $469 adjustment we
recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 assallt of our discovery that inventory balanceswaf Michael's subsidiary had been overstated
at the closing of the acquisition and thereaftéie flecrease was offset by the prior year impattluficane Sandy.
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Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by approximates to $135,783 for the 52 weeks ended Dece@ihe2013 from $96,237 for the 52
weeks ended December 28, 2012. As a percentags eéles, operating expenses increased 12 basis pwi20.2% for fiscal 2013 from
20.0% for 2012. The increase in total operatinge@se ratio was primarily due to increased investmienmanagement infrastructure, higher
amortization expense related to the Company’s adpris, duplicate rent on the Company’s Bronx, fa¥ility, investigation costs related to
the previously-disclosed Michael's accounting madied third-party transaction costs related toammnsideration of acquisition candidates.
This increase in operating expense ratio was oiifisgart by the prior year impact of Hurricane Saad well as the prior year cost from the
accelerated vesting of stock grants to our fornhégfoperating officer.

Operating Income

Operating income increased approximately 27.2%8&%81 for the 52 weeks ended December 27, 201pa@d to $28,767 for the 52 weeks
ended December 28, 2012. As a percentage of rest, gglerating income was 5.4% in 2013 compared8 @ 2012. The increase in
operating income was due to increased sales vobifset in part by the reduction in gross profit giarand the increase in operating expense:
discussed above.

Other Expense

Total other expense increased $4,091 to $7,78téoyear ended December 27, 2013, from $3,69htoyear ended December 28, 2012. Thi
increase in total other expense is attributabldéancrease in interest expense, which was highiggcal 2013 due to the increased debt levels
to fund the Company’s acquisitions as well as highterest rates on the Company’s $100,000 of sesgioured notes.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our effective income tax rate was 41.0% and 42.1&%he years ended December 27, 2013 and Dece28h@012, respectively. Based upon
current enacted tax rates, which could change xpeat our effective tax rate for fiscal 2014 to apgmate 41.0%.

Net Income

Reflecting the factors described in more detaiv@bmet income increased $2,479 to $16,990 foyéae ended December 27, 2013, compare«
to $14,511 for the year ended December 28, 2012.

Fiscal Year Ended December 28, 2012 compared to E&@ Year Ended December 30, 2011
Net Sales

Net sales for the 52 weeks ended December 28, iB8iased approximately 19.9% to $480,292 from $&®for the 53 weeks end
December 30, 2011. The increase in net sales wa®#ult of organic sales growth and the acquisstiof Michael's and Praml in fiscal 2012
and Provvista, which was acquired late in fiscdl20rhese acquisitions accounted for approximai@#,107 of our sales growth in fiscal
2012. Our net sales growth was negatively impaloedurricane Sandy in the fourth quarter of fis2@l2 by approximately $3,000 and the
prior year impact of an extra week in our 2011dlsear which was approximately $6,600. Deflationffscal 2012 was approximately 0.2%.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased approximately 18.0% to $1@5 for the 52 weeks ended December 28, 2012 fibdb,934 for the 53 weeks ended
December 30, 2011. Gross profit margin decreasptbapmately 41 basis points to 26.0% in fiscal 2@tin 26.4% in the year earlier period.
The decrease in gross profit margin was due tdntipact on our sales mix resulting from the Michaehd Praml acquistions and the impac
Hurricane Sandy.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased by approxima®Bs to $96,237 for the 52 weeks ended Decenthe2®2 from $78,138 for the 53
weeks ended December 30, 2011. As a percentags ehles, operating expenses increased 54 basts poi20.0% for fiscal 2012 from
19.5% for fiscal 2011. The increase in total ogataexpense was primarily due to the growth insaés, including through acquisitions. The
increase in total operating expenses as a percenfatgt sales was primarily due to higher insueaswsts, higher amortization expense relate
to the company’s acquisitions, duplicate rent an@ompany’s Bronx, NY facility, as well as the inspaf Hurricane Sandy, all of which were
partially offset by decreases in incentive andlstmmpensation.
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Operating Income

Operating income increased approximately 3.5% & &7 for the 52 weeks ended December 28, 2012 a@dpo $27,796 for the 53 weeks
ended December 30, 2011. As a percentage of rest, sglerating income was 6.0% in fiscal 2012 cosph&r 6.9% in fiscal 2011. The
increase in operating income was due to increaasied solume offset in part by the increase in ojiegaxpenses discussed above.

Other Expense

Total other expense decreased $10,803 to $3,69Rdorear ended December 28, 2012, from $14,49héyear ended December 30, 2011.
This decrease in total other expense is attribatadbthe decrease in interest expense for thegrebled December 28, 2012 to $3,674 from
$14,570 in the year ended December 30, 2011. Téredse in interest expense was offset in part glyaniaverage borrowings in fiscal 2012
when compared to fiscal 2011. The increased intergense in fiscal 2011 was the result of a sicgnift increase in debt levels during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 as we financed theeraption of all of our outstanding Class A unitsethwere held by BGCP/DL, LLC and
another former investor of ours with borrowings e@ndur then existing credit facilities and seniotas. In addition we incurred expenses of
approximately $5,400 for call premiums and the evaff of deferred financing fees and unamortize® @hen we refinanced our pre-IPO
indebtedness upon completion of our IPO.

Provision for Income Taxe:
Our effective income tax rate was 42.13% and 42.i®%he years ended December 28, 2012 and Decesdh@011, respectively.
Net Income

Reflecting the factors described in more detaiv@bmet income increased $6,813 to $14,511 foyéae ended December 28, 2012, compare«
to $7,698 for the year ended December 30, 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

We finance our day-to-day operations and growtmarily with cash flows from operations, borrowingsder our senior secured credit
facilities, operating leases, trade payables amd#t badebtedness. In the second quarter of fischB2@e also issued $100,000 of senior secure
notes, the proceeds of which we used to repay Wimgs under the revolving credit facility portiofi@ur senior secured credit facilities. In the
third quarter of fiscal 2013 we completed a second#ering of 3,800,000 shares of our common stwblich resulted in net proceeds to us of
approximately $75,037 after deducting underwritégs’s and commissions and transaction expensess@éea portion of the proceeds from
the offering to repay all of our then outstandirmgrbwings under the revolving credit facility pami of our senior secured credit facilities, and
we subsequently used $23,939 to finance our at¢ruisif Allen Brothers. The remaining portion okthet proceeds is currently being held as
cash and cash equivalents for use in general catgpurposes including as possible consideratiofufare acquisitions. We believe that our
cash on hand and available credit through ouriegisevolving credit facility as discussed belovsigficient for our operations and planned
capital expenditures over the next twelve monthepdhding on our acquisition pipeline and relateploofunities, we may need to obtain
additional debt or equity financing, which may imé longer-term, fixed-rate debt, in order to caetgpthose acquisitions.

On April 25, 2012, Dairyland USA Corporation, Thadfs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto FootsC, The Chefs’ Warehouse
West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaCl(each a “Borrower” and collectively, the “Borrevs”), the Company and Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC (together with the Comparg,'Guarantors”) entered into a senior secureditcfadlity (the “Credit Agreement”)
with the lenders from time to time party there®@Mbrgan Chase Bank, N.A. (“Chase”), as administeatigent, and the other parties thereto.
On August 29, 2012, Michael's Finer Meats HoldingsC and Michael's were each added as a Guaramaenthe Credit Agreement. On
January 24, 2013, The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, Wla€ added as a Guarantor under the Credit Agredemen
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On April 26, 2012, Dairyland HP LLC (“DHP”), an iirdctly wholly-owned subsidiary of ours, enteretbia financing arrangement under the
New Markets Tax Credi“NMTC") program under the Internal Revenue Codd 886, as amended, pursuant to which Commercialibgrt
LLC (“CLII"), a community development entity andsabsidiary of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., provideBHP an $11,000 construction
loan (the “NMTC Loan”) to help fund DHP’s expansiand build-out of our Bronx, New York facility aride rail shed located at that facility,
which construction is required under the faciliépse agreement. Borrowings under the NMTC Loasegared by a first priority secured lien
on DHP’s leasehold interest in our Bronx, New Yagility, including all improvements made on themises, as well as, among other things.
a lien on all fixtures incorporated into the prajgoprovements.

Under the NMTC Loan, DHP is obligated to pay Cli)JIionthly interest payments on the principal ba&@athen outstanding and (ii) the entire
unpaid principal balance then due and owing on &t 2017. So long as DHP is not in default, iestaccrues on borrowings at 1.00% per
annum. We may prepay the NMTC Loan, in whole grart, in $100 increments, after March 15, 2014.

For more information regarding the NMTC Loan, seseNLO to the consolidated financial statementeappg elsewhere in this report.

On April 17, 2013, the Borrowers, the Guarantord e lenders a party thereto entered into an Amend and Restatement Agreement to
amend and restate the Credit Agreement (the “Antbadd Restated Credit Agreement”). The AmendedRestated Credit Agreement
provides for a senior secured term loan facilihe(fTerm Loan Facility”) in the aggregate amountpfto $36,000 (the loans thereunder, the
“Term Loans”) and a senior secured revolving loaility (the “Revolving Credit Facility” and, togetr with the Term Loan Facility, the
“Credit Facilities”) of up to an aggregate amouh$b40,000 (the loans thereunder, the “RevolvingdrLoans”), of which up to $5,000 is
available for letters of credit and up to $3,00@vsilable for short-term borrowings on a swinglbasis. Unutilized commitments under the
Revolving Credit Facility portion of the AmendeddalRestated Credit Agreement are subject to a parmariee of from 0.35% to 0.45% based
on the Leverage Ratio (as defined below). A frapfiee of 0.25% per annum is payable on the facauatmf each letter of credit issued under
the Credit Facilities. On May 31, 2013, Qzina SakgiFoods North America (USA), Inc., QZ AcquisitigUSA), Inc., The Chefs’ Warehouse
Pastry Division, Inc., Qzina Specialty Foods (Angaator), Inc., Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (WA), &xina Specialty Foods, Inc. (FL) were
added as Guarantors under the Amended and Re&teddd Agreement.

The final maturity of the Term Loans is April 23)27. Subject to adjustment for prepayments, weeaqeired to make quarterly principal
payments on the Term Loans on June 30, Septemb&eg@mber 31 and March 31, with each quarterlyrm@at equal to $1,500, with the
remaining balance due upon maturity.

Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility port of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreemerg baen used, and are expected to b
used, for capital expenditures, permitted acquoisgj working capital and general corporate purposése Borrowers. The commitments undel
the Revolving Credit Facility expire on April 25027 and any Revolving Credit Loans then outstandiitigoe payable in full at that time. As
of December 27, 2013, we had $136,180 of avaitghilnder the Revolving Credit Facility portion diet Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement.

Borrowings under the Amended and Restated Crediédgent bear interest at our option of eitheth@) alternate base rate (representing the
greatest of (1) Chase’s prime rate, (2) the federads effective rate for overnight borrowings piu& of 1.00% and (3) the adjusted LIBO rate
for one month plus 2.50%) plus in each case ariegipé margin of from 1.75% to 2.25%, based onL#eerage Ratio (as defined below), or
(i) in the case of Eurodollar Borrowings (as definin the Amended and Restated Credit Agreemém)adjusted LIBO rate plus an applicable
margin of from 2.75% to 3.25%, based on the LeveRatio. The LIBO rate is the rate for eurodollepdsits for a period equal to one, thre
six months (as selected by the applicable Borroappearing on Reuters Screen LIBORO01 Page (or@oessor or substitute page on such
screen), at approximately 11:00 a.m. London time, lhusiness days prior to the commencement offipbcable interest period.
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The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement inclfidascial covenants that require (i) the ratio of consolidated EBITDA (as defined in
the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement) miraugnfinanced portion of capital expenditures to aansolidated Fixed Charges (as
defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agre®noena trailing twelve month basis as of the ehdaxh of our fiscal quarters to not be
less than (A) 1.15 to 1.00 for the period from ¢fffective date of the Amended and Restated Cregliedment through June 30, 2014 and
(B) 1.25 to 1.00 for the quarterly period endingt®eber 30, 2014 and thereafter and (ii) the maftiour consolidated Total Indebtedness (as
defined in the Amended and Restated Credit Agregnteour consolidated EBITDA (the “Leverage Rajiédr the then-trailing twelve
months to not be greater than (A) 4.00 to 1.0Gafor fiscal quarter ending in the period from thieetive date of the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement through December 31, 2013, (B% 8071.00 for any fiscal quarter ending in the perirom March 31, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 and (C) 3.50 to 1.00 for anwfigoarter ending March 31, 2015 and thereafter.

On April 17, 2013, the Borrowers issued $100,000gypal amount of 5.90% Guaranteed Senior SecuddNdue 2023 (the “Notes”). The
Notes are guaranteed by the Guarantors includirdh&&'’s, Michael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC and The @&i&Varehouse Midwest, LLC
(collectively, the “Notes Guarantors”). The Notegich rank pari passu with the Borrowers’ and N@esrantorsbbligations under the Cre
Facilities, were issued to The Prudential Insurabompany of America and certain of its affiliatesl{ectively, the “Prudential Entities”)
pursuant to a note purchase and guarantee agredatedtas of April 17, 2013 (the “Note Purchase @ndrantee Agreement”) among the
Borrowers, the Notes Guarantors and the Pruddatiafies. The net proceeds from the issuance oNthtes were used to repay then
outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Creditiity. On May 31, 2013, Qzina Specialty Foods tRgkmerica (USA), Inc., QZ
Acquisition (USA), Inc., The Chefs’ Warehouse Pad&livision, Inc., Qzina Specialty Foods (Ambassadrc., Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc.
(WA), and Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (FL) wereedlds Guarantors under the Notes.

The Notes must be repaid in two equal installmehtsfirst $50,000 of which is due April 17, 2018dahe second $50,000 of which is due at
maturity on April 17, 2023. Moreover, the Borrowenay prepay the Notes in amounts not less thar0$130100% of the principal amount of
the Notes repaid plus the applicable Make-Whole Amdas defined in the Note Purchase and Guar&gezement).

The Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement coffitzamgial covenants related to leverage and fiXxeatges that are the same as the
corresponding provisions in the Amended and Redi@tedit Agreement.

Our capital expenditures, excluding cash paid éguisitions, for fiscal 2013 were approximately 1, which includes $3,328 of financed
software costs. We believe that our capital exgenes, excluding cash paid for acquisitions, fecdil 2014 will be approximately $32,260, of
which $5,578 will be funded with the restricted lté®om the NMTC Loan and $2,145 will be funded thgh a software financing
arrangement. The significant increase in projectgatal expenditures in fiscal 2014 is being dribgrthe renovation and expansion of our |
Bronx, New York distribution facility, the renovati and expansion of our new Las Vegas, NV distidoutacility, and completion of our JD
Edwards ERP implementation. Recurring capital egfares will be financed with cash generated frgmrations and borrowings under our
Revolving Credit Facility. Our planned capital mcis will provide both new and expanded facilia@sl improvements to our technology that
we believe will produce increased efficiency anel thpacity to continue to support the growth of@austomer base. Future investments and
acquisitions will be financed through either int@ip generated cash flow, borrowings under our@esecured credit facilities in place at the
time of the potential acquisition or issuance afiggor debt securities, including, but not limitex) longer-term, fixed-rate debt securities and
shares of our common stock.

Net cash provided by operations was $10,638 foafi2013, an increase of $2,247 from the $8,39%igeal by operations for fiscal 2012. T
primary reasons for the increase in net cash peaviry operations were increased net income of $2a#d an increase in cash provided from
non-cash charges of $2,417 offset by increaseash ased in working capital of $2,328 and otheetssand liabilities of $122. The increase in
non-cash charges was primarily due to increasdspneciation and amortization of $3,385, defereegd$ of $1,053 offset by decreases in
charges for provision for allowance for doubtfutaants of $510, stock compensation of $337 andgdhanfair value of earn-out of $1,157.
The increase in cash used for working capital waestd increases in cash used for prepaids and asisets of $7,147 and accounts payable ai
accrued liabilities of $2,562 offset by decreasesash used for inventory of $5,525 and receivabié,856. Net cash provided by operations
was $8,391 for fiscal 2012, a decrease of $8,32% the $16,720 provided by operations for fiscal 20rhe primary reasons for the decrease
in cash provided by operations were $6,813 of imeee net income offset by a decrease of $5,506retash items, a $9,335 increase in the
use of cash from working capital and a $301 neti@se in a use of cash due to changes in longéssets. The decrease in non-cash charge:s
were due to the following charges which were inedrin fiscal 2011 but did not recur in fiscal 20$2;127 of OID amortization, $1,825 of
non-cash interest expense and $2,860 of vefite of deferred financing fees, in each case aatatwith the refinancing of our debt obligati

in connection with our IPO. In addition, there v§g19 less of stock compensation, which was offgetrbincrease in cash provided by
deferred credits of $592. These were offset byeases in depreciation and amortization of $2,2 t0paavision for bad debt of $245. The
$9,335 increase in use of cash from working capite primarily due to a $1,161 increase in casH einventory, a $2,305 increase in cash
used for prepaids and other current assets andlé38ecrease in cash provided from accounts payabl
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Net cash used in investing activities was $89,889iscal 2013, an increase of $13,992 from thecash used in investing activities of $75,
for fiscal 2012. The increase in net cash usedduasto increased capital expenditures of $8,5,t8rareased cash paid for acquisitions of
$5,474. Net cash used in investing activities wés, 07 for fiscal 2012, an increase of $55,874 ftbm$19,833 used in investing activities
fiscal 2011. The increase was due to the acquisttfd®raml and Michael’'s at cash purchase priceding $72,521 during fiscal 2012 versus
the acquisitions of Harry Wils and Provvista Sphgikoods, Inc. at cash purchase prices totaling #87 during fiscal 2011. In addition,
capital expenditures were $1,105 higher in fis€¢dl2as compared to fiscal 2011.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $98,# fiscal 2013, an increase of $33,326 from$68,401 provided by financing activities
fiscal 2012. This increase resulted from proceeais four offering of common stock and the privat@ceiment of our senior secured notes ¢
by payment of our Revolving Credit Facility. Nesbagrovided by financing activities was $65,401ffscal 2012, an increase of $62,233 from
the $3,168 provided by financing activities forc$2011. This increase resulted from proceedsipflen-existing term loan facility,
borrowings under our New Revolving Credit Facilitgt of payments made to pay off borrowings undersenior secured credit facilities in
place prior to our April 2012 refinancing.

Commitments and Significant Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and commercial commitments at Decembe?@173.

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD (1)

LESS THAN
1-3 35
TOTAL ONE YEAR YEARS YEARS THEREAFTER
(In thousands)

Inventory purchase commitmer $ 3,807 $ 3,807 $ — $ — $ —
Indebtednes $ 184,68: $ 12,01( $ 24,02( $ 85,741 $ 62,90¢

Capital lease obligations and software
financing $ 3,74¢ $ 672 $ 1,942 $ 1,131 $ —
Long-term operating least $ 58,13¢ $ 11,71¢ $ 15,718 $ 10,43: $ 20,271
Total $ 250,37 $ 28,20¢ $ 41,67¢ $ 97,31 $ 83,17¢

(1) Interest on our various outstanding debt imatrnts is included in the above table, except fertéinm loan portion of our senior secured
credit facilities, which has a variable intereserat December 27, 2013, we had borrowings of @33llion under the term loan portion of
our senior secured credit facilities. During trexél year ended December 27, 2013, the interesbrathe term loan portion of our senior
secured credit facilities was 3.19% to 3.50%. Dgitime year ended December 27, 2013, we incurredesit expense of $1,198, under the
term loan portion of our senior secured creditlfiées. See Note 10 “Debt Obligations” to our colidated financial statements for further
information.
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A portion of the indebtedness obligations showthaabove table reflect the expiration of our seséxured credit facilities, not necessarily
underlying individual borrowings. In addition, caghbe paid for income taxes is excluded from #iset above.

One of our subsidiaries, Dairyland USA Corporationpairyland, subleases one of its distributiontees from an entity controlled by our
founders, The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co., LL@ Chefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co., LLC leases theilalision center from the New York
City Industrial Development Agency. In connectioithithis sublease arrangement, Dairyland and twouofother subsidiaries are required to
act as conditional guarantors of The Chefs’ Warshdieasing Co., LLC’s mortgage obligation on thetribution center. The mortgage payoff
date is December 2029 and the potential obligatiater this conditional guarantee totaled $9,990emtember 27, 2013. On July 1, 2005, tt
subsidiary guarantoentered into a consent and release agreementheitinortgagee in which the entity guarantors werglitimnally release
from their respective obligations. The Company thedentity guarantors continue to be in complianite the specified conditions. The Chefs’
Warehouse Leasing Co., LLC has the ability to ajitad its lease agreement with the New York Citgistrial Development Agency by giving
60 days’ notice. This action would cause the comgumreduction in the term of the sublease withr{and to December 2014.

We had outstanding letters of credit of approxiya$3,820 and $1,820 at December 27, 2013 and Dieee8, 2012, respectively.
Substantially all of our assets are pledged asieohl to secure our borrowings under our senicursel credit facilities.

Seasonality

Excluding our direct-to-consumer business, we galyedo not experience any material seasonalitywél@r, our sales and operating results
may vary from quarter to quarter due to factordsag changes in our operating expenses, managesnadility to execute our operating and
growth strategies, personnel changes, demand fgeroducts, supply shortages, weather patterngiandral economic conditions.

Our direct-to-consumer business is subject to seddlictuations, with direct-to-consumer centestiod-plate protein sales typically higher
during the holiday season in our fourth quartecpadingly, a disproportionate amount of operatiagtcflows from this portion of our business
is generated by our direct-to-consumer businefisaifiourth quarter of our fiscal year. Despitegn#icant portion of these sales occurring in
the fourth quarter, there are operating expensewipally advertising and promotional expensesytighout the year.

Inflation

Our profitability is dependent on, among other gfsinour ability to anticipate and react to chariggke costs of key operating resources,
including food and other raw materials, labor, ggeand other supplies and services. Substantied@ses in costs and expenses could impact
our operating results to the extent that such asme cannot be passed along to our customersmpiaet of inflation on food, labor, energy
occupancy costs can significantly affect the padiility of our operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 27, 2013, we did not have any oféfiee sheet arrangements, as defined in Iltem 3@3(i@) of Regulation S-K.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

On April 25, 2012, the Borrowers and the Guaranémtered into the Credit Agreement with the lendiens time to time party thereto, Chase,
as Administrative Agent, and the other partiesdteerOn April 17, 2013, the Borrowers and Guaranésttered into the Amended and Restate
Credit Agreement. Each of the Credit AgreementthedAmended and Restated Credit Agreement is destih more detail above under the
caption “Liquidity and Capital Resources” in “Marsagent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Candiand Results of Operations.” Our
primary market risks are related to fluctuationgierest rates related to borrowings under ourerurcredit facilities.

As of December 27, 2013, we had an aggregate $3iion of indebtedness outstanding under the Rengl Credit Facility and Term Loan

Facility that bore interest at variable rates. A basis point increase in market interest rateddvdecrease our after tax earnings by
approximately $195 per annum, holding other vadslonstant.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The Chef#/arehouse, Inc. as of December 27, 2013 and Decedd
2012 and the related consolidated statements ghtipes and comprehensive income, stockholdegsity/members units, and cash flows
each of the three fiscal years in the period endedember 27, 2013. These financial statementsteradsponsibility of the Comparsy’
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finastééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on & b&sis, evidence supporting the amounts and dig#s in the financial stateme
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asaira the overall presentation of
financial statements. We believe that our auditiole a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaarferred to above present fairly, in all mate®spects, the financial position of The Chefs
Warehouse, Inc. at December 27, 2013 and Decenthe2042, and the results of its operations andath flows for each of the three fis
years in the period ended December 27, 2013, ifoomity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States of Americ

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bloédnited States), The Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc.’s internal control over financiaporting as of December 27, 2013, based on criestablished ininternal Control -
Integrated Framework (199:issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatarie Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repatec
March 12, 2014 expressed an unqualified opiniorethre.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Melville, NY
March 12, 2014
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 27

December 28

2013 2012
ASSETS (In thousands, except share date
Current assett

Cash and cash equivale $ 20,01 $ 11¢

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $3,642003 and $3,440 in 20! 76,411 56,69

Inventories, ne 64,71( 40,40:

Deferred taxes, nt 2,70¢ 2,83¢

Prepaid expenses and other current a: 16,25( 5,457

Total current asse 180,09! 105,50!
Restricted cas 5,57¢ 11,00¢
Equipment and leasehold improvements, 27,58¢ 9,36¢
Software costs, nt 2,26t 32¢
Goodwill 78,02¢ 45,35¢
Intangible assets, n 57,45( 35,70¢
Other asset 3,75¢ 2,861

Total asset $ 354,75t $ 210,13

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 33,92t $ 33,71¢

Accrued liabilities 15,80: 5,291

Accrued compensatic 5,99¢ 3,51¢

Current portion of lon-term debt 6,861 517¢

Total current liabilities 62,59 47,70:
Long-term debt, net of current portic 140,84 119,35:
Deferred taxes, n 8,33¢ 2,55:
Other liabilities and deferred cred 10,917 1,24t

Total liabilities 222,69: 170,85:
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:

Preferred Stock - $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 sharg®rized, no shares issued an

outstanding at December 27, 2013 and December(22, — —
Common Stock - $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 stear#®rized, 25,032,216 and

20,988,073 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&Wp2013 and December 2!

2012, respectivel 25( 21C
Additional paid in capita 96,97: 21,00¢
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustmn (215) —
Retained earning 35,05% 18,06"

Total stockholder equity 132,06! 39,28

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 354,75t  $ 210,13

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tistents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREH ENSIVE INCOME

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profil
Operating expenses
Operating incom:i
Interest expens
Gain on fluctuation of interest rate sw
Loss on sale of assets
Income before income tax
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Other comprehensive incorr
Foreign currency translation adjust

Comprehensive income

THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shasmounts)

Fiscal Year Ended

December 30

Net income per share attributable to common stdcldns:

Basic
Diluted

Weighted average common shares o
Basic
Diluted

December 27, 201 December 28, 201 2011
$ 673,54! $ 480,29 400,63:
501,18: 355,28t 294,69!
172,36¢ 125,00« 105,93
135,78: 96,23" 78,13¢
36,58: 28,76 27,79¢
7,77¢ 3,67¢ 14,57(
— — (81)
8 18 6
28,79¢ 25,07¢ 13,30:
11,80¢ 10,56+ 5,60:
$ 16,99( $ 14,51. 7,69¢
ments (215 — —
$ 16,77¢ $ 14,51: 7,69¢
$ 0.7¢ $ 0.7¢ 0.4¢
$ 0.77 $ 0.6¢ 0.4:
utstani
21,766,74 20,612,40 17,591,37
21,995,04 20,926,36 18,031,65

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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Balance December 24, 201

Net income- pre-conversior

Conversion to C Corporatic

Net proceeds from IP!

Net income- post conversiol

Stock compensatic

Shares surrendered to pay
withholding taxes

Balance December 30, 201

Net income

Stock compensatic

Shares surrendered to
withholding taxes

Balance December 28, 201

Net income

Proceeds from secondary offer

Stock compensatic

Excess tax benefits on stock
compensatiol

Cumulative translatio
adjustmen

Shares surrendered to
withholding taxes

Balance December 27, 201

THE CHEFS' WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY/MEMBERS UNITS
For the Years Ended December 27, 2013, Decembe, 2012 and December 30, 2011
(Amounts in thousands, except unit/share amounts)

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other
Class B Class C Members’ Paid in Comprehensive Retained
Units Units Deficit Shares Amount Capital Loss Earnings Total
$ 50,000,00 4,375,000 $ (48,81) — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 —  $(48,81)
_ — 4,147 — — — — — 4,14%
(50,000,00)  (4,375,00) 44,67( 16,000,00 16C (44,83() — — —
— — — 4,666,66 47 63,23: — — 63,27¢
— — — — — — — 3,55¢€ 3,55¢
— — — 212,31t 2 2,09t — — 2,097
— — — (38,394 (1) (697) — — (692)
$ — — $ — 20,840,59 $ 20¢ $ 19,80¢ $ — $ 3,55¢ $ 23,57(
— — — — — — — 14,51 14,51
— — — 171,23: 2 1,54t — — 1,54
— — — (23,75() — (34€) — — (346
$ — — $ — 20,988,07 $ 21C $ 21,00 $ — $ 18,06] $ 39,28
— — — — — — 16,99( 16,99(
— — — 3,800,00! 38 74,99¢ — — 75,03"
— — — 258,34 2 1,20¢ — — 1,21C
— — — — — 3C — — 30
— — — — — — (215 — (215
— — — (14,20Y — (26S) — — (269)
$ = — $ — 25,032,21 $ 25( $ 96,97: $ (215) $ 35,05 $132,06!

See accompanying

notes to consolidated finan@#stents.
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 27, 2013, Decembed, 2012, and December 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

(Amounts in thousands)

December 27

December 28

December 30

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigdea by

operating activities
Depreciatior
Amortization
Provision for allowance for doubtful accou
Original issue discount amortizati
Deferred credit
Deferred taxe
Unrealized gain on interest rate sv
Accrual of paid in kind intere:
Amortization of deferred financing fe
Write off of deferred financing fee
Stock compensatic
Change in fair value of ee-out
Loss on asset dispos

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqarsiti
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Other asset

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditure
Cash paid for acquisitior
Proceeds from asset dispos

Net cash used in investing activitie

Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted ca
Proceeds of secondary offeri
Net proceeds from IP!
Proceeds from new senior secured |
Proceeds from senior secured n¢
Payment of debt and capital lease obligat
Borrowing under revolving credit lir
Payments under revolving credit li
Payment of deferred financing fe
Surrender of shares to pay withholding ta
Excess tax benefits on stock compense
Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of foreign currency on cash and cash eqaiva
Net change in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for income tax
Cash paid for intere:
Noncash investing activity
Capital leas:
Software financing
Liabilities assumed with acquisitio

2013 2012 2011
$ 16,99C  $ 14511  $ 7,69¢
2,521 2,07¢ 1,447
4,79¢ 1,85¢ 28C
924 1,43¢ 1,18¢
— — 2,127
331 30z (290)
97¢ (83) 1,164
— — (81)
— — 1,82F
647 44€ 721
— 237 2,86(
1,21¢ 1,541 2,097
(1,157) — —
8 18 6
(5,889 (7,739 (7,039
39t (5,130) (3,969
(9,207) (2,060) 24t
(1,411) 1,35( 6,51¢
(49€) (374) (74)
10,63¢ 8,391 16,72
(11,709 (3,186) (2,08))
(77,995 (72,527 (17,757
_ — 5
(89,699 (75,707 (19,83Y)
5,43( @ —
75,03 — —
= — 63,27¢
— 40,00( 30,00(
100,00( — —
(5,271) (30,137 (93,28%)
70,80( 248,25 399,87
(145,800 (190,641 (394,719
(1,230) (1,739 (1,299)
(26¢) (34€) (692)
30 — —
98,72 65,401 3,16¢
23C — —
19,89¢ (1,915) 55
11¢€ 2,03: 1,97¢
$ 2001 $ 116 $ 2,03:
$ 11457  $ 12297  $ 2,641
$ 6,012 $ 2,781 $ 7,35¢
$ 137 $ 34z $ 34z
$ 332 % — $ —
$ 10,947  $ — $ —



See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements.
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THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per sharer@unts)

Note 1 - Operations and Basis of Presentation
Description of Business and Basis of Presentati

The financial statements include the consolidatedants of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. (the “Comfjamand its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
The Company’s quarterly periods end on the thitte&niday of each quarter. Every six to seven ydasCompany will add a fourteenth week
to its fourth quarter to more closely align its yead to the calendar year. In 2011, this resutted53-week year ended December 30, 2011.
The Company operates in one segment, food prodstcibdition, which is concentrated on the East Wbt Coasts of the United States. The
Company’s customer base consists primarily of mgsinen independent restaurants, fine dining esthbiients, country clubs, hotels, caterers
culinary schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocafat@uise lines, casinos and specialty food stores

On July 27, 2011, the Company completed a reorgéioizin which the predecessor to the Company, £hgérehouse Holdings, LLC, was
converted into the Company (the “Conversion”). &stwf the Conversion the Company issued 16,000s6@8es of common stock. Each
holder of the Company’s Class B and Class C unitsived approximately 0.2942 shares of common dtooéach unit of membership interest
in Chefs’ Warehouse Holdings, LLC owned by therthattime of the Conversion. Of the total numbesltdres issued in the Conversion,
445,056 shares were restricted shares of the Corispemmmon stock issued upon conversion of the Gomis Class C units that had not
vested as of the date the Company consummatedatmee@sion. The effects of this reorganization an@owmpany’s earnings per share have
been reflected for all periods presented retroaltiv

On August 2, 2011, the Company completed the Irptidlic offering (“IPO”) of shares of its commotosk. The Company issued 4,666,667
shares in the offering, and certain existing stoddérs sold an additional 5,683,333 shares, inofydi,350,000 shares sold to the underwriters
to cover over-allotments. The Company receiveconeteeds from the offering of approximately $63,2afer the payment of underwriter
discounts and commissions and offering expensas)tbre used, together with borrowings under then@any’s then-existing senior secured
credit facilities, to repay all of the Company’aits outstanding under its former senior secureditdeilities and senior subordinated notes,
including any accrued and unpaid interest andpraliniums.

Consolidation

The Company’s direct and indirect wholly-owned @tierg companies include the following: DairylandAJSorporation (“Dairyland”)a New
York corporation engaged in business as a distiitaftdairy, meat, and specialty foods; Bel Carmods, LLC, a New York limited liability
company engaged in the business of importing piiynsiediterranean style food products; Dairyland HEC (“DHP”), a Delaware limited
liability company engaged in the business of rantieal estate; The Chefs’ Warehouse Mithntic, LLC, a Delaware limited liability compa
engaged in a business similar to Dairyland, pritpami Maryland and the District of Columbia; The €&’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company engaged in aibass similar to Dairyland, primarily in Californiblevada, Oregon and Washington;
Michael's Finer Meats, LLC (“Michael's”), a Delawatimited liability company engaged in the disttibu of meat, seafood and other center-
of-the-plate products, primarily in Ohio, Indianiinois, Tennessee, Michigan, Kentucky, West Virigiand western Pennsylvania; The Chefs
Warehouse Midwest, LLC, a Delaware limited liagildompany engaged in a business similar to Daidylanmarily in Ohio, Kentucky and
Indiana; The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division,,ladelaware corporation engaged in the distrilbutibgourmet chocolate, dessert and
pastry products; The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry @imistanada ULC, a British Columbia unlimited liatyilcompany engaged in a business
similar to The ChefsiWarehouse Pastry Division, Inc.; QZ Acquisition @)SInc., a Delaware corporation engaged in a lssrsimilar to TF
Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc.; Qzina SakgiFoods, North America (USA), Inc., a Delawaogporation engaged in a business
similar to The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Divisior, liQzina Specialty Foods, Inc., a Florida corgoragngaged in a business similar to The
Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc.; Qzina SakgiFoods, Inc., a Washington corporation engagedbusiness similar to The Chefs’
Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc.; Qzina Specialtgd=(Ambassador), Inc., a California corporatiogagyed in a business similar to The
Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc.; The Che#girehouse of Florida, LLC, a Delaware limited liapicompany engaged in a business
similar to Dairyland, primarily in southern Floridallen Brothers 1893, LLC, a Delaware limited liity company engaged in a business
similar to Michael’s, primarily in lllinois; and CWV Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liabiltpmpany engaged in owning real estate in
Las Vegas, Nevada. In addition to these operatimgpanies, the Company also owns 100% of Chefs’ Woarse Parent, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company which owns 100% of The €’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, The Chefs’ Wareise West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’
Warehouse of Florida, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehousew&ist, LLC, Michael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC, &lBware limited liability

company, QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc, and The Chaf¢garehouse Pastry Division, Inc. Dairyland owns 108f9Bel Canto Foods, LLC and
Dairyland HP LLC. Michael's Finer Meats Holdingd,C owns 100% of Michael's . QZ Acquisition (USAhd. owns 100% of Qzina
Specialty Foods North America (USA), Inc. Qzina Sakty Foods North America (USA), Inc. owns 100%Qfina Specialty Foods, Inc. (FL),
Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (WA) and Qzina Spegigtiods (Ambassador), Inc. The Chefs’ Warehoust&yBsvision, Inc. owns 100% of
The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division Canada UL@& Chef's Warehouse West Coast, LLC owns 100% oflGMReal Estate, LLC. The
Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC owns 100% of Allerotiers 1893, LLC. All significant intercompany aaots and transactions have been
eliminated.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated firgrstatements in conformity with generally acegpaccounting principles requires it to
make estimates and assumptions that affect repanedints of assets, liabilities, revenues, expemseslisclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Estimates are used in determining, agiother items, the allowance for doubtful accourgserves for inventories, self-insurance
reserves for group medical insurance, workers’ camsption insurance, and automobile liability inseeg future cash flows associated with
impairment testing for intangible assets (includiymgpdwill) and long-lived assets, useful lives iftiangible assets, stock-based compensatior
and tax reserves. Actual results could differ frestimates.

Current Year Acquisitions

The Company’s acquisitions of Queensgate Foodse(i{@ueensgate”) in the first quarter of fiscal 20Qzina Specialty Foods North
America, Inc. (“Qzina”) in the second quarter afcfal 2013 and Allen Brothers, Inc. (“Allen Broth@rs the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013 were
determined to be material in the aggregate anayrdcgly, pro forma financial information givingfett to these acquisitions is included in
Note 5.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recoghnitio

Revenue from the sale of a product is recognizedeapoint at which the product is delivered to ¢hstomer. The Company grants certain
customers sales incentives such as rebates owdiscand treats these as a reduction of saleg &tk the sale is recognized. Sales tax billed
to customers is not included in revenue but ratbeorded as a liability owed to the respectivertgyduthorities at the time the sale is
recognized.

Cost of Sales

The Company records COGS based upon the net perphiae paid for a product, including applicablkeight charges incurred to deliver the
product to the Company’s warehouse.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include the costs of facilipesduct handling and replenishment, protein prsiogscosts, delivering, selling and general
administrative activities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investmausith an original maturity of less than three manth be cash equivalents. The Company

periodically maintains balances at financial ingittns which may exceed Federal Deposit Insurarmpdation (“FDIC”) insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses in sucluaiscand believes it is not exposed to any siganificisks on its cash in bank accounts.
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Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable consist of trade receivablesfcustomers and are recorded net of an allowanagofibtful accounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is determined based upon a nuoftspecific criteria, such as whether a custonaerfiled for or been placed into
bankruptcy, has had accounts referred to outsideepdor collections or has had accounts signifiyapast due. The allowance also covers
short paid invoices the Company deems to be uratalidée as well as a portion of trade accounts vabée balances projected to become
uncollectable based upon historic patterns.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of finished goodspdicand related food products held for resale aadralued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-
out method) or market. The Company maintains resefor slow-moving and obsolete inventories.

Purchase Incentive:

The Company receives consideration and productpgeccredits from certain vendors that the Compangunts for as a reduction of COGS.
There are several types of cash considerationvegddéiom vendors. The purchase incentive is pripanithe form of a specified amount per
pound or per case. For the years ended Decemb2023, December 28, 2012, and December 30, 20&Xettorded purchase incentives
totaled approximately $6,653, $5,134, and $4,82€pectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risks

Financial instruments that subject the Companyotaentrations of credit risk consist of cash, terapocash investments and trade
receivables. The Company'’s policy is to depositétsh and temporary cash investments with majantial institutions. The Company
distributes its food and related products to aaust base that consists primarily of leading merived independent restaurants, fine dining
establishments, country clubs, hotels, caterelmary schools, bakeries, patisseries, chocolat@tgse lines, casinos and specialty food st
To reduce credit risk, the Company performs ongaireglit evaluations of its customers’ financial ditions. The Company generally does not
require collateral. However, the Company, in certastances, has obtained personal guaranteescdain customers. There is no significant
balance with any individual customer.

Equipment and Leasehold Improvemer

The Company records equipment and leasehold imprerts at cost. Equipment that has been financeddghrcapital leases is recorded at
present value of the minimum lease payments, wégroximates cost. Equipment and leasehold impremsnincluding capital lease assets,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based egtimated useful life.

Software Cost:

The Company capitalizes certain computer softwiaenses and software implementation costs thahaheded in software costs in its
consolidated balance sheets. These costs wereaeddarconnection with developing or obtaining cangp software for internal use if it has a
useful life in excess of one year, in accordandb viccounting Standards Codification (ASC) 350-#@érnal-Use Software”. Subsequent
additions, modifications or upgrades to interna-ssftware are capitalized only to the extent they allow the software to perform a task that
it previously did not perform. Internal use softeé amortized on a straight-line basis over agthoeseven year period. Capitalized costs
include direct acquisitions as well as software switivare development acquired under capitalizadds and internal labor where appropriate
Capitalized software purchases and related devedopoosts, net of accumulated amortization, werd@®at December 27, 2013 and $328 ai
December 28, 2012.

Impairment of Lon¢-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, other than goodwill, are revigia@ impairment in accordance with ASC 360-10-F-1mpairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets' that only requires testing whenever events or chamycircumstances indicate that the carrying amofithe assets may not be
recoverable. If any indicators are present, a rehility test is performed by comparing the cargyamount of the asset to the net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generatedtiie asset. If the net undiscounted cash flowsad@xceed the carrying amount (i.e., the
asset is not recoverable), an additional stepri®pred that determines the fair value of the aasdtthe Company records an impairment, if
any.
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Debt Issuance Cost

Certain costs associated with the issuance ofidsetstuments are capitalized and included in nomendrassets in the consolidated balance
sheets. The Company had unamortized debt issuasteaf $2,803 and $2,435 as of December 27, 20dDacember 28, 2012, respectively.
These costs are amortized over the terms of théeetebt instruments by either the effective agerate method or on a straight-line basis.
Amortization of debt issuance costs was $647 feffisral year ended December 27, 2013, $446 fofithal year ended December 28, 2012,
and $721 for the fiscal year ended December 301.201addition, the Company wrote off debt issuacests totaling $2,860 in fiscal 2011
with the refinancing of its senior secured credydilities.

Intangible Asset:

The intangible assets recorded by the Company stoofscustomer relationships, covenants not to @ispnd trademarks which are amortizes
over their useful lives on a schedule that apprexés the pattern in which economic benefits ofiikengible assets are consumed. Intangible
assets with finite lives are tested for impairmwhenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Undiscounted cash flows expected geberated by the related assets are estimatedr@vassets’ useful lives based on update
projections. If the evaluation indicates that therging amount of the asset may not be recover#iidepotential impairment is measured basec
on a projected discounted cash flow model. Theve tlh@en no events or changes in circumstancesgdiisoal 2013, fiscal 2012 or fiscal 20
indicating that the carrying value of our finite¢d intangible assets are not recoverable.

Goodwill

Gooduwill is the excess of the acquisition cost w$ihesses over the fair value of identifiable resets acquired in accordance with ASC 350,
“Intangibles-Goodwill and Other”. Impairment tegjifor goodwill is performed at least annually andrenfrequently if indicators of
impairment exist. Impairment testing for goodwtlas a two-step approach, which is performed atdhsolidated level, as the Company has :
single reporting unit. Step one compares the faluey of the Company (using the market capitalizatipproach) with its carrying value. If the
carrying value exceeds the fair value, there istamtial impairment and step two must be perfornsep two compares the carrying value of
the entity’s goodwill to its implied fair value €i., fair value of the entity less the fair valuetod entity’s assets and liabilities, including
identifiable intangible assets). If the carryindueaof goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, tecess is required to be recorded as
impairment. There have been no events or changascimmstances during fiscal 2013, 2012 or 2011icatthg that goodwill may be impaired.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are carried as assets or liabilitiethair fair values in accordance with ASC 820 “Péalue Measurements”. The Company’s
derivative was comprised of an interest rate svaaproitment entered into with a financial institutitmhedge the risk associated with the
Company’s variable rate debt. The swap expireéiudry 2011 and therefore had no value as of DegeWy 2013 or December 28, 2012.
Prior to its expiration, the financial instrumeid diot qualify for hedge accounting and was caraethir value with the changes in fair value
recorded in earnings.

In January 2011, the Company entered into a forekphange collar contract to hedge its exposuvatiability in the Euro/US Dollar
exchange rate. This agreement expired in Decenildel. Prior to its expiration, the financial instrem did not qualify for hedge accounting
and was carried at fair value with the changesiinvalue recorded in earnings.

In February 2012, the Company purchased an otiteofrtoney Brent Crude Option as a hedge againstiiatgeo-political disruptions in the

Middle East. This option expired on June 11, 2@r to its expiration, the financial instrumerd dot qualify for hedge accounting and was
carried at fair value with the changes in fair watecorded in earnings.
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Employee Benefit Program

The Company sponsors a defined contribution plareigeg substantially all full-time employees (th&01(k) Plan”). Beginning in fiscal 2011,
the Company elected to make matching contributiorike 401(k) Plan at 50% of employee contributitma maximum of three percent of an
employee’s salary. The Company recognized expenakng $449, $337 and $300, respectively, forytears ended December 27, 2013,
December 28, 2012 and December 30, 2011.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740, “Income Taxes”. Deferred tax assethabilities are recorded to reflect
the future tax consequences of temporary differebetween the financial reporting basis of asseddiabilities and their tax basis at each
yearend. These amounts are adjusted, as appropoatefléct enacted changes in tax rates expectbd to effect when the temporary
differences reverse. The Company follows certagvigions of ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (previously oeied as Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — ateipretation of FASB Statement No. 109) which dighbd a single model to address
accounting for uncertain tax positions and clasitiee accounting for income taxes by prescribingramum recognition threshold that a tax
position is required to meet before being recoghinghe financial statements. The Company evatuateertain tax positions, if any, by
determining if it is more likely than not to be faiaed upon examination by the tax authorities. Thenpany records uncertain tax positions
when they are estimable and probable that sucliitied have been incurred. The Company, when mregliwill accrue interest and penalties
related to income tax matters in income tax expense

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is subject to various claims and cgsticies related to lawsuits, taxes and environrhem#ters, as well as commitments unde
contractual and other commercial obligations. Tlhen@Bany recognizes liabilities for contingencies anthmitments when a loss is probable
and can be reasonably estimated.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures stock-based compensatioa gitaht date based on the fair value of the avRedtricted stock awards are valued
based on the fair value of the stock on the grate end the related compensation expense is remmgover the service period. Similarly, for
time-based restricted stock awards subject to gradsting, the Company ensures that the compensaxijgense recognized is at least equal t
the vested portion of the award.

Self-Insurance Reserves

Effective October 1, 2011, the Company began miiinig a self-insured group medical program. Thegpan contains stop loss thresholds of
$125 per incident and aggregate stop loss threstasgled upon the average number of employeesethinlthe program during the year. The
amount in excess of the self-insured levels ig/funsured by third party insurers. Liabilities asisded with this program are estimated in part
by considering historical claims experience andinaaost trends. Projections of future loss expsraze inherently uncertain because of the
random nature of insurance claims occurrences anld de significantly affected if future occurree@nd claims differ from these assumpt
and historical trends.

Effective August 1, 2012, the Company became sslifiied for workers’ compensation and automobileillts to deductibles or self-insured
retentions of $350 for workers compensation and$2bautomobile liability per occurrence. The amtsuin excess of the Company’s
deductibles are fully insured by third party ingsrd.iabilities associated with this program argéneated in part by considering historical cla
experience and cost trends. Projections of fulnse &xpenses are inherently uncertain because ofitidom nature of insurance claims
occurrences and could be significantly affectedtifire occurrences and claims differ from thesemggdions and historical trends.

Fair Value Measurements

The carrying values of the Company’s assets ahditias approximate the fair values except for thie value of the Company’s fixed rate
debt, which is based on prevailing interest ratesraarket prices for debt of similar terms and maé&s. The carrying amount of the
Company’s senior secured notes at December 27, 20d®ximates fair value as the interest rate nbthby the Company approximates the
prevailing interest rates for similar instrumemts.of December 27, 2013 the Company’s only asgdiallities measured at fair value were
the contingent earn-out liabilities for the Queaisgand Allen Brothers acquisitions. These lidbgitvere estimated using level 3 inputs and
had fair values of $960 and $6,332 at DecembeP@¥3, respectively.
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Note 3 — Net Income per Share
The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share:

Fiscal Year Ende

December 27, December 28, December 30,
2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 16,99( 14,51; $ 7,69¢
Net income per share
Basic $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7c¢ $ 0.4¢
Diluted $ 0.77 $ 0.6¢ $ 0.42
Weighted average common shares outstanc
Basic 21,766,74 20,612,40 17,591,37
Diluted 21,995,04 20,926,36 18,031,65

Reconciliation of earnings per share:

Fiscal Year Ende

December 27, December 28, December 30,
2013 2012 2011
Numerator:
Net income $ 16,99( $ 14,51 $ 7,69¢
Denominator:
Weighted average basic common shares outstal 21,766,74 20,612,40 17,591,37
Dilutive effect of unvested common sha 228,29¢ 313,95¢ 440,27"
21,995,04 20,926,36 18,031,65

Weighted average diluted common shares outstat

Note 4 — Fair Value Measurements

The Company accounts for certain assets and liakifat fair value. The Company categorizes eadts ¢dir value measurements in one of the
following three levels based on the lowest levelithat is significant to the fair value measuretie its entirety:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology anadjusted quoted prices in active markets for idahassets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prinective markets for identical assets and lidsl include the following:
a) quoted prices for similar assets in active marlk
b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets ective markets
c) inputs other than quoted prices that are obsenfablie asset; ar

d) inputs that are derived principally from or corrofted by observable market data by correlatiortleeraneans
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If the asset has a specified (contractual) term#vel 2 input must be observable for substagtthk full term of the asset.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology anehservable (i.e., supported by little or no madgatvity) and significant to the fair
value measure.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Valt

As of December 27, 2013 the Company’s only asgdlialglities measured at fair value were the cogéint earn-out liabilities for the
Queensgate and Allen Brothers acquisitions. Thabdities were estimated using level 3 inputs Aad fair values of $960 and $6,332 at
December 27, 2013, respectively. These liabildéiesreflected in Other Liabilities on the balanbeet. The fair value of contingent
consideration was determined based on a probabkthed approach which includes projected resudtsgntage probability of occurrence and
discount rate to present value the payments. Afgignt change in projected results, discount ratggrobabilities of occurrence could result in
a significantly higher or lower fair value measuesth During the year ended December 27, 2013 dinedlue of the Queensgate earn-out wa
reduced by $1,157 as the earn-out threshold foyehe was not reached. As of December 28, 201X tliepany had no assets or liabilities
required to be measured at fair value.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reported in the Company’s aliaeted balance sheets for accounts receivabl@aeomilnts payable approximate fair
value due to the immediate to short-term maturitthese financial instruments. The fair valueshaf turrent and former revolving credit
facilities and term loans approximated their boalues as of December 27, 2013 and December 28, 281Bese instruments had variable
interest rates that reflected current market rathe.carrying amount of the Company’s senior setnges at December 27, 2013
approximates fair value as the interest rate obthbyy the Company approximates the prevailing &sterates for similar instruments.

Note 5 — Acquisitions

The Company accounts for acquisitions in accordantteASC 805 “Business Combinations”. Assets amiand liabilities assumed are
recorded in the accompanying consolidated balaineetst their estimated fair values as of the aitipm date. Results of operations are
included in the Company’s financial statements ftbmdate of acquisition. For the acquisitions ddielow, the Company used the income
approach to determine the fair value of the custamdationships, the relief from royalty methoddetermine the fair value of trademarks and
the comparison of economic income using the witthfaut approach to determine the fair value of ntompete agreements. The Company
Level 3 inputs to determine the fair value of hlt$e intangible assets.

On December 11, 2013, the Company acquired submtarmtl the assets of Allen Brothers, Inc. (at&lsubsidiaries) based in Chicago, lllint
Founded in 1893, Allen Brothers is a leading preoesnd distributor of premium quality meats totlagion’s finest restaurants, hotels, cas
and country clubs. In addition, Allen Brothers sliggomany of those same high quality products twsamers through a direct mail and e-
commerce platformThe total purchase price for the business is expleict be approximately $33,439 (subject to custgmarking capital
adjustments), of which $23,939 was paid at closiitg cash proceeds from the Company’s recently detad common stock offering. The
remaining $9,500 represents liabilities assumethbyCompany and earnout consideration to be paid the achievement of certain
performance milestones over the next four years. Gbmpany expensed $300 of professional fees iratpg expenses related to the
acquisition during the year ended December 27, 2088 Company is in the process of performing aatabn of the tangible and intangible
assets of Allen Brothers as of the acquisition .dBltese assets will be valued at fair value usiegell 3 inputs. Other intangible assets are
expected to be amortized over 20 years. Goodwilitfe Allen Brothers acquisition will be amortizeder 20 years for tax purposes. Allen
Brothers contributed revenue of $11,994 and incbafere provision for taxes of $1,510 for the yeaded December 27, 2013.

62




On May 1, 2013, the Company acquired 100% of thetginterests of Qzina Specialty Foods North Aroariinc. (“Qzina”), a British
Columbia, Canada corporation based in Pompano Bé&#atida. Founded in 1982, Qzina is a leading §appf gourmet chocolate, dessert
and pastry products dedicated to the pastry priofieals At the time of its acquisition, Qzina sugglisome of the finest restaurants, bakeries,
patisseries, chocolatiers, hotels and cruise limesighout the U.S. and Canada. The total purchase for Qzina was approximately
$31,796 at closing, net of $578 of cash (subjecutomary post-closing working capital adjustmeatsl was funded with borrowings under
the revolving credit facility portion of the Compgs senior secured credit facilities. The Compaxgensed $149 of legal fees in operating
expenses related to the acquisition in the yeag@iltecember 27, 2013. The Company has completeairalf valuation of the tangible and
intangible assets of Qzina, as of the acquisitiate dThese assets were valued at fair value ugngll3 inputs. Other intangible assets consist
of trademarks, which will be amortized over 20 weaustomer relationships, which will be amortipedr 20 years and covenants not to
compete, which will be amortized over 2-5 yearso@aill for the Qzina acquisition will not be dedildé for tax purposes. Qzina contributed
revenue of $43,959 and loss before provision feesaf $800 for the year ended December 27, 2013.

On December 31, 2012, the Company purchased stibdi{aall the assets of Queensgate Foodservicei¢&psgate”)a foodservice distributc
based in Cincinnati, Ohio. The purchase price foe€hsgate was approximately $21,900, which the @agnfinanced with borrowings under
the revolving credit facility portion of the Compgas then-existing senior secured credit facilitidslditionally, the purchase price may have
been increased by up to $2,400 based upon thevachént of certain EBITDA milestones over a two-ypariod following the closing. At
December 31, 2012, the Company estimated the dhievof this contingent consideration to be $2,A48ed upon the most likely expected
payout. This contingent liability will be adjustesifair value on a quarterly basis and is estimatdae $960 at December 27, 2013 as
Queensgate did not meet the EBITDA threshold raggipayment for fiscal 2013 results. The Comparpgessed $69 of legal fees in operating
expenses related to the acquisition in the yeag@ftecember 27, 2013. The Company has completeciralf valuation of the tangible and
intangible assets of Queensgate. These assetyvalaes at fair value using Level 3 inputs. Othdaingible assets consist of customer
relationships, which will be amortized over 7 yeansd covenants not to compete, which will be ainedtover 5 years. Goodwill for the
Queensgate acquisition will be amortized for taxppses over 15 years. Queensgate contributed rewva&r#88,930 and income before
provision for taxes of $1,044 for the year endedddeber 27, 2013.

On August 10, 2012, the Company acquired 100%ebthistanding equity interests of Michael’s for mpmately $52,973, net of $536 of
cash. In August of 2013, we paid the sellers $83%ettle a dispute over the final working capittlement. Michael’s distributes an extensive
portfolio of custom cut beef, seafood and othet&eaf-the-plate products to many of the leadirgfaarants, country clubs, hotels and casino
in Ohio, Indiana, lllinois, Tennessee, Michigan nikecky, West Virginia and western Pennsylvania. Tooenpany financed the purchase price
with borrowings under the revolving credit facilpyprtion of the Company’s then-existing senior sedwredit facilities. During the year ended
December 28, 2012, the Company expensed $85 dffesgmin operating expenses related to the adprisiThe Company has completed a
formal valuation of the intangible and certain tétgyassets of Michael's. The financial statemeetiect the results of the valuation of the
goodwill, intangible assets and fixed assets the@oy acquired in the transaction. These assets vadued at fair value using Level 3 inputs.
Other intangible assets consist of customer redakips, which will be amortized over 10 years, tvemlemarks, which will be amortized over
12-20 years, and covenants not to compete, whithbeamortized over 5 years. Goodwill for the Maelis acquisition will be amortized for
tax purposes over a period of 15 years.

On April 27, 2012, the Company acquired 100% ofdbtstanding common stock of Praml Internationdd, La Nevada corporation (“Praml”),
for approximately $19,548 in cash. Praml is a legdipecialty foodservice company that has sentited.as Vegas and Reno markets for ove
20 years. The Company financed the purchase pitbebarrowings under the revolving credit facilipprtion of the Company’s then-existing
senior secured credit facilities. During the yemded December 28, 2012, the Company expensed $2galffees in operating expenses rel

to the acquisition. The Company has completed @ati@in of the tangible and intangible assets ofrffPrahese assets were valued at fair value
using Level 3 inputs. Other intangible assets aridicustomer relationships, which will be amatizover 11 years, covenants not to compet
which will be amortized over 6 years, and two tradeks, which will be amortized over 1-20 years. @aill for the Praml acquisition is not
deductible for tax purposes.

The table below details the assets and liabilaeguired as part of the acquisitions of Allen Besth which was effective as of December 9,
2013, Qzina, which was effective as of May 1, 20Q8eensgate, which was effective as of Decembe2@I12, Michael's, which was effective
as of August 10, 2012, and Praml, which was effecdis of April 27, 2012, and the allocation of thechase price paid in connection with
these acquisitions.
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Current assel
Customer relationshiy
Trademarks

Goodwill

Other intangible:
Non-compete agreeme
Fixed asset

Other asset
Deferred tax asse
Deferred tax liability
Capital lease
Earr-out liability
Pension exit liability
Unfavorable lease
Current liabilities

Cash purchase price

Allen Brother: Qzina Queensgat Michae’s Praml
$ 15,64( $ 22,49¢ $ 4,14( $ 16,16 $ 3,31t
— 6,07( 1,52( 12,43: 4,187
— 4,411 — 12,72« 1,36¢
11,29: 5,84t 15,24 12,23¢ 12,86¢
9,27t
— 2,48( 2,92( 477 1,25¢
4,84: 90¢€ 1,90¢ 2,871 —
33
— (4,307) (863) — (2,676
— (137) — (349) —
(6,329 — (2,119 — —
(2,500 — — — —
(6) — — —
(8,337) (5,39)) (817) (2,744 (767)
$ 23,93¢ $ 32,37 $ 21,93¢ $ 53,84¢ $ 19,54¢

The table below presents pro forma consolidatednrecstatement information as if Queensgate, QzidaAlen Brothers had been included in
the Company’s consolidated results for fiscal 288 fiscal 2013. The pro forma results were prapénan financial information obtained
from the sellers of the business, as well as infdiom obtained during the due diligence processdated with the acquisitions. The pro forma
information has been prepared using the purchasieoth@®f accounting, giving effect to the acquisisas if the acquisitions had been
completed on December 31, 2011. The pro formammébion is not necessarily indicative of the Compsingsults of operations had the
acquisitions been completed on the above datdsribnecessarily indicative of the Company’s fetuesults. The pro forma information does
not reflect any cost savings from operating efficies or synergies that could result from the agitjons and also does not reflect additional
revenue opportunities following the acquisitioneeTpro forma information reflects amortization alegreciation of the acquisitions at their
respective fair values based on available inforomadéind to give effect to the financing for the dsitions and related transactions.

Net sales

Income before provision for income tay
Diluted earnings per sha

For the Years Ended (Unaudite

December 27,

December 28,

2013 2012
$ 765,11¢ $ 674,91
29,41¢ 25,25¢
0.7¢ 0.7¢
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Note 6 — Inventory

Inventory consists of finished product and is reearon a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory ifl@éeted net of reserves for shrinkage and
obsolescence totaling $683 and $650 at Decemb&0A3 and December 28, 2012, respectively.

Note 7 — Restricted Cash

On April 26, 2012, DHP entered into a financingaagement under the New Markets Tax Credit (“NMT@9gram under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”)upatto which Commercial Lending Il LLC (“CLII"), eommunity development entity
and a subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,igeakto DHP an $11,000 construction loan (the “NMO@&n”) to help fund DHP’s
expansion and build-out of the Company’s new BrdiX,distribution facility. The proceeds from the NI@ Loan are reflected as restricted
cash on the balance sheet. For more informatiaih@NMTC Loan see Note 10.

Note 8 — Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Plant, equipment and leasehold improvements caukddtthe following:

As of
Useful Lives December 27, 201 December 28, 201

Land Indefinite  $ 1,46¢ $ —
Buildings 20 year 3,672 —
Machinery and equipme 5-10 year 7,111 6,26¢
Computers, data processing and other equip 3-7 year 6,00¢ 5,15z
Leasehold improvemen 7-15 year 9,091 8,51¢
Furniture and fixture 7 year 622 617
Vehicles 5-7 year. 1,001 83¢
Other 7 year 95 85
Constructiorin-process 14,41 1,55¢

43,47¢ 23,03«
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (15,887 (13,669
Equipment and leasehold improvements, $ 27,58 $ 9,36¢

Construction-in-process at December 27, 2013 ejatienarily to the build out of our new distributidacility in Bronx, NY, the build out of
our new distribution facility in Las Vegas, NV atite implementation of our JD Edwards ERP systene. Cbmpany expects to spend
approximately $30,845 in fiscal 2014 to completsthprojects. Construction-process at December 28, 2012 related primariliedouild ou
of our new distribution facility in Bronx, NY.

At December 27, 2013, December 28, 2012 and Decegth@011, the Company had $820, $679 and $34fentively, of equipment and
vehicles financed by capital leases. The Compatyrded depreciation of $211, $132 and $28 on thssets for the years ended Decembe
2013, December 28, 2012 and December 30, 201leatsply.

Depreciation expense was $2,024, $1,730, and $I¢tfe fiscal years ended December 27, 2013, bee 28, 2012, and December 30,
2011, respectively.

Capitalized software is recorded net of accumulatadrtization of $1,572 and $1,286 for the fisasdns ended December 27, 2013 and

December 28, 2012, respectively. Depreciation es@@m software was $286, $221 and $182 for thalfiszars ended December 27, 2013,
December 28, 2012, and December 30, 2011, resphctiv
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Note 9 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillesented as follows:

Carrying amount as of December 30, 2! $ 20,59(
Goodwill acquired during the year 24,76¢
Carrying amount as of December 28, 2! 45,35¢
Goodwill increase 32,71¢
Foreign currency translation (52)
Carrying amount as of December 27, 2013 $ 78,02¢

Other intangible assets consist of customer relakips being amortized over a period ranging froatcsthirteen years, trademarks being
amortized over a period of one to twenty years, mortcompete agreements being amortized over acpefifive to six years. Other intangible
assets were comprised of the following at Decer@dizef£013 and December 28, 2012:

Weighted-Average

Remaining Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amortization Perio Amount Amortization Net Amount
December 27, 201
Customer Relationshiy 132 months $ 29,43¢ $ (4199 % 25,24(
Non-compete agreemer 49 months 7,131 (1,412 5,71¢
Other amortizable intangible 119 monthg 9,27¢ (54) 9,22(
Trademarks 239 months 18,80 (1,537) 17,27:
Total 154 monthe $ 64,64 3 (7199 % 57,45(
December 28, 201
Customer Relationshiy 117 months $ 21,84¢ $ (1,60)) $ 20,24¢
Non-compete agreemer 62 months 1,731 (17%) 1,55¢€
Trademarks 233 months 14,39: (48¢€) 13,90
Total 160 months $ 37,97 $ (2,267 & 35,70¢

Amortization expense for other intangibles was $8,%1,858 and $280 for the years ended Decemh&0238, December 28, 2012 and
December 30, 2011, respectively.

As of December 27, 2013, estimated amortizatiorergp for other intangible assets for each of tixéfie years and thereafter is as follows:

2014 $ 5,88:
2015 5,85(
2016 5,83(
2017 5,79¢
2018 4,65¢
Thereaftel 29,43¢
Total $ 57,45(

Note 10 — Debt Obligations

Debt obligations as of December 27, 2013 and Deee2®, 2012 consisted of the following:
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December 27, 201 December 28, 201

Senior secured noti $ 100,00( $ —
Revolving credit facility — 75,00(
Term loan 33,00( 38,00(
New Markets Tax Credit Loa 11,00( 11,00(
Capital leases and financed softw 3,71« 527
Total debt obligation 147,71« 124,52
Less: current installmen (6,867) (5,17%)
Total debt obligations excluding current installrts $ 14084 % 119,35

On April 25, 2012, Dairyland, The Chefs’ Warehoiid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Che##/arehouse West Coast, LLC, T
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC (each, a “Borrotaand collectively, the “Borrowers”), the CompanydaChefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC
(together with the Company, the “Guarantors”) ezdento a senior secured credit facility (the “Grédyreement”) with the lenders from time
to time party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.€hése”), as Administrative Agent, and the othetipathereto. The Credit Agreement
replaced the credit agreement that the Borrowedstaan Guarantors entered into in connection wighGompany’s initial public offering. On
August 29, 2012, Michael’s Finer Meats Holdings@.&nd Michael's each was added as a Guarantor tinel€@redit Agreement. On
January 24, 2013, The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, iMa8 added as a Guarantor under the Credit Agréemen

The Credit Agreement provided for a senior secteet loan facility (the “Term Loan Facility”) in ¢haggregate amount of up to $40,000 (the
loans thereunder, the “Term Loans”) and a seniounrgel revolving loan facility (the “Revolving Crédhiacility” and, together with the Term
Loan Facility, the “Credit Facilities”) of up to aggregate amount of $100,000 (the loans thereutidefRevolving Credit Loans”). The
Credit Agreement also provided that the Borrowendd, at their option, increase the aggregate amafunorrowings under either the
Revolving Credit Facility or the Term Loan Facilityan aggregate amount up to $40,000 (but ine=st than $10,000 increments) (the
“Accordion”) without the consent of any lenders patticipating in such increase, subject to certaistomary conditions and lenders
committing to provide the increase in funding. Timal maturity of the Term Loans and Revolving Gtéehcility was April 25, 2017. Subject
to adjustment for prepayments, the Company wasnedjto make quarterly principal payments on thenTeoans on

June 30, September 30, December 31 and March 81tha first four quarterly payments equal to $0,p@r quarter and the last sixteen
quarterly payments equal to $1,500 per quarteh thie remaining balance due upon maturity.

The Credit Facilities were secured by substantiliyhe assets of the Borrowers and the Guaramtibhsthe exception of equity interests in
and assets of DHP. Borrowings under the Creditlifiasibore interest at the Company’s option ofieit(i) the alternate base rate (representin
the greatest of (1) Chase’s prime rate, (2) ther@dunds effective rate for overnight borrowingyss 1/2 of 1% and (3) the Adjusted LIBO
Rate for one month plus 2.50%) plus in each casapiplicable margin of 0.50% for Revolving Crediigns or Term Loans or (ii), in the case
of Eurodollar Borrowings (as defined in the Creflifreement), the Adjusted LIBO Rate plus the applieanargin of 3.0% for Revolving
Credit Loans or Term Loans. The Credit Agreemest aicluded financial covenants that required tben@any to meet targeted leverage and
fixed charge ratios.

On September 28, 2012, the Borrowers exercisedd¢berdion under the Credit Agreement in full toriease the aggregate commitments u
the Revolving Credit Facility by $40,000. As a résidi the Borrowers’ exercise of the Accordion, lmwing capacity under the Revolving
Credit Loans increased from $100,000 to $140,00i0ther terms of the Credit Agreement were uncleahg

On April 26, 2012, DHP entered into a financingagagement under the NMTC program under the Codsppnt to which CLII provided to
DHP the NMTC Loan to help fund DHP’s expansion dodd-out of its new Bronx, NY facility, which cotrsiction is required under the lease
agreement related to such facility. The NMTC Lomevidenced by a Mortgage Note, dated as of AgtiD12 (the “Mortgage Note”),
between DHP, as maker, and CLII, as payee. Unaekitbrtgage Note DHP is obligated to pay CLII (i) midy interest payments on the
principal balance then outstanding and (ii) théreninpaid principal balance then due and owind\pril 26, 2017. Interest accrues under the
Mortgage Note at 1.00% per annum for as long as BH®t in default thereunder, which interest shallcalculated on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed over a year of 360 days.
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On April 17, 2013, the Borrowers, the Guarantord #ne lenders a party thereto entered into an Amend and Restatement Agreement to
amend and restate the Credit Agreement (the “Antade Restated Credit Agreement”). On May 31, 2@ZAna Specialty Foods North
America (USA), Inc., QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc., €Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc., Qzinacidty Foods (Ambassador), Inc.,
Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (WA), and Qzina Spégigbods, Inc. (FL) were added as Guarantors utideAmended and Restated Credit
Agreement.

The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement amemteatates the Term Loan Facility and the Revol@nedit Facility. The Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement provides for $36,00Qrimcpal amount of Term Loans under the Term LoanilRy and up to an aggregate
amount of $140,000 of Revolving Credit Loans urntierRevolving Credit Facility. The sublimits fottiers of credit and swingline loans under
the Credit Facilities were unchanged. Unutilizechattments under the revolving credit facility portiof the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement are subject to a per annum fee of fr@8%.to 0.45%, based on the Company’s leverage ratimnting fee of 0.25% per annum
is payable on the face amount of each letter aficiesued under the Credit Facilities.

The final maturity of the Credit Facilities remaifpril 25, 2017. Subject to adjustment for prepayptsethe Company is required to make
quarterly principal payments on the Term Loansume30, September 30, December 31 and March 34cbfyear, with each quarterly
payment equal to $1,500, with the remaining balaheeupon maturity.

After giving effect to the amendment and restatenttegreof, borrowings under the Credit Facilitiestinue to be secured by all the assets of
the Borrowers and Guarantors, with the excepticth@fequity interests in and assets of DHP, antblaangs thereunder will bear interest at
Company’s option of either (i) the alternate baste (representing the greatest of (1) Chase’s prattge (2) the federal funds effective rate for
overnight borrowings plus 1/2 of 1.00% and (3) &dgusted LIBO rate for one month plus 2.50%) ptusach case an applicable margin of
from 1.75% to 2.25%, based on the Company’s leerago, or (ii) in the case of Eurodollar Borrogi(as defined in the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement), the adjusted LIBO pate an applicable margin of from 2.75% to 3.25%sdd on the Company’s leverage ratio.
The LIBO rate is the rate for eurodollar depogitse period equal to one, three or six months ¢ecsed by the applicable Borrower) appee
on Reuters Screen LIBORO01 Page (or any successubstitute page on such screen), at approximafef0 a.m. London time, two business
days prior to the commencement of the applicalibrést period. The Amended and Restated Creditehgeat also includes financial
covenants that require the Company to meet tardetedage and fixed charge ratios.

On April 17, 2013, the Company issued $100,000uiargnteed senior secured notes (the “Notes”) tddétial Capital Group, an institutional
investment division of Prudential Financial, Irtrough a private placement transaction. The Nioées an annual interest rate of 5.9% and
mature in 2023. The Notes must be repaid in twakigstallments of $50,000. The first payment ie da April 17, 2018. The second paym

is due at maturity on April 17, 2023. The proceidm the private placement of the Notes were useaepay borrowings under the Revolving
Credit Facility. The Notes have financial covenahtt are substantially similar to the financiatenants for the Amended and Restated Cred
Agreement.

As of December 27, 2013, the Borrowers and Guarantere in compliance with all debt covenants uriderCredit Agreement, the Notes anc
the related note purchase agreement, DHP was ipl@me with all debt covenants under the NMTC Laad the Company had reserved
$3,820 of the Revolving Credit Facility for theussice of letters of credit. As of December 27, 20d3ds totaling $136,180 were available
borrowing under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Note 11 — Stockholders’ Equity

On September 25, 2013, the Company completed écpffdring of 3,800,000 share of its common stat21.00 per share, and certain
existing stockholders sold an additional 1,375,8B@res, including 675,000 shares sold to the uniters/to cover over-allotments. The
Company recognized proceeds of approximately $75a0@r deducting underwriting fees and commissan estimated offering expenses.
The Company utilized approximately $12,500 of teeproceeds from the offering to repay outstan@iogowings under the Revolving Credit
Facility, and subsequently used $23,939 to finatscacquisition of Allen Brothers. The remaining peoceeds are being held by the Compan
for general corporate purposes.
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Equity Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted the 2011 Omnibus Equignthe Plan (the “Equity Plan”). The purpose of Bruity Plan is to promote the
interests of the Company and its stockholders Yogt{iacting and retaining key officers, employaerd directors; (ii) motivating such
individuals by means of performance related ine@stito achieve long-range performance goals;giigbling such individuals to participate in
the long-term growth and financial success of tbenBany; (iv) encouraging ownership of stock in @@mpany by such individuals; and (v)
linking their compensation to the long-term intésesf the Company and its stockholders.

The Equity Plan is administered by the Compensdiommittee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Dirext and allows for the issuance of
stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs8stricted share awards (“RSAs”"), restricted shunits, performance awards, or other stock-
based awards. Stock option exercise prices ard iydhe Committee but shall not be less thandivenfiarket value of a common share on the
date of the grant of the option, except in the adsmibstitute awards. Similarly, the grant pri€ee SAR may not be less than the fair market
value of a common share on the date of the grdrg.Jommittee will determine the expiration dateath stock option and SAR, but in no
case shall the stock option or SAR be exercisdide thhe expiration of ten years from the datehef grant. The Company plans to issue new
shares upon exercise of any stock options. Thet{&lan provided 1,750,000 shares available fontyiaf which no more than 1,000,000
could be for Incentive Stock Options. As of Decenmbg 2013 there were 1,099,519 shares availablgrémt.

On August 2, 2011, the Company granted RSAs ta&b6,666 shares to two employees. The awardswadued at $18.01 per share,
representing the closing price of the Company’s mam stock on August 2, 2011. Fifty percent of theuals (103,333 shares) vested
immediately resulting in a compensation chargelo881 and the remainder of the awards, a totaD8f333 shares, were scheduled to vest in
equal amounts on each of the next four anniverdargs of the grant of which $193 was recognizetbagpensation expense during fiscal
2011. During 2013 and 2012, the Company recogrezpense totaling $93 and $1,055 on these RSAsectgely. This included a charge for
$713 during 2012 related to the accelerated vesiidd.,334 RSAs issued to the Company’s formerfabperating officer as part of his
separation from the Company. RSAs totaling 20,66Beworfeited during fiscal 2012.

On November 2, 2011, the Company granted RSASgtal652 shares to its four independent direatdrieh vested on the date of the first
annual stockholders’ meeting. These shares weredalt $14.30 each (the closing price of our comstock on November 2, 2011). The
Company recognized $38 and $43 of expense relatdise grants in fiscal 2012 and fiscal 2011,eetspely.

During fiscal 2012, the Company issued 229,031 RiBAs employees and independent directors atightex] average grant date fair value of
$17.63 each. Of these awards, 34,783 RSAs wererpahce-based grants. We recognized no expense @etformance-based grants in
fiscal 2013 or fiscal 2012 because we did not aghtbe performance targets applicable to thosegegriThe remaining awards were time-
based grants which will vest over 4-5 years. Dufiagal 2013 and fiscal 2012 we recognized expéntsding $742 and $454, respectively, on
the time-based grants. Through December 27, 2(B,352 of the RSAs granted in 2012 were forfeitedrify fiscal 2012, 8,582 RSAs, which
were issued prior to the Company’s IPO, were fteti

During fiscal 2013, the Company granted 268,889 R&#its employees and independent directors aighted average grant date fair value
of $16.90 each. Of these awards, 183,700 were npeafuce-based grants. The Company recognized nassma the performance-based
grants during fiscal 2013, as the Company did obieve the performance targets applicable to fi26aB. The remaining awards were time-
based grants which will vest between one and fears: During fiscal 2013, the Company recognizgrerse totaling $375 on these time-
based RSAs. During 2013, 2,108 of the time vediBds and 8,692 of the performance RSAs were fedeit

At December 27, 2013, the Company had 422,873 eésted RSAs outstanding. At December 27, 2013tatiad unrecognized compensation
cost for these unvested RSAs was $6,440, and thghted-average remaining useful life was approx@tyat8 months. Of this total, $3,279
related to RSAs with time-based vesting provisiand $3,161 related to RSAs with performance-bassting provisions. At December 27,
2013, the weighted-average remaining useful livesevapproximately 19 months for time-based ved®8és and 16 months for the
performance-based vesting RSAs. No compensatioanseprelated to the Company’s RSAs has been daedal

The Company has not issued any type of equity aatirer than RSAs under the Equity Plan.

69




Note 12 — Leases

The Company leases various warehouse and offidéiéscand certain vehicles and equipment undegerm operating lease agreements th:
expire at various dates, with related parties aitld @thers. See Note 15 for additional discussibretated party transactions. The Company
records operating lease costs, including any débafsfe rent increases, on a straight-line basis theslease term. As of December 27, 2013,
the Company is obligated under non-cancelable tipgreease agreements to make future minimum Ipagments as follows:

Related Party Third Party Third Party Third Party
Real Estate Real Estate Vehicles Other Total
2014 $ 166 $ 4,666 3 502 $ 37C % 11,71¢
2015 — 3,58: 4,33 63 7,98:
2016 — 3,691 4,007 26 7,73(
2017 — 2,781 3,63¢ 5 6,42¢
2018 — 1,53( 2,47¢ — 4,00«
Thereafter — 17,81° 2,457 — 20,27
Total minimum lease payments $ 166 $ 34,08( $ 2193 $ 464 3 58,13¢

Total rent expense for operating leases for thesyeaded December 27, 2013, December 28, 2012 aceniiber 30, 2011 was $13,529,
$10,172 and $8,632, respectively. One of the Coyigasubsidiaries, Dairyland USA Corporation, subleasee of its distribution centers frc
an entity controlled by the Company’s founders, Thefs’ Warehouse Leasing Co., LLC. The Chefs’ Wause Leasing Co., LLC leases the
distribution center from the New York City IndusirDevelopment Agency. In connection with this salsle arrangement, Dairyland USA
Corporation and two of the Company’s other subsieléaare required to act as guarantors of The CWédsehouse Leasing Co., LLC's
mortgage obligation on the distribution center. Ti@rtgage payoff date is December 2029 and thenfiat®bligation under this guarantee
totaled $9,950 at December 27, 2013. The ChefseWarse Leasing Co., LLC has the ability to optaflits lease agreement with the New
York City Industrial Development Agency by giving @ays’ notice. This action would cause the corenirreduction in the term of the
sublease with Dairyland USA Corporation to Decen#fEr4. On July 1, 2005, the Company'’s subsidiai@sred into a Consent and
Conditional Release Agreement releasing the esfit@m their respective guarantee obligations utiteentity guarantees. As of December
27, 2013, the Company’s subsidiaries were in ccampk with the conditions of the release.

Note 13 — Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of theolwihg for the years ended December 27, 2013, Deeeiy 2012, and December 30, 2011:

December 27, 201 December 28, 201 December 30, 201

Current income tax expen

Federa $ 8,40: $ 8,17: $ 3,397
Foreign 86 — —
State 2,35( 2,474 1,045
Total current income tax expense 10,83¢ 10,64 4,43¢
Deferred income tax expense (bene
Federa 83C (69 871
State 14C (14) 287
Total deferred income tax expense (benefit) 97( (83) 1,16¢
Total income tax expense $ 11,80¢ $ 10,56¢ $ 5,60z

The income tax expense differed from the totalustay income tax expense as computed by applyiegthtutory federal income tax rate to
income before taxes. The reasons for the differefamethe years ended December 27, 2013, Decend8p@022, and December 30, 2011 ar
forth and quantified as follows:
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December 27, 201

December 28, 201

December 30, 201

Statutory U.S. Federal t: $ 10,07¢ $ 8,77¢ $ 4,52
Differences due tc
Other permanent differenc 29: 21t 111
State and local taxes, net of federal ber 1,70¢ 1,52¢ 88C
Foreign taxe: 86 — —
Change in prior year tax estime (18%) 147 —
Other, net (170 (99) 9C
$ 11,80¢ $ 10,56¢ $ 5,60:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities at DecembefQT3 and December 28, 2012 consist of the follgwin

December 27, 201

December 28, 201

Current deferred tax asse

Receivables and invento $ 3,20¢ $ 3,157
Paid time off accrue 65 50
Selfinsurance reserve 81¢ 56E
Cumulative foreign exchange differer 22( —
Other — 89
Current deferred tax asst 4,30¢ 3,861
Current deferred tax liabilitie:

Deduction of prepaid expens (1,59¢6) (1,027
Current deferred taxes, r $ 2,70¢ $ 2,83¢
Non-current deferred tax assets and liabilit

Goodwill $ — $ 744
Foreign tax credit on Canadian deferred t¢ 603 —
Federal net loss carryforwar 118 —
State net loss carryforwar 131 —
Rent accrua 73¢ 60€
Stock compensatic 332 20z
Deferred acquisition cos 82 60
Other — 8
Non-current deferred tax ass 2,00(¢ 1,62(C
Valuation allowanct (60%) —
Net nor-current deferred tax asst 1,397 1,62(
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie:

Property & equipmer (537) (4849)
Intangible asset (9,199 (3,665
Other — (23)
Non-current deferred tax liabilitie (9,735 (4,172)
Non-current deferred tax liabilities, n $ (8,33 (2,552

The deferred tax provision results from the effedtaet changes during the year in deferred tagtasmnd liabilities arising from temporary

differences between the carrying amounts of assetdiabilities for financial reporting purposesiaghe amounts used for income tax purpa
The Company files income tax returns in the U.Sldfal and various state and local jurisdictiona/ab as the Canadian Federal and provir
districts. For Federal income tax purposes, thé28fough 2013 tax years remain open for examindiipthe tax authorities under the normal
three-year statute of limitations and the fact thathave not yet filed our tax return for 2013. Btatte tax purposes, the 2009 through 2013 ta:
years remain open for examination by the tax aittesrunder a fol-year statute of limitations. The Company recordsrest and penalties, if
any, in income tax expense.

At December 27, 2013, the Company had a federdbastcarryforward of $323 which resulted from @@mpany’s acquisition of Qzina in
2013. This federal net loss carryforward expirefisocal 2033. The Company also acquired stateasst ¢arryforwards totaling $1,725 upon
completion of the Qzina acquisition in 2013. Thetestnet loss carryforwards expire between 2014888. During 2013, the Company
generated state net loss carryforwards of $3,084 fsperations. These state net loss carryforwamgoiseebetween 2014 and 2033.

The foreign net loss carryforward represents theidom tax credit impact from the deferred tax asset liabilities related to the Qzina
acquisition. These net loss carryforwards are ftdserved for as the foreign tax credit is disaidvas a result of IRC Section 90(m), which
does not allow use of foreign tax credits on theipo of the deductions to a step-up in basis efdbsets.
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For financial reporting purposes, income from opere before income taxes for our foreign subsidgawas $888 for the year ended
December 27, 2013. We had no foreign operatioms prifiscal 2013. Since it is our intention to éfichitely reinvest these earnings, no U.S.
taxes have been provided for these amounts. Ithaaged our reinvestment policy and decided to rearitings as a dividend, a deferred tax
liability would arise. Determination of the amouwftunrecognized deferred tax liability on theseamitted taxes is not practicable.

At December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012, thep@oynhad no uncertain tax positions.
Note 14 — Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Tax-Deferred Savings Plan

The Company offers a 401(k) Plan to all full-tinmaoyees that provides for tax-deferred salary dédas for eligible employees. Employees
may choose to make voluntary contributions of theimual compensation to the 401(k) Plan, limitedri@nnual maximum amount as set
periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. Bagig in 2011, the Company provided discretionaryaiiaig contributions equal to 50
percent of the employee’s contribution amount,aip thaximum of six percent of the employee’s ansakdry. Matching contributions begin
vesting after two years and are fully vested afberyears. Employee contributions are fully vestdetn made. Under the 401(k) Plan there is
no option available to the employee to receivewrclpase the Company’s common stock. Matching dmrtidns under the 401(k) Plan were
$449 for fiscal 2013, $337 for fiscal 2012, and B30 fiscal 2011.

Note 15 — Related Parties

The Company leases two warehouse facilities frdated parties. These facilities are owned by egitwned 100% by Christopher Pappas,
the Company’s chairman, president and chief exeeuwtdficer, John Pappas, the Company’s vice chairaral one of its directors, and Dean
Facatselis, a former non-employee director of tbm@any and the brother-in-law of Messrs. C. Pajppas]. Pappas, and are deemed to be
affiliates of these individuals. Expense relatethiabove facilities was $1,537 for each of thergended December 27, 2013, December 28
2012, and December 30, 2011.

One of our non-employee directors, Stephen Harisdhe President and a 50% owner of a New York-Béged multi-concept restaurant
operator holding company. Certain subsidiariehsf holding company are customers of the Compauyitarsubsidiaries that purchased an
aggregate of approximately $3,616, $3,200 and $2e8@roducts from us during fiscal 2013, fiscal2@Gnd fiscal 2011, respectively.

Each of Christopher Pappas, John Pappas and Deats&ls owns 8.33% of a New York City-based restatucustomer of the Company and
its subsidiaries that purchased an aggregate abziopately $195, $213 and $238 of products frondusng fiscal 2013, fiscal 2012 and fiscal
2011, respectively. Messrs. C. Pappas, J. PappkBamatselis have no other interest in the restaother than these equal interests and ar
involved in the day-to-day operation or managenoéiiis restaurant.

John Pappas’s brother-in-law, Constantine Papatarosie of our employees. We paid him approxinya$di42, $140 and $182 in total
compensation during fiscal 2013, fiscal 2012 anddi 2011, respectively.

Note 16 — Valuation Reserves

A summary of the activity in the accounts receieaddlowance for doubtful accounts appears below:

December 27,201 December 28,201 December 30,201

Balance at beginning of peric $ 3,44( $ 2,90( $ 2,40(
Charged to costs and expen 924 1,43¢ 1,18¢
Customer accounts written off, net of recoveries (722) (899 (689
Balance at end of period $ 3,64: $ 3,44( $ 2,90(

A summary of activity in the inventory valuatiorsegve appears below:
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Balance at beginning of peric
Charged to costs and expen

Inventory written off
Balance at end of period

Note 17 — Quarterly Results (unaudited)

December 27,201

December 28,201

December 30,201

The quarterly results of the Company for the yemded December 27, 2013 and December 28, 2012 fodavs:

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Income before income tax
Net income

Basic net income per she

Diluted net income per sha

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating profit

Income before income tax
Net income

Basic net income per shé

Diluted net income per sha

$ 65C $ 57¢ 57C
3,051 1,94¢ 1,46(
(3,019 (1,879 (1,45%)
$ 682 $ 65C 57E
March 29, June 28, Sept. 27, Dec. 27,
2013 (1) 2013 (2) 2013 (3) 2013 (4)
$ 139,41¢ 170,15 $ 170,58: $ 193,38
35,15¢ 44,04 43,957 49,27
5,891 11,05¢ 9,43t 10,19:
4,53( 9,14¢ 7,10 8,011
2,64 5,34t 4,16( 4,83¢
0.1z 0.2¢ 0.2C 0.2(
0.1z 0.2t 0.2C 0.1¢
June 29, Sept. 28,

March 30, 201: 2012 (5) 2012 (6) Dec. 28, 201.
$ 98,06¢ 114,82! $ 124,80 $ 142,59:
26,04¢ 30,47: 32,371 36,10"

5,05¢ 85,1 7,32 7,861

4,50¢ 7,622 6,312 6,63:

2,632 4,45¢ 3,81¢ 3,60¢

0.1z 0.2z 0.1¢ 0.17

0.1z 0.21 0.1¢ 0.17

(1) Beginning in the first quarter of 2013 the C@mp began to reflect the results of the Queensgajaisition.
(2) Beginning in the second quarter of 2013 the gamy began to reflect the results of the Qzina iz@tgpn. The Company also closed on its
$100,000 Senior Secured Notes offering in the sgcparter of 2013.
(3) The Company completed its secondary offering,800,000 shares in the third quarter of 2013.
(4) Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2013 the @amy began to reflect the results of the Allen Beos acquisition. In the fourth quarter of
2013, the Company recorded a $900 adjustment too€assles related to the previously disclosed stegéement of inventory at Michael’s.

(5) Beginning in the second quarter of 2012 the gamy began to reflect the results of the Praml isdopn.

(6) Beginning in the third quarter of 2012 the C@myp began to reflect the results of the Michaaetguasition.
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tem9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Our management, with the participation of our cleiedcutive officer and chief financial officer, éwated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-1Bnthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ame(tiedExchange Act”) as of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report on ForrK10

Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer concluded that oiscbhsure controls and procedures were
effective, as of the end of the period coveredHiy iteport, to provide reasonable assurance tf@niation we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchangeig\recorded, processed, summarized and repaithih the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms, and that such information is aadated and communicated to our management, inajuolim Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allamely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfi and maintaining adequate internal controt éwancial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a—-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange e Company'’s internal control over financigboeting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynaiicial reporting and the preparation of finansiatements for external purposes in
accordance with GAAP. The Company’s internal cdrdxe@r financial reporting includes those policasl procedures that: (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the Company;
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactiomsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the @ are being made only in accordance with authtions of management and directors
of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assmtgaegarding prevention or timely detection ofutharized acquisition, use or disposition
of the Company’s assets that could have a magffizdt on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjet to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Under the supervision of our Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, our management assgshe effectiveness of the Company'’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 27, 2013. In making this assessment, managersed the criteria set forth internal
Control—Integrated Framework (199®sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission (“COSQ”). In
conducting the evaluation of the effectivenesgiriternal control over financial reporting asadcember 27, 2013, the Company has
excluded the acquisitions of Qzina, which was difecon May 1, 2013, and Allen Brothers, which vedfective on December 9, 2013. At th
acquisition dates, Qzina and Allen Brothers hadeggfe total assets of $50,091 and aggregate arewalues of approximately $150,000.
Further information concerning the acquisition®aina and Allen Brothers appears in Note 5, Acgoiss, to the accompanying audited
consolidated financial statements and in the seafdhis Annual Report on Form 10-K titled “Managent’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”&hen this assessment, our Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer has
concluded that the Company’s internal control dir@ncial reporting was effective as of DecemberZl 3.

The Company’s financial statements included in #émisual report on Form 10-K have been audited b@RISA, LLP, an independent

registered public accounting firm, as indicatethia report appearing on paigd] of this Form 10-K. BDO USA, LLP has also provided a
attestation report on the Company’s internal cdraver financial reporting.
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Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes in our internal coowen financial reporting during the most recentdisquarter that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, ourimtal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We have audited The Chefd/arehouse, Inc. internal control over financialoimg as of December 27, 2013, based on critestabdished i
Internal Control— Integrated Framework (1992%sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimnthe Treadway Commission (
COSO criteria). The Chef®Warehouse, Inc. management is responsible for aiaing effective internal control over financiapting ant
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intecaatrol over financial reporting, included in taecompanying “ltem 9A, Management’
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinancialpBeing” under Item 9A of this Form 1K- Our responsibility is to express an opinior
the company’s internal control over financial repay based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ld@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordgrar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, and testing aalli@ing the design and operating effectivenesatefnal control based on the assessed
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestawée believe that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, The ChefsWarehouse, Inc. maintained, in all material respeeffective internal control over financial repogt as o
December 27, 2013, based on the COSO criteria.

As indicated in the accompanying “ltem 9A, Managatise Annual Report on Internal Control over FinaicReporting,” management’
assessment of and conclusion on the effectiverfeisdennal control over financial reporting did nioclude the acquisitions of Qzina, wh
was effective on May 1, 2013, or Allen Brothers,iethwas effective on December 9, 2013 and eachhiélware included in the consolida
balance sheets of The CheWarehouse, Inc. as of December 27, 2013, and thtedeconsolidated statements of comprehensivenia
stockholders’equity, and cash flows for the year then endedth&ir acquisition dates, Qzina and Allen Brotheaisl aggregate total asset:
$50,091 and aggregate annual revenues of appredym@i50,000. Management did not assess the eféewss of internal control oy
financial reporting of Qzina and Allen Brothers hase of the timing of the acquisitions. Our auélinternal control over financial reporting
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. also did not includeaaduation of the internal control over financieporting of Qzina and Allen Brothers.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidas
balance sheets of The Chetarehouse, Inc. as of December 27, 2013 and Dege2®)e2012, and the related consolidated statend
operations, changes in stockholdegguity, and cash flows for each of the three y@athe period ended December 27, 2013 and our 1
dated March 12, 2014 expressed an unqualified opittiereon.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Melville, NY
March 12, 2014
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information set forth under the captions “Cogbe Governance,” “Proposal 1 - Election of Direst@and “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitiveoly Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stualklers to be held on May 16, 2014,
which we intend to file within 120 days after oigchl year-end, is incorporated herein by refereAseprovided in General Instruction G(3) to
Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Remdidn S-K, information regarding executive officefsour Company is provided in Part | of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the captf@xecutive Officers.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information set forth under the caption “Ex@éeiCompensation” in our definitive Proxy Statemfamtour 2014 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 16, 2014, whichnterid to file within 120 days after our fiscal y&saud, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information set forth under the captions “St@knership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managetthin our definitive Proxy
Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockhdde be held on May 16, 2014, which we intendlewithin 120 days after our fiscal
yearend, is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table provides certain informationtivrespect to equity awards under our equity corsaigmn plans as of December 27, 2013:
Number of securities

remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities to Weighted-average equity compensation
be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in the
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights second column)
Plans approved by stockholdt — — 1,099,51!
Plans not approved by stockholders — — —
Total — — 1,099,51!

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information set forth under the captions “Cagbe Governance — Director Independence” and “Gatpdsovernance — Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in oumitefe Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meetaigtockholders to be held on May 16,
2014, which we intend to file within 120 days after fiscal year-end, is incorporated herein berefice.

ltem 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information set forth under the captions “Pegl@® — Ratification of Independent Registered ieubtcounting Firm — Fees Paid to BDO
USA, LLP” and “Proposal 2 — Ratification of Indeemt Registered Public Accounting Firm — Policyfardit Committee Pre-Approval of

Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services” in oufiditive Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meegtiof Stockholders to be held on May
16, 2014, which we intend to file within 120 day&aour fiscal year-end, is incorporated hereinrdfgrence.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of tiEpart:

1. Financial Statemen- See Index to Consolidated Financial Statementmat 8 of this Annual Report on Form-K.

2.

Financial Statement Schedules - Supplemecdit@dules are not provided because of the absermnditions under which they are
required or because the required information iggiwn the financial statements or notes thel

Exhibits— The following exhibits are filed as part of, or arporated by reference into, this Annual ReporForm 1(-K.

Exhibit No.

Description

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Apri@12, among The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast,didC
Adelheid Putze and Rudolf Putze (incorporated lgremce to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 84€dion
April 30, 2012) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Riagion S-K, the schedules and exhibits to this egrent are
omitted, but will be provided supplementally to ®ecurities and Exchange Commission upon reqt

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as gligtul0, 2012, among Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, ITh€,Chefs’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Michael's Finer Meald,C and the other parties party thereto (incorpeaay
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8kd on August 13, 2012) (Pursuant to Item 601Zpx(f
Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits todgieement are omitted, but will be provided supgletally to
the Securities and Exchange Commission upon reg

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Deece8tth2012, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LQG
Holding, Inc., Queensgate Food Group, LLC, MullagRaioperties, LLC, SP Beverage Co., LLC and theroth
parties party thereto (incorporated by referendéxoibit 2.1 to the Company’s Formk8filed on January 2, 201
(Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, sbhedules and exhibits to this agreement are aintiig will be
provided supplementally to the Securities and ERgeaCommission upon reques

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Ma@13, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry DivisiomaGa ULC,
the Shareholders set forth therein, and Fulcrumt@lapartners Inc., as the Shareholders’ Represeata
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to thenpany’s Form 8-K filed on May 1, 2013) (Pursuanttéon 601
(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedules and exbituitthis agreement are omitted, but will be predid
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon reques!

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decelib2013, by and among Allen Brothers 1893, LAgn
Brothers, Inc., The Great Steakhouse Steaks LL€,dtefs’ Warehouse, Inc., and the other partiegthe
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s Forikhfed on December 17, 2013) (Pursuant to Item(BYJ(2) of
Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits todgieement are omitted, but will be provided supgletally to
the Securities and Exchange Commission upon reg!

Certificate of Incorporation of the Compadgted as of July 27, 2011 (incorporated by refexend=xhibit 3.1 to
the Compan’s Form K filed on August 2, 2011

Bylaws of the Company, dated as of July ®4,12(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 ® @ompanys Forn
8-K filed on August 2, 2011
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Exhibit No.

Description

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorpodaly reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s &-lled on July
1, 2011).

Agreement of Lease, dated as of April 28, 2®etween the City of New York, as Landlord, &airyland HP
LLC, as Tenant (incorporated by reference to ExHibil to the Compar's Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Mortgage Note, dated as of April 26, 20J&ween Dairyland HP LLC, as Maker, and Commercaiding Il
LLC, as Payee (incorporated by reference to Exiibi2 to the Compars Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Leasehold Mortgage and Security AgreemethtAasignment of Leases and Rents, dated as of 2@ri2012,
between Dairyland HP LLC, as Mortgagor, and Commaétending Il LLC, as Mortgagee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Comp’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Joint and Several Guaranty of Payment, dadeaf April 26, 2012, among The Chefs’ Warehoirse, Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto
Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LItd, Bhe Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC (incorpethat
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Comp’s Form {-K filed on April 30, 2012)

Lease between The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasind-CC and Dairyland USA Corporation, dated a®etember
29, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 168.the Compar’s Form -1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Sublease Agreement between The Chefs’ Wasehiceasing Co., LLC and Dairyland USA Corporatibeited as
of December 1, 2004 (incorporated by referencextutit 10.20 to the Company’s Form S-1/A filed aryJ1,
2011).

Employment Agreement between Christophg@piga and The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., togetheritgith
subsidiaries, dated as of August 2, 2011 (incotedrhy reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companygmfr8-K
filed on August 2, 2011

Employment Agreement between John Pappa&dha ChefsWarehouse, Inc., together with its subsidiarieted
as of August 2, 2011 (incorporated by referendexioibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on Aisg 2,
2011).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreemetiden John Pappas and The Chefs’ Warehousetdgether
with its subsidiaries, dated as of January 12, Z0idrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to @wempany’s
Form &K filed on January 19, 2012

Offer letter between The Chefs’ Warehouise, and John D. Austin, dated May 29, 2012 (ipooated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Form &K filed on May 30, 2012)

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse lifad, LLC and Frank O’Dowd, dated as of January22®,7
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to@wmpan’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse lifad, LLC and Patricia Lecouras, dated as of Janghy 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to@wmmpan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse liwd, LLC and Alexandros Aldous, dated as of Felyrd8, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to@wmmpan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013

The ChefsiWarehouse, Inc. 2011 Omnibus Equity Incentive Rilacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24+

10.25

10.26

10.27

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2012 Cash lieerrlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibi?1{®. the Company’s
Form &K filed on January 19, 2012

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2013 Cash lieerrlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl1{. the Company’s
Form &K filed on January 24, 2013

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agream€Officers and Employees) (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit
10.14 to the Compar's Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option AgreamhéDirectors) (incorporated by reference to Exhilfi.15 to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agresn(Directors) (incorporated by reference to ExHiB.16 to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011’

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreem@ffi¢ers and Employees) (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.17
to the Compar’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreemé&itgctors) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit1Bto the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreemantérporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to tleenpany’s Form S-
1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Performance Restricted Share Awagteement (Officers and Employees) (incorporatgddference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Compa’s Form i-K filed on January 19, 201z

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25120among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ @muse Mid-
Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Véapuse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of
Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, The Chefs’ Warehouse, bnd Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, as Guararntws
Lenders party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, NsAAdministrative Agent, and the other Loan Panpiagy
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Compar’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of August 9, 2l the Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25120among
Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Jithntic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’
Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ WareholUB®rida, LLC, as Borrowers, the financial instions
party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., asiAdtrative Agent and Issuing Bank (incorporatgd b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed on November 13, 201z

Waiver and Amendment No. 2, dated as ofuatg9, 2012, to the Credit Agreement, dated aspaf 25, 2012,
among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ WaredeoMid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Géie
Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ WareholUB®rida, LLC, as Borrowers, the financial instions
party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., aniAidtrative Agent and Issuing Bank (incorporatgd b
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed on November 13, 201z

Amendment No. 3, dated as of November @02 2to the Credit Agreement, dated April 25, 20drdpng
Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mithntic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’
Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ WareholBtrida, LLC, as Borrowers, the financial itstions
party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., aniAidtrative Agent (incorporated by reference tdibk
10.33 to the Compars Form 1K filed on March 13, 2013’
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Description

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32

10.33

10.34+

10.35*

10.36

141

21t
23.1%

31.1%

Amendment and Restatement Agreement, datedl April 17, 2013, among Dairyland USA Corpamaf The
Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto FoptdkC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Th
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, fthancial institutions party thereto, and JPMor@adrase
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporatedreference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Fond filed
on May 7, 2013)

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated 2pri2012, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Chefs’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’
Warehouse of Florida, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse,,I€hefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, and the other
Subsidiaries of The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. thablrexparty thereto after the date thereof, as Gtensrand
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Ademorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlwmpanys
Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amended and Restated Pledge and Secugisefment, dated April 17, 2013, by and among DairglUSA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West
Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LL@&eTChefs’ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Paret,
Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC, Michael's Finer Meatsldings, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLCdan
the other Subsidiaries of The Chefs’ Warehouse,thrat become party thereto after the date theesoGrantors,
and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Collateral A§anbrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tlepany’s
Form 1(-Q filed May 7, 2013)

Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, dated I3prd013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme
Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto FopdkC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and Th
Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, Thef€ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouse Parent,, LLC
Michael's Finer Meats, LLC, Michael's Finer Meatsldings, LLC and other parties thereto, as Guaranand
each of the several Purchasers (incorporated byemée to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s FormQ@iled May 7,
2013).

Form of Note (incorporated by reference to Exhilfit4 to the Compar's Form 1+-Q filed May 7, 2013)

Building Loan Agreement, dated as of Ap6) 2012, between Commercial Lending Il LLC, asdemand
Dairyland HP LLC, as Borrower (incorporated by refece to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-Kilad on
May 1, 2012)

Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2@IR2ong Dairyland HP LLC, as Borrower, The Chefgirdhouse, Inc.,
Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corfiora The Chefs’ Warehouse Mi#itlantic, LLC, Bel Cant
Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LIid, Bhe Chefs’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC, as Guanant
and Commercial Lending Il LLC, as Lender (incorgechby reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companyai8K
filed on April 30, 2012)

Form of Indemnification Agreement by aretbeen The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its dire@ndsexecutive
officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ¥0t8 the Compar’s Form {-1/A filed on July 14, 2011

Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated Aprd 26, 2012, between the City of New York, lasndlord, and
Dairyland HP LLC, as Tenant, dated February 27 32xicorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 t® th
Compan’s Form 1-K filed on March 13, 2013

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Code of Busi@ssduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference taitkix14.1 to the
Compan’s Form 1-Q filed on August 6, 2013

Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit No. Description

31.2¢t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamnt $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
101.INSt XBRL Instance Documet

101.SCHt XBRL Schema Documel

101.CALT XBRL Calculation Linkbase Docume

101.DEFt XBRL Definition Linkbase Documer

101.LABTt XBRL Label Linkbase Documel

101.PRE1 XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrziegdt

T Filed herewitt

+ Certain confidential portions of this exhibieme omitted by means of redacting a portion oftétx¢ This exhibit has been
filed separately with the Securities and Exchangm@ission accompanied by a confidential treatmeqaest pursuant to
Rule 241-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as anmbr
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized on March 12, 2014.

THE CHEFS’ WAREHOUSE, INC.

March 12, 2014 /sl Christopher Pappi

Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Ch
Executive Officel

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Capacity Date

/sl Christopher Pappi Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off March 12, 201«
Christopher Papp: (Principal Executive Officer

/s/ John D. Austit Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting a March 12, 201«
John D. Austir Financial Officer)

/sl John Pappz Director and Vice Chairma March 12, 201«
John Pappa

/s/ Alan Guarinc Director March 12, 201«
Alan Guaring
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Signature Capacity Date

/s/ John A. Cour Director March 12, 201«
John A. Cour
/s/ Dominick C. Cerbon Director March 12, 201«

Dominick C. Cerboni

/sl Joseph Cugin Director March 12, 201
Joseph Cugin

/s/ Stephen Hansc Director March 12, 201«
Stephen Hansc
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Exhibit No.

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Description

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of ApriP@12, among The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast,dnidCAdelheid Putze
and Rudolf Putze (incorporated by reference to EkBi1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on April 32012) (Pursuant to
Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, the schedules extaibits to this agreement are omitted, but walldgvovided
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon request

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as gfigill0, 2012, among Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, Ih€,Chefs’ Warehouse
Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Michael’s Finer Meats, LLC anti¢ other parties party thereto (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 2.1
to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on August 13, 20(Ryrsuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, skbedules and
exhibits to this agreement are omitted, but willpbevided supplementally to the Securities and Erge Commission upon
request)

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Deee3th2012, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LQG Holding, Inc.,
Queensgate Food Group, LLC, Mullaghan Propertie§;, ISP Beverage Co., LLC and the other parties/ghgreto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to tharany’s Form & filed on January 2, 2013) (Pursuant to Item 6)(2(bof
Regulation S-K, the schedules and exhibits todgigement are omitted, but will be provided supgletally to the
Securities and Exchange Commission upon reqt

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of M29113, among The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Divisiama@a ULC, the
Shareholders set forth therein, and Fulcrum Capigatners Inc., as the Shareholders’ Represeniativerporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8id on May 1, 2013) (Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2Regulation SK, the
schedules and exhibits to this agreement are ainiig will be provided supplementally to the Sé@s and Exchange
Commission upon reques

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decelitb2013, by and among Allen Brothers 1893, LAgn Brothers, Inc.,

The Great Steakhouse Steaks LLC, The Ch&fstehouse, Inc., and the other parties theretopurated by reference to-
Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2013) gant to Item 601(b)(2) of RegulationkSthe schedules and exhik
to this agreement are omitted, but will be providadplementally to the Securities and Exchange Giesiom upon reques

Certificate of Incorporation of the Compadgted as of July 27, 2011 (incorporated by refexeadExhibit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Form &K filed on August 2, 2011’

Bylaws of the Company, dated as of July B4,12(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 te @ompany’s Form & filed
on August 2, 2011

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated &ference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Comp/s $-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Agreement of Lease, dated as of April 28,2®etween the City of New York, as Landlord, &airyland HP LLC, as
Tenant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 108.the Compar’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Mortgage Note, dated as of April 26, 20X&#ween Dairyland HP LLC, as Maker, and Commercaiding Il LLC, as
Payee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.théoCompan’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Leasehold Mortgage and Security Agreemetht#asignment of Leases and Rents, dated as of 2@ri2012, between

Dairyland HP LLC, as Mortgagor, and Commercial Liegdl LLC, as Mortgagee (incorporated by refereta&xhibit 10.3
to the Compar’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

Joint and Several Guaranty of Payment, dadedf April 26, 2012, among The Chefs’ Warehourse, Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chéfgarehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’
Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ WareholB®rida, LLC (incorporated by reference to EbihiL0.4 to the
Compan’s Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

Lease between The Chefs’ Warehouse Leasind CC and Dairyland USA Corporation, dated aPetember 29, 2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tlmmpanys Form -1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Sublease Agreement between The Chefs’ Wasehioeasing Co., LLC and Dairyland USA Corporatiaied as of
December 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference tolktxh0.20 to the Compa’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011]

Employment Agreement between Christophg@pBa and The ChefsVarehouse, Inc., together with its subsidiarietedas
of August 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference toikixi0.1 to the Compars Form K filed on August 2, 2011’

Employment Agreement between John Pappadha Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., together with itssadibries, dated as of
August 2, 2011 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBi2 to the Compar's Form K filed on August 2, 2011

Amended and Restated Employment Agreemetmiden John Pappas and The Chefs’ Warehousetdgether with its
subsidiaries, dated as of January 12, 2012 (incated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compafgen 8-K filed on
January 19, 2012

Offer letter between The Chefs’ Warehouise, and John D. Austin, dated May 29, 2012 (ipooated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Compa’s Form K filed on May 30, 2012)

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse lifad, LLC and Frank O’'Dowd, dated as of January22®7 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Comp’s Form &1/A filed on June 8, 2011

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse lifad, LLC and Patricia Lecouras, dated as of JanB&y2007 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Comp’s Form 1K filed on March 13, 2013

Offer letter between Chefs’ Warehouse litad, LLC and Alexandros Aldous, dated as of Fefyrd8, 2011 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Comp’s Form 1K filed on March 13, 2013

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2011 Omnibusitydncentive Plan (incorporated by reference xdiBit 10.13 to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011’

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2012 Cash IlteerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibi2l®. the Company’s Form 8-
filed on January 19, 2012

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 2013 Cash IteerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl1. the Company’s Form 8-
filed on January 24, 2013

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option AgreeméOfficers and Employees) (incorporated by rafeeeto Exhibit 10.14 to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011’

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option AgreaméDirectors) (incorporated by reference to Exhilfi.15 to the Company’s
Form $-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agresin(Directors) (incorporated by reference to Eittib.16 to the Company’s
Form &-1/A filed on July 1, 2011

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreem@ffi¢ers and Employees) (incorporated by referdndexhibit 10.17 to the
Compan’s Form -1/A filed on July 1, 2011
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Description

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24+

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreemé&itgctors) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit1Bto the Company’s Form
S-1/A filed on July 1, 2011]

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreementg@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to tleen@any’s Form S-1/A filed
on July 1, 2011)

Form of Performance Restricted Share Awagteement (Officers and Employees) (incorporatgddierence to Exhibit
10.3 to the Compar's Form &K filed on January 19, 2012

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25120among Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ @fmuse Mid-Atlantic,
LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse ¥&sast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaZ, as
Borrowers, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and Chefstaause Parent, LLC, as Guarantors, the Lendety hereto,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agand the other Loan Parties party thereto (incafear by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Compa’s Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amendment No. 1, dated as of August 9, 2ftlthe Credit Agreement, dated as of April 25120mong Dairyland USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLEBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst; LLC,
and The ChefsWarehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the finahiostitutions party thereto, and JPMorgan CrBaek,
N.A., as Administrative Agent and Issuing Bank (rmorated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comy's Form 10-Q
filed on November 13, 2012

Waiver and Amendment No. 2, dated as ofuAtig9, 2012, to the Credit Agreement, dated apaf 25, 2012, among
Dairyland USA Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mithntic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chet#arehouse We
Coast, LLC, and The Chefs’ Warehouse of FloridaClhs Borrowers, the financial institutions pahgreto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent and IsgiBank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.the Company’s
Form 1(-Q filed on November 13, 201z

Amendment No. 3, dated as of November @D2 2to the Credit Agreement, dated April 25, 2(rRpng Dairyland USA
Corporation, The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLEBel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Westst; LLC,
and The ChefsiWarehouse of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the finahinstitutions party thereto, and JPMorgan ClBaek,
N.A., as Administrative Agent (incorporated by mefiece to Exhibit 10.33 to the Compi’s Form 10-K filed on March 13,
2013).

Amendment and Restatement Agreement, datedl April 17, 2013, among Dairyland USA Corpamat The Chefs’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Cli¢dsehouse
of Florida, LLC, as Borrowers, the financial instibns party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank,, ldpAdministrative
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.th® Compan’'s Form 1+-Q filed on May 7, 2013]

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated 2priL012, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Chefs’ Warehouse
Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLC, The Chef&/arehouse West Coast, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouséooida,
LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc., Chefs’ Warehouaeeit, LLC, and the other Subsidiaries of The Chéfsrehouse, Inc.
that become party thereto after the date thersgBuarantors, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., adrisinative Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to tlerpanys Form K filed on April 30, 2012)

Amended and Restated Pledge and Secugigefent, dated April 17, 2013, by and among DairglUSA Corporation,
The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantodels, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LL& Thefs’
Warehouse of Florida, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse,,I€@hefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Michael's Fineya4, LLC,
Michael’s Finer Meats Holdings, LLC, The Chefs’ Whouse Midwest, LLC, and the other Subsidiariebhaf Chefs’
Warehouse, Inc. that become party thereto afted#ite thereof, as Grantors, and JPMorgan Chase BbAk as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2ne® Compan’'s Form 1+-Q filed May 7, 2013)
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10.31+ Note Purchase and Guarantee Agreement, dated Aprd013, by and among Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thef’
Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Canto Foods, LLThe Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Cli¢dsehouse
of Florida, LLC, as Issuers, The Chefs’ Warehouise,, Chefs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, Michael’s Fikkrats, LLC,
Michael's Finer Meats Holdings, LLC and other pastthereto, as Guarantors, and each of the séerethasers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to tlmrpanys Form 1-Q filed May 7, 2013)

10.32 Form of Note (incorporated by reference to Exhiifit4 to the Compar's Form 1+-Q filed May 7, 2013)

10.33 Building Loan Agreement, dated as of Ap6i| 2012, between Commercial Lending Il LLC, asdem and Dairyland HP
LLC, as Borrower (incorporated by reference to Bihi0.5 to the Compar’'s Form +K/A filed on May 1, 2012)

10.34+ Loan Agreement, dated as of April 26, 2@I2ong Dairyland HP LLC, as Borrower, The Chefg@irdhouse, Inc., Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC, Dairyland USA Corporatidme Thefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Bel Cantoolés, LLC,
The Chefs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, and The Ciédsehouse of Florida, LLC, as Guarantors, and @encial
Lending Il LLC, as Lender (incorporated by referena Exhibit 10.6 to the Compg's Form &K filed on April 30, 2012)

10.35* Form of Indemnification Agreement by aretbeen The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. and its dire@ndsexecutive officers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to@wmpan’s Form -1/A filed on July 14, 2011’

10.36 Amendment to Agreement of Lease, dated Aprd 26, 2012, between the City of New York, lagndlord, and Dairyland
HP LLC, as Tenant, dated February 27, 2013 (incaitpd by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Compsaifgrm 10-K filed
on March 13, 2013

14.1 The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. Code of Busi@ssduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference tuitkix14.1 to the
Compan’s Form 1-Q filed on August 6, 2013

21t Subsidiaries of the Compa.

23.1t Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing .

31.17 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z.

31.2¢t Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z.

32.1t Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z.

32.27 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INSt XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCHt XBRL Schema Documel

101.CALT XBRL Calculation Linkbase Docume

101.DEFt XBRL Definition Linkbase Documen

101.LABT XBRL Label Linkbase Documel

101.PRE1 XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Ariziegé

T Filed herewitr

+ Certain confidential portions of this exhibiere omitted by means of redacting a portion oftétxé This exhibit has been filed

separately with the Securities and Exchange Conwniss&ccompanied by a confidential treatment regpestuant to Rule 24b-2 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amen
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The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 10-K
Exhibit 21
The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Entity Name State of Organization
Dairyland USA Corporatio New York

Dairyland HP LLC (1) Delaware

Bel Canto Foods, LLC (1 New York

Chef¢ Warehouse Parent, LL Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse Mi-Atlantic, LLC (2) Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC | Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse of Florida, LLC (. Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC (: Delaware

Michae’s Finer Meats Holdings, LLC (: Delaware

Michae’s Finer Meats, LLC (3 Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse Pastry Division, Inc. | Delaware

The Chef’ Warehouse Pastry Division Canada ULC British Columbia, Canad
QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc. (2 Delaware

Qzina Specialty Foods North America (USA), Inc. Delaware

Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. ( Florida

Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. ( Washingtor

Qzina Specialty Foods (Ambassador), Inc. California

CW LV Real Estate LLC (7 Delaware

Allen Brothers 1893, LLC (8 Delaware

(1) Dairyland HP LLC and Bel Canto Foods, LLC afgolly-owned by Dairyland USA Corporation, whichwholly-owned by The
Chef¢ Warehouse, Inc

(2) The Chefs’ Warehouse Mid-Atlantic, LLC, Thé&ls’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC,The Chefs’ Waredadi$-lorida, LLC, The
Chefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, Michael’s Finer Mehibldings, LLC, The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Dansilnc. and QZ
Acquisition (USA), Inc. are whol-owned by Che” Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is wh-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

(3) Michael's Finer Meats, LLC is wholly-owned biichael’s Finer Meats Holdings, LLC, which is whebwned by Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

(4) The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastry Division Canat€ i$ wholly-owned by The Chefs’ Warehouse Pastiyidion, Inc., which is wholly-
owned by Chef Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is whowned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

(5) Qzina Specialty Foods North America (USAJ).lis wholly-owned by QZ Acquisition (USA), Inc. hich is wholly-owned by Chefs’
Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is whowned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

(6) Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (a Florida cogpimn), Qzina Specialty Foods, Inc. (a Washingtorporation) and Qzina Specialty Foods
(Ambassador), Inc. are wholly-owned by Qzina Sggckoods North America (USA), Inc., which is wheibwned by QZ
Acquisition (USA), Inc., which is wholly-owned byh&fs’ Warehouse Parent, LLC, which is wholly-owrgdThe ChefsWarehouse
Inc.

(7) CW LV Real Estate LLC is wholly-owned by T@&efs’ Warehouse West Coast, LLC, which is whollyned by Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc

(8) Allen Brother 1893, LLC is wholly-owned by &lChefs’ Warehouse Midwest, LLC, which is wholly+wed by Chefs’ Warehouse
Parent, LLC, which is whol-owned by The Che’ Warehouse, Inc




The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 10-K

Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriinm

The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc.
Ridgefield, CT

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢kee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No-BB83974), the Registration Statemen
Form S-3 (No. 333-187348) and the Registratione®tant on Form S-4 (No. 333-187349) of The Chéfarehouse, Inc. of our reports d¢
March 12, 2014, relating to the consolidated finanstatements and the effectiveness of The Ch&fehouse, Incs' internal control o
financial reporting, which appear in the Annual Bepn Form 10-K of The Chef&Warehouse, Inc. for the fiscal year ended Decerfi
2013.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Melville, NY
March 12, 2014




The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 10-K

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Christopher Pappas, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The Chef’ Warehouse, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a materiagldaomit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemyemd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaard for, the periods presented

in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogtiias defined in Exchange

Act Rule 13-15(f) and Rule 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hayv

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is

being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financ&dorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinds report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by

this report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgggteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual repbét) has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyead, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors f@rsons performing the

equivalent function)

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrobover financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and

report financial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ifwess management or other employees who have dis@mtirole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Christopher Pappi
By: Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: March 12, 2014




The Chefs’ Warehouse, Inc. 10-K

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
[, John D. Austin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of The Chef’ Warehouse, Inc
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésontain any untrue statement of a materiadldaomit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading wi
respect to the period covered by this ref

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in théport fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaard for, the periods presented

in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange
Act Rule 13-15(f) and Rule 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hayv

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveaificial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presenteis report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thHegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thrgggteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual n¢ploat has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmiver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors fersons performing the
equivalent function)

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrobotver financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrarg’ ability to record, process, summarize and re
financial information; ani

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that itwes management or other employees who have Hisantirole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Dated: March 12, 2014 /s/ John D. Austit
By: John D. Austir
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer and Principal AccoumdiOfficer)
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of The Ch#¥grehouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fae ffear ended December 27, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), |, Christophep®as, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faplesents, in all material respects, the finanmbaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 12, 2014 By: /s/ Christopher Pappi
Christopher Papp:
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off
(Principal Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement hasrbpeovided to the Company and will be retainedi®y€ompany and furnished to the SEC or
its staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report of The Ch#¥grehouse, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fae ffear ended December 27, 2013 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the “Report”), I, John D. Aus@hief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135Gdpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxleyp#2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finarmdaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 12, 2014 By: /s/ John D. Austil
John D. Austir
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offic
and Principal Accounting Office

A signed original of this written statement hasrbpeovided to the Company and will be retainedi®sy€ompany and furnished to the SEC or
its staff upon request.




